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The Group has established over half a century, and has been confronted with the rapid
development of technology, the fierce market competition and the uncertainty of the
business environment. We are aware of the importance of corporate culture in the sustainable
development and management of the Group as well as its indispensable guiding role. The
management hopes to reshape the spirit of the entire corporate culture by establishing
the corporate vision, mission and core values that can correspond to each other with the
development of the Group, in order to support its long-term development.
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VISION

To make where we operate a
better place
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To enhance the quality of life
of our customers by providing
quality products and services
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CORE VALUES

L EE

Customer-centricity

BEER TR

Other than being customer-centric and serving customers
with excellent service standards, employees should also
handle inter-departmental tasks in an efficient and positive
manner.
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Curiosity to Learn

BREBFE D

With the rapid development of the society today, we expect
employees to keep up with the pace of change. The Group
not only encourages employees to propose innovative
working solutions to enhance competitiveness and create
new values for themselves as well as the Group, but also
focuses on professional knowledge training for employees
and their personal potential development.
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Open-mindedness

_ JEERELE

The Group encourages employees to have innovative
thinking, take in more information and equip themselves,
think outside the box and not get restricted by previous
successes, in order to create more possibilities for the
Group.
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The success of an enterprise requires all employees to work
together and make use of their strengths. Cooperation
between departments and close interactions between
employees are particularly important. The Group also
actively promotes a harmonious and cooperative team
spirit, guiding each employee to maximise their capacities in
their teams.
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Collaboration

B & (FE

Accountability
BEC

Employees should be responsible and have self-discipline
for their job positions, perform their duties in a positive
and earnest manner, work their best to endeavour for good
results, in order to boost the continuous growth of the
business of the Group and strive for excellence.
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Honest & Open Communication
8338

The Group is committed to building a corporate culture
with barrier-free communication and mutual respect. The
Group not only encourages employees to communicate, but
also listens to their useful suggestions or opinions, hoping
employees can understand and listen to each other with an
open mind.
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Sustainability

@ AEE RN

We will continue to create value together with the
Group's shareholders, employees, customers and the social
environment, and strive to create high-quality products and
services to implement the corporate social responsibility
spirit.
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Corporate Profile
NEIBET

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) spares no effort
in delivering exceptional, premium products and services in
its specialised fields of photography and imaging solutions,
skincare products, and consumer and professional electronic
products and installation services — satisfying and exceeding the
expectations of customers across the region.

The Group has a long-established business partnership with
FUJIFILM Japan, operating as the sole authorised distributor
of FUJIFILM photography products in Hong Kong and Macau
since 1968 and ASTALIFT skincare products in Hong Kong
since 2010. The Group also operates retail businesses in Hong
Kong, providing photofinishing and imaging solutions and
products through its Fotomax retail chain and selling consumer
electronics products and household electrical appliances
under its AV Life, Life Digital and Wai Ming Electrical brand
names. The Group further leverages its expertise in audio and
visual (“AV”) products by delivering professional products
to wholesalers and providing professional AV advisory and
custom design and installation services to customers. In August
2015, the Group acquired a 49% stake in the Hong Kong
operations of kikki.K, an international retail chain that sells
premium Scandinavian-designed stationery, gifts and homeware
products. Since July 2019, the Group has taken a new role
providing imaging operations at Hong Kong Disneyland Resort
with a view to bringing in new business in a field where it has
great expertise. All these moves further enable us to provide
customers with high-quality products and services suited to
modern urban lifestyles.

Shares of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (HKSE: 1123).
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Five Years Financial Summary

hFEHMHRE

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March

K3A3NENEEMBRRR

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEREE 28,529 33,664 38,582 77,192 81,712
Investment properties BEME 260,174 245,507 225,436 235,580 227,235
Right-of-use assets EREEE 94,321 93,270 101,507 - -
Other non-current assets HMIERHEE 12,662 12,385 12,528 13,815 12,867
395,686 384,826 378,053 326,587 321,814
Current assets TEEE
Inventories =& 155,237 111,140 169,508 198,549 192,301
Contract assets, trade receivables, BHEE -BHRIGRE
prepayments, deposits and AHIE - ZER
other receivables H e RIS 106,946 91,815 78,255 109,283 79,641
Amount due from an associate FEW—REH S A RRIE - - - - 29,105
Cash and bank balances RERIBITHER 229,230 282,663 197,314 198,178 219,486
Other current assets HREEE 590 302 232 - 10
492,003 485,920 445,309 506,010 520,543
Current liabilities mEaE 170,995 163,652 147,449 155,454 121,756
Net current assets TMEEEFE 321,008 322,268 297,860 350,556 398,787
Total assets less current liabilities ZEAERREAR 716,694 707,094 675,913 677,143 720,601
Non-current liabilities JEREEE 65,656 63,308 67,382 34,985 29,156
Equity attributable to owners KATER AELER
of the Company 651,820 644,015 607,073 640,423 690,309
Non-controlling interests JEEFIM R (782) (229) 1,458 1,735 1,136
Net assets/Total equity BEFHE RGNS 651,038 643,786 608,531 642,158 691,445
Consolidated Income Statement for the years ended 31 March
HEIAMHLEFEENGZERER
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BETT
Revenue Wi 1,015,240 916,750 880,298 959,045 929,839
Profit/(loss) before income tax FRERISMAIFIE, (B518) 21,336 34,472 (36,054) (44,122) 44,546
Income tax (expense)/credit Friei (%) /1E% (3,779) (2,524) 4,335 (2,239) (5,399)
Non-controlling interests FELEH M S 553 1,687 2,626 (330) (941)
Profit/(loss) attributable to AT EE AEM
owners of the Company i, (B518) 18,110 33,635 (29,093) (46,691) 38,206
Dividends 35N 11,853 11,853 - - -
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREXRF, (5H)
(HK cents) (1) 1.53 2.84 (2.45) (3.94) 3.22
% % % % %
Debt to equity ratio BEEEARLEE - - - - -
Return on equity EEACESES 2.78 5.22 (4.79) (7.29) 5.53
Dividend pay-out ratio KEE 65.45 3524 NAREH NATER NATREB
Current ratio TRELEE 287.73 296.92 302.01 325.50 427.53

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited
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Information for Investors

REEEN

LISTING AND STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1123

SHARE INFORMATION
Board lot: 2,000 shares

Issued shares as at 31 March 2022: 1,185,318,349 shares
DIVIDEND

Final dividend per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2022:

1 HK cent

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(From 15 August 2022, the address would be changed to:

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong)

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Financial Year end
31 March 2022

Announcement of final results
28 June 2022

Closure of Register of Members - Annual General Meeting
9 — 12 August 2022 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
12 August 2022

Closure of Register of Members — Payment of Final Dividend
18 — 19 August 2022 (both days inclusive)

Payment of Final Dividend
7 September 2022

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT AND WEBSITE
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre

220-248 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2409 0294

Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

Website: www.chinahkphoto.com.hk
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Events

V)

FY2021/22 has been a difficult time for Hong Kong, our society ~ FY2021/22M BB HEERE ¥ 5K
and economy were hardly hit by the fifth wave of the Pandemic; FFRIERMEHERLNEBENER HEK
nevertheless, the Group has reacted positively and organized #EEBEASHE - BEEBHREE TEAR
various activities to promote and publicize the Group’s brands  BIE4 FRBARMEH  HEREFRE
under limited conditions. E R amhE o

New Product Launch Conference of FUJIFILM instax mini Evo, Link WIDE,
mini 11 BTS Butter version Instant Camera and Printer
FUJIFILM instax mini Evo, Link WIDE, mini 11 BTS Butter version
BN BN B 1B B 3T ENI SR 56 B

The instax mini Evo comes with 100 combinations of lens effects
and film effects. Vintage look, lens dial, metal shutter button, and
a very playful print lever, all these have reproduced the mechanical
feeling of film camera.

instax mini EvoPE 100 A BBV IRER MR IEMB R SN ELE IR
EELRS RESIR SBRFIZE > UKRBATRITENR
HERFEMBRHE M ER

In December 2021, FUJIFILM Hong Kong organized a Christmas
product launch event at a café in Wanchai, the venue was
beautifully decorated and large number of media were invited
to celebrate the launch of our new cameras and printers. They
took photos and tried out new products in a relaxing and joyful
environment.

20215128 ' FUIIFILME BB AL R BF N —HEMBIEH ES TR
HHRS BERSHNEERL —EANER BN IENEMm-
BEEEREARNBRE THREABHER

FUJIFILM instax X K-pop sensation BTS to launch the cream yellow
instax mini 11 BTS Butter special limited edition, and was very well
received by the fans!

FUJIFILM instaxH RE2E A A S E LD EEEBTOHRLNEE
instax mini 11 BTS ButterfR 25 AR ED RZ B A A8 1% » KM 44K
!

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited SRR MERSRAR



FUJIFILM instax launched its first ever wide-
format film printer instax Link WIDE in
December 2021, it features printing with
instax WIDE instant film. It also has QR
Code, editable template and collage printing
function for users to customize their photos.

FUJIFILM instaxi?2021€E 128 #EE LB
I8 SEMIT EN#&instax Link WIDE > BEI £ 8
instax WIDEBD & BN JEMITED » AR A QR
Code’ AI#REEAIRIE R - MBS BINEE

R EREAL

We also launched instax mini STONE GRAY
instant film, a brand new film with gray frame
that imitates the color tone of rock with

BHYERRS T RLZRETRARBBIKOLAIRIT £ AT RtRFE LDEH silver metallic accents.

[Efinstaxi BRI R FAFFIE N 2 37 32 - instax mini STONE
GRAYE TR 8 {ERV BN SEM » SR AT i
(IR T MR SR 5 A R R B o

Our launch event has become a shooting spot for KOLs of different sectors, they also
shared the joy of using our new instax products on social media platforms.

Annual Report 2021/22 FEHERE



Events ;&EE)

FUJIFILM X-T30 Il Digital Camera Media Experience Day
FUJIFILM X-T30 NE{ES R4 &1 K 5t B

In November 2021, FUJIFILM Hong Kong organized an FUJIFILME#ER2021E11 B EEIESRT
Experience Day for the new X-T30 Il digital camera in Kwun T 2 HX-T30 IZERAER TR > EH
Tong. In addition to placing new model for media to experience, R T EEEMAES AL BREB R
old models of the same series have also been set for comparison ~ FREERISE  :BAR LB K NE o

and demonstration.

There was a designated experience area for media to take
pictures of the new camera and test its new features.

REGREANERMEERAEERA AN ZMHINEE-

4

Models were arranged on the experience day for the media to test the
performance of portrait shooting.

AT AR R HFEF R HEFRIZAGRBRERR I

The X-T series has always been very popular, from the X-T10 to X-T30 II, the
series has already come to the fourth generation.

X-TRPMEE—BEAZE > BAX-T10R > EX-T30 ' ESBHHEF A
Efe

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited SRR MERSRAR



Fotomax “Disney Princess Virtual Photo Shooting”-

Experience the dreamy feeling of Disney princesses

REEZVNVNATESBRLESH—RRELEQXTFTLIER

From July 7 to September 5, 2021, Fotomax set up a princess
virtual photo shooting booth at MOKO New Century Plaza,
Mongkok. Children could create their very own princess story
with stunning Disney princess dresses complete with beautiful
tiaras and magical wands. Pose in a beautiful setting or choose
an enchanting virtual background to bring their princess story to
life and make their dream come true.

REIER2021E7B7BE9RSHERA
MOKOMtt A EIEREBEAFEFRMEE
BINBRREAUEEREES—ERAMH
FLOEBNETEAF BTEIRAFER
MBS FEEENERS SRR
B ESM/NAEHNESELOER!

4

AV Life x B&W Speakers Media and VIP Experience Event
AV Life x B&WiZ B 22 RV IR RS R VIPRS B 75 B

In August 2021, AV Life joined hands with Bowers & Wilkins, a
highly respected UK audio brand, to hold the Nautilus™ Speaker
Media and VIP Experience Event to give music lovers a first look
at, as well as in-person feeling of the extraordinary and perfect
sound of this pair of legendary “nautilus” loudspeakers. AV
Life's Prince’s Building branch in Central is the only place in
Hong Kong where this pair of flagship speakers can be tried out.

AV Lifei?202 158 B M EAER E R BT E R
h#Bowers & WilkinsZ24TNautilus™i3 &5 28
HIERE M VIPRE B RS B HBFE L
BEAR AT LGR G S EE 1 E S NEBiRE,
ERBEWANNTERE - MAV Lifedd
BRAFREDIEERE B — T U E
EHEERIRRIZERNMA

4
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Brand New Products Review
omhE T A

GFX50S 1l
Digital Camera
S

September 2021

2021498

The brand new GFX50S Il is a lightweight mirrorless digital
camera that is equipped with a large format sensor and an up to
6.0-stops of five-axis IBIS mechanism. Its compact body weighs
just 900g, which is as light as most of the full-frame cameras.
Its 51.4-megapixel large-format sensor has a CMOS Bayer
configuration designed specifically for the GFX50S I, which has
the incredible feature of minimising dynamic range of image
noise.

ERHTHIGFX50S 1| 88 I5 8L A 5 1545 [ AB 1 - 1 5 Fo 8 =% L ho AR
HREKEHEBIS)RA  E2E007 BEEASHERIF
1S H5, 1408 B EN AR IBREREZEAGFX50S 1M
HICMOS BayerfR &> AE LGNS SHEERER L S A
BB

instax mini 40
instant camera

BIRZBNA AR

May 2021

2021458

The instax mini 40 combines modern features with classic design,
this stylish, interesting camera features a built-in self-timer,
automatic shutter speed adjustment and brightness, making
shooting more flexible and easy.

instax mini 40 & RA A QMR BRI « BBAVER

FRANBEERER BBRHRPIFENSE  CHBEMEE
MEHe

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited &

X-T30 1l
Digital Camera
HEAER

September 2021

2021598

The long-awaited X-T30 Il is finally launched, it is a lightweight
but rugged camera for those who want both a lightweight body
and great performance. The new system uses a new algorithm
with stronger auto focus capability than its predecessor to
accurately track targets that are approaching or even moving
away from the camera. Up to 18 film simulation modes are
included to make shooting even more joyful.

X-T30 IFETFIFE M T AR e » 18 & SN BUERTS > (BAEERE > 8
BHRERARFEDRSASHERENAR -MARKRBEN
BEZ BRHERENRE—AER EEREHREETRIEE
EHARNER ASZFISTEFMERER  SHBEBE

1o

instax Link WIDE
photo printer
R ITENH

October 2021

20214108

The instax Link WIDE is the first wide-format film printer in
history to offer a variety of print modes, including QR Code,
theme template and collage. It also offers instax “traditional” and
“Rich” color printing modes. It weighs approximately 340g and is
available in two colours of Ash White and Mocha Gray.

instax Link WIDERE S FEREMRIEMITENH > 2B QR Code~
FEERRBEESEITHER - BRI Einstax ME451 A
T8t M BRIIENER - EANFE340g REBMBANER
TR R EC B A (e o

HBMEBRBRAR



instax mini Evo
hybrid instant printer
EENENEEN A FTEN

December 2021
20215128

The instax mini Evo combines the features of instant camera
and printer, with 10 lens effects and 10 film effects that can be
combined to create 100 different photo styles. The irresistible
body design features both retro and fashionable factors.

instax mini Evoig BB BHE RITENK — &4 — K& 10EH
FER M R 10EIEMM R » AT U AH S AL 10048 R EIRYAR R BLAS o 1%
B st E S X @ AEE

instax WIDE BLACK
Instant Film

REEERRENAIEM

instax mini 11 BTS Butter
instant camera

BIRZ BN A 1B
|

December 2021

2021%128

The instax mini 11 BTS Butter special edition is a collaboration
with the popular Korean group BTS, and the body color features
the iconic cream yellow from the album cover. The vibrant color
palette echoes the famous hit Butter from BTS.

EE A mASFE LD FERBTS)E EH# HBinstax mini 11 BTS
Butterd5 BIAR BN BN A 1814 > 14 B EE B E A BE N TR AF N
Bt BimE @ T EBTS Y hiButter ELFR M FE o

October 2021
20214108

instax mini STONE GRAY
Instant Film

AR BBHERNRZ BN A TEM
|

December 2021
20214128

beauty is a science

ASTALIFT

ASTALIFT WHITE JELLY

Aquarysta
ERARBIEREEE
]
May 2021
2021458
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Brand Advertisements Review
mhREEKE
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Awards and Corporate Social Responsibility
RIEREEMEER

Awards 3215

“Stylish Digital Camera” Brand
Award - FUJIFILM Camera in 12
Your Choice @ Focus Hong Kong
White Collar’s Favourite Brand
“Best Medium Format Digital Camera Award 2021

Award"”- FUJIFILM GFX 100S in DCFever The 12 Your Choice @ FocusE+— &

Best Photographic Product Awards 2021 ‘ EBEEREE SR ANE02] —

DCFeverR EIEF 238 M A822021 TREFR R EROEREEASHIGEEIS

IEEAEAR % A EE ) — FUJIFILM GFX 100S FE RS — FUJIFILM Camera

“Best Digital Transformation Award for Retailers” in The Hong Kong Retail
Innovation Award 2021

EHETERKAIAR2021 - MEHEZEHBHLEARRER

beauty is a science

ASTALIFT

. Anna issue 2239 (March 3, 2021) Spring ‘21 Cosmetic Award
Anna 22395%(202143H3B5%) 21 F B S EMAKRE

o MAQUIA (May ‘21 issue) Whitening - UV Category Grand Award New Technology 1st place
MAQUIA Q1ESASE) £ 18 « KIMRAERI KRR s —u

. LEE (August ‘21 issue) Summer 2021 “Best Cosmetic” Whitening Award

LEE 21588 %%) 2021 EFREbMMAIZEHR

Corporate Social Responsibility ¥t & HE

Fotomax joins “Caring Company” to contribute to the
community and every walks of life, realizing social corporate
responsibility.
REEZEMATERRREZE > AUHFRERE—H BHRY
ehFEEE-

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited SRR MERSRAR



“Dignity Kitchen” Campaign
IEE &S

The Group partnered with Dignity Kitchen to
organize a two-day volunteer service campaign.
Elderly people and people with Down'’s syndrome
were invited to dine at the restaurant while the
Group's volunteer team did make-up and took

photos for them. The volunteers and participants
mingled well and shared a day full of memories.

EREFESE BT TMANEIRT FHD
ABETRERBERGAEALRE THE I NE
ERE MEEZIHUAtFACRXBERR S
Do BRIMMBEERIAMITR—FR > £ZHEE

kr@a@—aeo

Doggy Activity Day at the House of
Joy and Mercy

FHiER¥MEE A

Abandoned animals are also the subject of care of the Group.
In December 2021, the Group organized a doggy volunteer
day in collaboration with the House of Joy and Mercy, where
volunteers acted as ambassadors of love to clean the homes of
a group of adorable pets.

PEENSMOREEMAENER 120215128 - £@E B
FMREENEMBAZETENR SXTIRFEIEOK

Monthly Calendar Charity Sale for the
House of Joy and Mercy
MiEERBRE

The Group's volunteer team also produced a 2022 calendar entitled “Love
in Time" for the House of Joy and Mercy for charity sale, with all proceeds
donated to the House of Joy and Mercy. The Group's store, Fotomax, was
also the main sales outlet for the charity sale. Thanks to the support of
the Group and the community, the calendar was sold out very quickly and
successfully funded the expenses of abandoned animals.

EEETRESARERRET AR EERFIFN202FBBFES
RE REWGDEBBRMARE MEREHREZTHILRENTEH
BN RHEERSALZE ABRREEEE RMWERSESNENKE

i@ﬂ’%ﬁ’\]ﬁﬁi‘b

> B—MABNEZFZEM- !

All Star Games - The Chest Charity
Invitational Race
PEEHE AuEEREBHA

The need for a strong physical fitness is even greater among the
Pandemic. In order to encourage the public to do more sports and
to embrace the Olympic Games, our colleagues were invited to
participate in the “Community Chest Charity Invitational Race”
with other organizations and artists from a TV station. It was not
only a great way to show our sportsmanship, but could also raise
money for charity.

RETERERENER SBRMARSWESHRIMZRENR
S EERERBESNT ASSEEREE)  BEMEERE

REBEE—RFEE FMEANEEREEH BEEAEEEN- '
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHS

Despite the difficulties we encountered, thanks
to the diversified business portfolio of the Group
and the efforts of all staff members, | am pleased
to announce that the Group managed to
record a sales of HK$1,015 million for FY2021/22,
representing a growth of 10.7% as compared to
the year ended 31 March 2021.

NEXEMESEE B2 ENAEES TEEREA
B MEERBETIENFE FARAER > SEBPR
FY2021/22K S €SB = iZ B ¥510. 1518 75 » B18i FE 2021
F3A31IALLFELLERER10.7%°

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

BRAfREL

ZE

CHKP

The year ended 31 March 2022 ("FY2021/22") is another challenging
year for China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
"Company"”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”). Though sales
gradually picked up as Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19" or the
“Pandemic”) was contained in Q2 and Q3 of FY2021/22, the economy
and the business environment were again blown by the 5th wave of
the Pandemic starting from mid-January 2022.

Despite the difficulties we encountered, thanks to the diversified
business portfolio of the Group and the efforts of all staff members,
| am pleased to announce that the Group managed to record a sales
of HK$1,015 million for FY2021/22, representing a growth of 10.7%
as compared to the year ended 31 March 2021 (“FY2020/21"). Net
profit attributable to shareholders was HK$18.1 million, representing a
drop of 46.2% or HK$15.5 million as compared to FY2020/21. Details
of the business review are provided in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.

Basic earnings per share was 1.53 HK cents (FY2020/21: 2.84 HK
cents). Given our achievement in terms of profitability, the board of
directors (the “Board”) recommends the payment of a final dividend of
1 HK cent per ordinary share to our shareholders.

HehBBASEMERERAT (A58 REMB
NE (RiEATAER) ME > 8E202243831H
LWEFE (TFY2021/22 1) HRIATEMBREL o Mt (EH E %R
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REZEE
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HR10.7% IREBE(FAEA B 8108 T &
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MEBEER SR mEA N —e
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In response to the ever-changing and volatile operating environment
under the unexpected development in the Pandemic, the management
has to be even more proactive than before in adjusting its sales and
operating strategies to capitalize on business opportunities, and to
reduce costs on one hand and keep abreast with the anti-pandemic
measures of the government on the other hand. Accordingly, in order
to sustain the profitability of the Group and to fight the Pandemic
while safeguarding the health and safety of our customers and
employees, we worked hand in hand with our stakeholders to initiate
the following measures: (i) we closely communicated with suppliers
and adjusted our warehouse management policy to ensure a stable
stock supply, particularly for products with limited supply due to
global shortage of semi-conductors, and the delay in transportation
or the suspension of production, as a result of the outbreak of the
Pandemic in the production regions; (ii) we adjusted the procurement
price or volume to mitigate the impact brought about by the surging
purchase cost and delivery cost which were on the upside following
the Pandemic; (iii) we liaised with landlords of our rented premises
for rent concessions when the foot traffic was heavily affected by
the Pandemic; (iv) we collaborated with our business partners for
marketing strategies to boost spending of Hong Kong people; (v) we
continued to upgrade our online shopping platforms by adding more
functions, making them more user-friendly and including all sorts
of popular payment modes to cope with the trend of e-commence;
and (vi) we put in place arrangements for work from home (“WFH"),
quarantine for colleagues or back-to-office policies for colleagues
recovered from COVID-19, disinfection measures for our stores and
office, initiatives for the distribution of anti-pandemic materials to all
staff members and strategies for delivery services to customers with
addresses where confirmed cases of COVID-19 were reported. Boasting
the above efforts, timely and flexible measures were in action, thus
improving our operating results to a certain extent and enabling us to
maintain our market position and outperform other industry players.

During the Pandemic period, nobody in Hong Kong could escape
from the hard moment, and it is important for all walks of life to join
hands and render supports to one another in the society. The Group
shouldered its social responsibilities by giving back whenever it became
necessary. During FY2021/22, we put extra resources in contributing
to the society in ways of different kinds of donation and voluntary
services, including distributing complimentary COVID-19 rapid antigen
testing kits to those in need. We firmly believe that our commitment to
social responsibilities is absolutely an essential part in the continuous
development and sustainability of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement EEIRE

OUTLOOK AND 40TH ANNIVERSARY OF FOTOMAX

As observed from the prevailing market conditions, it is expected that
the Group's business will be exposed to both of positive and negative
impacts in the year ending 31 March 2023 ("FY2022/23").

In respect of positive impacts, with less confirmed cases reported in
Hong Kong since April 2022 due to the containment of COVID-19, we
expect a gradual recovery of the general economy. Besides, the higher
vaccination rate, the resumption of schools of all levels, the re-opening
of entertainment venue including theme parks, and the gradual
relaxation of social distancing measures and requirements on inflight
bans and quarantine will also contribute to the recovery, in particular
to our segments related to photographic products and services.

Recently, the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“the Government”) announced another round of Employment
Support Scheme to support employers in the payment of salary by
subsidizing at a maximum amount of HK$8,000 for each staff for the
period between May and July 2022. In addition, the rollout of new
consumption vouchers in April 2022 with an amount of HK$10,000
for each eligible Hong Kong citizen will stimulate the sales of the
Group, especially our segment of Consumer Electronic Products and
Household Appliances.

Once the Pandemic is contained, it is expected that the normal
operation of public facilities will be resumed, and the number of
newly completed private domestic, office and commercial properties
will also gradually increase. This increase will certainly stimulate
the demand for consumer and professional electronic products
and household appliances, as well as tailor-made AV solutions. In
addition, the segment of Professional AV Advisory and Custom Design
and Installation Services of the Group will also grasp the business
opportunity arising from the increasing demand for SMD LED wall
display and conference system technologies of the new generation.

In respect of negative impacts, Hong Kong is subject to impact of the
containment of the Pandemic in China, which has been suffered from
the extensive outbreak across the country since March 2022. A number
of major cities are locked down to a different extent. Since tourists
from mainland China play an important role in contributing to our
sales particularly in imaging solution, the restriction on outbound travel
of them will inevitably affect the sales of the Group. Furthermore,
the product supply and the purchase cost may also be affected if the
Pandemic in China is getting worse because a number of accessories
and spare parts of our products are manufactured in China.
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Also, after two years of sales boom for the segment of Consumer
Electronic Products and Household Appliances, sales growth of this
segment is expected to slow down a bit when Hong Kong citizens
are allowed to travel overseas because their budget for household
spending may be shifted to overseas travelling. However, sales from
this segment will remain solid and continue to be the Group’s major
sales contributor as AV Life has successfully developed its brand image
as a specialty chain store for AV products and solutions across the
years.

FY2022/23 marks the 40th anniversary of the establishment of the
brand of Fotomax. To celebrate the memorable moment, a series
of marketing and promotional campaigns will be organized during
FY2022/23. On the other hand, with the encouragement of the
award received by Fotomax within FY2021/22, namely the “Best
Digital Transformation Award for Retailers” in the Hong Kong Retail
Innovation Award 2021 organised by the Hong Kong Retail Technology
Industry Association, Fotomax will continue to develop innovative and
upbeat products to keep abreast with the market so as to capitalize
on business opportunities should they arise. For instance, Fotomax will
launch a new online platform to facilitate the printing of on-trend NFT
artworks within FY2022/23.

Our achievements attained in the challenging FY2021/22 have never
been easy and it is hard to believe that we can make it. Thanks to the
vision and agility of our top management, the Group adopted timely
and flexible measures in the difficult times and remained positive to
the future of Hong Kong. In addition, without the support of our
employees, customers, suppliers, landlords and service providers,
especially our loyal staff members, we will be unable to maintain
our leading position in the industry and bring about solid returns to
our shareholders. Accordingly, | would like to express my sincerest
gratitude to all the above parties for their invaluable contribution to
our success, as well as their support throughout the tough times.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE SRR I

OVERALL REVIEW

REVENUE AND RESULTS

Sales of most segments of the Group were stimulated by the
consumption vouchers issued by the Government in Q2 and Q3 of
FY2021/22 and the relaxed social distancing measures in these quarters
as compared to those of the same period of FY2020/21. The Group
saw record-high sales for many segments in December 2021 and
January 2022. Unfortunately, due to the 5th wave of the Pandemic
arising from the outbreak of the highly infectious Omicron started
in mid-January 2022, the Government tightened social distancing
measures again and imposed more stringent quarantine requirements,
thus giving the general economy a heavy blow again. The high
infectious rate of Omicron affected the supply of manpower which
in turn disrupted our operations in different aspects, including stock
supply, store operating hours, delivery and installation services and the
overall sales of Q4 dropped as a result.

Overall, the Group recorded a consolidated turnover of HK$1,015
million, representing a year-on-year (“YOY") growth of 10.7%. Except
for the segments of Photographic Products and Skincare Products
which recorded a drop in sales, sales of all other segments recovered
from FY2020/21 which unfortunately experienced three waves of the
Pandemic. Gross profit margin improved from 21.2% of FY2020/21 to
21.9% of FY2021/22 mainly because less discounts were offered for
photographic products in FY2021/22 due to the tight supply whereas
there were discounted clearance sales campaigns held across different
segments as early as the start of the Pandemic in FY2020/21 for the
sake of sustaining a stable sales volume and ensuring a healthy cash
flow.

The Group continued to take prudent cost management measures by
cutting unnecessary spending. Advertising and marketing expenses
were kept at a minimal level at 1.0% to sales as the number of newly
launched camera and lens models reduced in FY2021/22. However,
selling and distribution costs rose by 5.9% mainly because of the
increase in transaction costs for payment and the increase in sales
in the segment of Consumer Electronic Products and Household
Appliances which pushed up sales commissions, delivery costs and
turnover rents. Besides, administrative expenses increased by 9.3%
mainly because of the additional provision for long service payment
of HK$1.8 million made due to the volatile investment market in
FY2021/22 whereas there was a write-back of respective provision
of HK$2.6 million in FY2020/21. In addition, the decrease in net
foreign exchange gains and the increase in supplies for anti-pandemic
measures, etc. also pushed up administrative expenses.
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Net profit attributable to shareholders was HK$18.1 million,
representing a drop of 46.2% or HK$15.5 million as compared to
FY2020/21. Excluding the net expense of HK$104,000 in relation to
a receipt of government subsidy and a clawback of previous overpaid
government subsidy (FY2020/21: government subsidy income of
HK$25.5 million), the rent concessions offered by landlords of
HK$0.9 million (FY2020/21: HK$2.7 million) and the valuation gain
of investment properties of HK$14.3 million (FY2020/21: HK$19.4
million), net profit attributable to shareholders improved dramatically
by 121.8% or HK$16.9 million to HK$3.0 million (FY2020/21: net loss
HK$13.9 million) following the increase in sales and gross profit.

Earnings per share amounted to 1.53 HK cents (FY2020/21: 2.84 HK
cents). Accordingly, the Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share for FY2021/22.

BUSINESS SEGMENT REVIEW

MERCHANDISING

Photographic Products

Although the Pandemic became stable in FY2021/22, particularly in
Q2 and Q3, sales of digital cameras and lenses still recorded a YOY
drop of 26.4%. Factors affecting the sales are detailed as follows:
(i) notwithstanding that many countries relaxed their restrictions on
inbound visitor arrival, Hong Kong citizens and visitors were required to
have 14 days (currently 7 days) quarantine at hotels when they arrived
Hong Kong; restrictions on global travel (especially outbound tourism
of Hong Kong) reduced occasions of vacation travel, thus jeopardizing
the incentive for buying new cameras; (ii) substantially all the inbound
tourism was suspended, causing a significant downturn in sales of
the Group's key dealers who mainly targeted at tourists seeking for
tax-free cameras, especially for mid-priced items, in Hong Kong; (iii)
continuous global shortage of semiconductors limited the supply of
certain popular camera items, thereby leading to a delay in launching
new models; and (iv) the business plan of the Group was affected by
the suspension of production and logistics issues, especially starting
from Q4 when the new wave of COVID-19 was reported in China
where some production sites for spare parts located.

Despite these challenges, the Group managed to launch a limited
number of new items in FY2021/22. New models of digital cameras
and lenses introduced to the market during the first half of FY2021/22
included XF18mm F1.4 R LM WR in May 2021, GFX50S Il in September
2021 and GF35-70mm FG4.5-5.6 WR in September 2021. In respect
of the second half of FY2021/22, XF33mm F1.4R LM WR, X-T30 Il and
XF23mm F1.4R LM WR were launched in September 2021, October
2021 and February 2022 respectively. Armed with the vintage aesthetic
design, the exclusive functions of film simulation and the state of art
technology, X-T30 Il became a signature product of the Group this
year.

IRERFELFERA A EE1,8108 7T #FY2020/21
W46 2% B HE1,5508 7T o 1 A5t R A R U ER
B RBREMU A S I HAE R BRI B
104,0007T (FY2020/21 : BUFF R BEUR A 78 H52,5508
7O EFRENHESEEBE0E T (FY2020/21 :
2708 T) MIREYEEERDBIE,4308 7T
(FY2020/21 : 151 9408 70) » NIHERERER
EFE REEMGEFFAEAELEF121.8%H B
1,6908 Tt E A I&300E 7T (FY2020/21 : iR E5IE B
1,3908 7T) °

BREEFA1.538 (FY2020/21 & 2.84%1l) A
It EEEEEIMFY202122k{t KB ESR L
BRI o

EEaEoEE

EmiHE

W Em

BERERFY2021/22 (RERHE2KRE3D) #HiBiE
T BB R R S E R IR E T B26.4% ©
HEHENRREE (REABHBERBHRET
HISIMERMWABRS BEBHRMNREEIES
BN EEBEERBERZE 4R (BRATR) ; B
BIMNE R AR HIBR S (R B R B BN H IR R B
DT RSN R BEE R E > M EISS T B EMAE
BHER (NVBABDABIREL(E R T AE
EFXrELHENEEE MZSCHEHANEERR
EEEAESARERNEK (BT EER vk
(iR ERFEEH RE T E TS EIDE
HERPHIE B SIEEEY  RWEEK
MmN EEEE T AEENERAE FIEESE
AZRYR > BERFRE IR —IKCOVID-19 > M 72
THWNEEEMIEARFE-

BO(E ¥ Bk Pk > AREMMDHAERFY2021/22 /%
hiEH D EFER - HFY2021/22 ¥ FEEHT
B SR EE R R B EOIEN 2021 ESAH#
HBIXF18mm F1.4 R LM WR~ 22021498 #E H Y
GFX50S 115242021498 # HHIGF35-70mm FG4.5-
5.6 WReTEFY2021/22 F ¥4 > XF33mm F1.4R LM
WR* X-T30 II/&XF23mm F1.4R LM WRS B #420214
98 ~ 20214103 F22022 2 A #E o X-T30 IILAAS
HIEB R BAEWIEMERINAE R R EN M
ER MATERRNFEENZFEER

Annual Report 2021/22 FEZERS

21



22

Management Discussion and Analysis EIRE 1Kk

On the other hand, sales of instant cameras and films increased
dramatically by 191.7% and 47.9% YQY respectively, mainly because:
(i) the demand was boosted by an increase in the number of social
gatherings, especially during Q2 and Q3 when the Pandemic was
relatively stable; and (ii) the new instax cameras launched in December
2021 were well received in the market and caught up the strong
demand during the festive time of Christmas. The brand new instax
camera and film models launched during the first half of FY2021/22
included instax mini 40 in May 2021 and Mickey and Friends mini films
in July 2021. In respect of the second half of FY2021/22, the Group
introduced instax mini Evo and instax Link WIDE, a smartphone printer,
and instax mini 11 BTS Butter version to the market in December 2021.
All of them were well-received by the market.

In light of the new products, the Group organized a series of
marketing and promotional events by posting video clippings on
social media, including Facebook, Instagram and YouTube. Two
series of video clippings, namely “More Than Full Frame” and “Film
Simulation”, were launched in the first half of FY2021/22, and a high
hit rate was recorded. For the second half of FY2021/22, the focus
was put on product launch events for the brand new instax cameras
and smartphone printers in December 2021, which successfully drew
customers’ attention and brought in strong sales.

Being the pioneer of the photographic industry in Hong Kong,
once again, the Group sponsored Hong Kong Photographic Culture
Association Limited at an amount of HK$1.5 million in FY2021/22
to support the promotion of the photographic industry and culture
in Hong Kong. On the other hand, products of the Group were well
received by the market, which could be evidenced by the prizes
awarded in FY2021/22. FUJIFILM GFX100S was awarded “Best Medium
Format Digital Camera Award” in The Best Photographic Product
Awards 2021 organized by DCFever. In addition, GFX100S, X-T4,
X-E4, X-510, X100V, XF50mm F1.0 R WR, XF10-24mm F4 R OIS WR,
GF30mm F3.5 R WR and GF100-200mm F5.6 R LM OIS WR were also
acknowledged as the “Reddot Winner 2021".

Consumer Electronic Products and Household Appliances

Sales of the segment jumped up by 14.1% YOY. Retail sales increased
by 13.1% while wholesales grew by 16.0%. Same store sales improved
by 14.1% YQY. As at 31 March 2022, the segment had 12 stores (31
March 2021: 13 stores). The Life Digital store at International Finance
Centre Mall (“IFC") selling electronic gadgets like headphones and
computer accessories was closed in February 2022. Also, the AV Life
store in IFC was closed in July 2020 and was replaced by a new store in
Prince’s Building which commenced business in April 2021.
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The retail and wholesale businesses under the segment was benefited
from the factors detailed below. As the Pandemic was getting stable in
Q2 and Q3, with the consumption vouchers issued by the Government
in August and October 2021 and the attractive promotional offers
provided by particular shopping malls in the form of cash coupons
for encouraging customers to spend therein, consumer sentiments
improved greatly as compared to FY2020/21. Local spending power on
household appliances was strong because certain budget was shifted
from overseas travelling and vacation plans as the desire for overseas
travel was hampered by strict testing and quarantine requirements.
Moreover, the Group implemented shop-front revamps or full scale
renovations for certain stores, thus optimizing display layout of
AV equipment and sparing more room for large sized TV sets and
advanced audio system. These initiatives enhanced the image of AV
Life and showcased its status as “The One and Only One"” AV specialty
chain store in the territory. The ticket size for retail business also
improved by 24.3% as compared to FY2020/21 as the overhauling of
various stores lifted the brand image and also attracted high-spending
clientele which was the main customer group for large-sized TV sets.
Regarding the cyber front, avlife.com.hk, the online sales platform of
the segment, was well developed since its first launch in November
2019. Together with other e-commerce platform like Price.com, the
aggregate e-commerce sales increased by 18.9% as compared to
FY2020/21. E-commerce sales accounted for 4.6% of total segment
sales.

In terms of product categories, AV products like TV sets, hi-fi,
amplifiers, sound bars, speakers, etc. accounted for 89.4% of the total
segment sales, and registered an increase of 14.8% as compared to
FY2020/21. Sales of home appliances like fridges, washing machines,
air conditioners and kitchen appliances recorded a 13.3% increase as
compared to FY2020/21. Meanwhile, gadget sales dropped by 4.7%
as the Life Digital store in IFC with tourists and business travelers as its
major customer group closed in February 2022 and only operated for
11 months in FY2021/22.

The segment was inevitably affected by the global shortage of semi-
conductors and the intermittent delay or even suspension of supply
due to the Pandemic. Similar to the case in FY2020/21, the Group
acted cautiously, and closely monitored its inventory level and adjusted
its product mix through updating the market condition with various
suppliers and revising its warehouse management policy for the
purpose of ensuring a steady supply of products to capitalize on the
increasing market demand.
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The Group launched a variety of marketing and promotional events
to drive its sales because COVID-19 changed Hong Kong people’s
traditional pattern for information seeking, communication and
even shopping. In light of this, AV Life adjusted its advertising and
marketing planning during the Pandemic to keep on enhancing its
brand awareness and acquiring new target group of customers. It co-
operated with suppliers to promote the sales of a special selection
of exquisite products, including the speakers with revolutionary
design, Nautilus™, from Bowers & Wilkins, the limited edition Edge
S Loudspeakers from Cambridge Audio and the 98-inch QLED TV
sets from Samsung. Meanwhile, AV Life uplifted its brand awareness
among the younger generation of locals and expatriates by posting
different interesting video footages online which further strengthening
its brand recognition and market awareness.

B-to-B Commercial and Professional AV Products

Sales of the segment picked up since the second half of FY2021/22,
which led to an overall improvement of 2.5% YOY. In the first half
of FY2021/22, sales underperformed the same period of FY2020/21
as the segment launched an aggressive stock clearance program
in Q2 of FY2020/21, which in turn pushed up segment sales and
provided a relatively high sales volume as compared to the first half
of FY2021/22. When the Pandemic was getting stable in the Q2
and Q3 of FY2021/22, social and commercial events that had been
suspended for long resumed gradually. It was particularly in Q3 that
the Group saw increasing orders of projectors and professional TV sets
for exhibitions, conferences, weddings or event functions placed by
customers before Christmas and Chinese New Year. In addition, given
a new distributorship right of hotel TV sets and professional screen
displays in Macau, sales orders from hotels and casinos in Macau
helped sustaining sales of the segment.

During FY2021/22, the Group kept on maintaining a healthy inventory
level and exploring new products offerings for the segment. Moreover,
the Group focused on brand building and getting close contact with
potential commercial customers via eDM to provide them with more
market and product updates.
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Skincare Products

Sales of the segment recorded a drop of 8.5% as compared to
FY2020/21. Online sales maintained at 63.3% to the total sales of the
segment while the ticket size remained constant. Factors attributable
to the drop in sales as compared to FY2020/21 was detailed below.

Despite that the foot traffic of shopping mall was extremely low, the
sales for FY2020/21 were relatively high because the segment’s well-
established online sales platform captured a considerable amount of
online sales during the early stage of the Pandemic. However, when
the Pandemic became stable in FY2021/22, especially starting from Q2,
the segment'’s sales dropped as customers tended to shop around in
person again. In addition, the segment faced keen market competition
arising from a greater variety of product selection offered by other
market players and their appealing marketing and promotional
activities. On the contrary, the number of new products of the segment
marketed was quite limited during FY2021/22, and only the ASTALIFT
White Jelly Aquarysta was launched in June 2021. Nevertheless, the
overall drop in sales for the whole year was narrowed down from that
of the 1st half of the year with the strong sales during Christmas which
was supported by a series of successful promotional activities.

Star products of the segment included Jelly Aquarysta, Collagen drinks
and D-UV Clear product, accounting for 25.7%, 24.5% and 12.5% of
total segment sales respectively. Awards received in Japan for White
Jelly Aquarysta in FY2021/22 included but not limited to: Anna issue
2239 (March 3, 2021) Spring ‘21 Cosmetic Award; MAQUIA (May
‘21 issue) Whitening - UV Category Grand Award New Technology
1st place; and LEE (August ‘21 issue) Summer 2021 “Best Cosmetic”
Whitening Award.

The Group mainly announced its promotional and marketing events
through word-of-mouth via the sharing of posts of key opinion leaders
and social media like Facebook and Instagram, which were proved to
be very cost-effective.

SERVICING

Photographic and Technical Services

Sales of Fotomax increased by 10.2% YOQY, which gradually picked up
in FY2021/22. As at 31 March 2022, the Group operated 55 Fotomax
stores as compared to 56 stores a year earlier. Same store sales
improved by 9.8%. Regarding online sales, online orders remained
stable as compared to FY2020/21 and accounted for 12.0% of total
sales of Fotomax.
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The improvement in sales was attributable to a number of factors.
The comparative figures for FY2020/21 were low because the 2nd to
4th waves of the Pandemic gave rise of social distancing measures,
including the suspension of schools, thus decreasing the occasions
and incentives for taking photos. On the contrary, the Pandemic
was contained in Q2 and Q3 of FY2021/22 and the Group saw the
resumption of certain social gatherings and activities, thus pushing
up photo developing and processing (“DP”) sales by 2.8%. ID photo
sales, on the other hand, climbed up by 5.3% YOY due to the upward
adjustment of selling prices despite the 1.0% YQY drop in the number
of ID photo prints, which was attributable to the reduced demand
for visa application from local citizens and overseas domestic helpers
arising from the border closure in FY2021/22.

Sales for DocuXpress slightly dropped by 1.2% as people were
gradually getting back to offices and schools and the surge for British
National (Overseas) passport application was eased in FY2021/22.
Sales derived from imaging gifts and photobooks remained weak and
registered a YOY drop of 5.1%.

Given the uncertainties on the reopening of borders and the generic
decrease in demand for traditional photo DP services, Fotomax spared
no effort to explore new business opportunities related to imaging to
sustain and even expand its sales. Fotomax effected two key attempts
in FY2021/22. Firstly, Fotomax collaborated with two large-scaled
shopping malls and organized two photo-shooting events when the
Pandemic was relatively stable, namely: (i) the 1st Pixar Fest in Hong
Kong (from 30 June to 15 August 2021) held in Harbour City, Tsim
Sha Tsui for the celebration of the 35th anniversary of Pixar; and (ii)
the Disney Princess Event (from 7 July to 5 September 2021) held
in MOKO, Mongkok. Both events were proved successful and the
Group identified the demand for this kind of pop-up theme photo
shooting services notwithstanding the social distancing restrictions still
in effect. Secondly, boasting the collaboration with an IT consultancy
firm, Fotomax developed an instant print solution which provided
users with compelling experience in photo imaging where both
of entertaining and innovative elements were combined. With the
solution, customers could easily tailor-make their photos with fun and
appealing preset licensed cartoon characters or customized festive
and celebrated frames and place their online photo printing orders
anytime anywhere. This innovative service was well received by the
market and was popular in both private and commercial events. It
enabled collaborations between Fotomax and other corporations
for promotion and marketing campaigns in FY2021/22, including
the “Mickey Mouse Photo Days” with Uniglo, the “Miffy Day” with
1011 SIPTEA and the “Culinary Art of Thai Cuisine” organized by
the Department of International Trade Promotion of the Government
of Thailand. This instant print solution was also awarded the “Best
Digital Transformation Award for Retailers” in the Hong Kong Retail
Innovation Award 2021 organised by the Hong Kong Retail Technology
Industry Association.
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During the year, Fotomax offered seasonal and festive promotions, like
complimentary parent and child photo-taking services upon purchase
of any ID photo-taking package during Mother’'s Day and Father's
Day's promotions. In addition, promotional events targeted at pets,
back-to-school and graduation were held in FY2021/22. Fotomax
also strengthened its brand image by communicating with customers
through its website as well as Facebook and Instagram accounts.

On the other hand, sales of the imaging solution service at the
Hong Kong Disneyland Resort (the “Park”) and Sky100 improved by
over 190.9% as the Park and Sky100 reopened in FY2021/22 when
the Pandemic was under control. The Park opened for 212 days
(FY2020/21: 107 days) and Sky100 opened for 279 days (FY2020/21:
103 days) in FY2021/22. However, due to the closure of border, visitors
to the Park and Sky100 were mainly local people who would probably
spend less than overseas tourists. Social distancing measures and
the mandatory mask wearing policy also discouraged visitors to take
photos, thereby dragging sales down to a level far below the pre-
COVID-19 period. In light of this, the management cut the headcount
of part time employees and adjusted the operating hours to save cost
and reduce its loss. Moreover, the management kept on negotiating
with operators of the Park and Sky 100 for promotion and marketing
collaboration to encourage spending of local visitors.

Professional AV Advisory and Custom Design and Installation
Services

Sales of the segment rose sharply by 47.6% YOY. Upgrading or
improvement projects of many commercial facilities were suspended
or even cancelled due to the restrictions on on-site work in FY2020/21
when COVID-19 was first found and many commercial organizations
worried the downturn of the economy and reacted promptly by cutting
budget for non-urgent spending. Those suspended projects were
reactivated in FY2021/22, especially in Q2 and Q3 when the Pandemic
turned stable. In addition, the demand for video conferencing arising
from the work-from-home mode, which became a new norm for office
operation, increased during the Pandemic, thus creating demand for
advanced AV equipment and facilities with artificial intelligence upon
customers’ system revamp and upgrade which helped pushing up the
sales.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's financial resources remained strong. As at 31 March 2022,
the Group was debt-free and had cash and bank balances of HK$229
million. The Group has adequate liquidity to meet its current and future
working capital requirements.

OTHER WORKING CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's trade receivables stood at HK$45
million while its inventories were worth HK$155 million. The Group
continued to put every effort to manage credit control and debt
collection and to adopt a prudent inventory management strategy.

TREASURY POLICIES

It has been the Group's treasury management policy that no highly
leveraged or speculative derivatives product would be engaged.
The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach on the
management of financial risks by reviewing its policies regularly.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES
In FY2021/22, the Group invested HK$9 million in purchasing tangible
assets, including machinery and equipment, leasehold improvements
and office equipment. All of these capital expenditures were financed
by internal resources.

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 (31
March 2021: nil), while its capital commitments as at 31 March 2022
amounted to HK$0.6 million (31 March 2021: HK$0.5 million).

CORPORATE CULTURE
The Group’s corporate culture remained centred around its clearly
articulated Vision, Mission and Core Values:

Vision: To make where we operate a better place

Mission: To enhance the life quality of our customers by

providing them with quality products and services

Core Values: Customer-centricity; curiosity to learn; open-mindedness;
collaboration; accountability; honest and open
communication; and sustainability

The above Core Values drove a culture of transparent and accountable
corporate governance, which included regular performance reviews.
The Group also fostered a corporate culture promoting close and
human-based interaction with staff, customers and other stakeholders.
The goal was to generate a warm family atmosphere in which all could
be at ease.
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a total of 530 (31 March 2021:
525) full-time and part-time staff members.

In FY2021/22, the comprehensive Key Performance Indicators (“KPI")
program was still in place, which was designed to identify ways in
which the Group could further enhance its operational efficiency and
measure staff performance in a fairer and more comprehensive way.
Meanwhile, the Group continued to facilitate the development of its
staff through various internal and external training sessions which
were carried out in compliance with all regulations of anti-Pandemic
measures.

For more details of staff development and training initiatives, please
refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report on
pages 34 to 64.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group considered social responsibilities a crucial element to make
it sustainable. On top of regular donations to the Community Chest
and other charitable organizations and sponsorship to photographic-
related or sports events, the Group’s Social Responsibility Team also
organised a variety of voluntary services in FY2021/22, and services
were targeted at those in need in the community, especially physically
and mentally handicapped, elderlies, patients with Down Syndrome
and abandoned animals. All these activities were carried out in
compliance with anti-Pandemic measures. The Group's efforts turned
to fruitful results. For details, please refer to pages 14 to 15 under the
section of “Awards and Corporate Social Responsibility” and pages 34
to 64 of the ESG Report.
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Executive Directors’ Information

HITEFER

MR. SUN TAO HUNG STANLEY
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEQO”)

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2006, and the Deputy Chairman
of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 1
January 2009 and 3 September 2012, respectively. He joined the
Group in 2005 and is currently responsible for the supervision of the
overall marketing and sales areas as well as the Group's business
development. He is also the managing director of Fuji Photo Products
Company, Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Sun has worked in Fuji Photo Film Co., Ltd., both in Japan
and the United States of America, where he conducted marketing
work for their imaging business. Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor of Science
degree and a Master of Business Administration degree from Cornell
University, Ithaca, New York, USA. He is the elder son of Dr. Sun Tai Lun
Dennis, Chairman and a Non-executive Director of the Company, and
the elder brother of Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, an Executive Director of the
Company and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group.

MR. SUN TAO HSI RYAN
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER (*COO”)

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, aged 40, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2018. He was also appointed as
Chief Operating Officer of the Group on 1 April 2019, responsible
for the Group’s operation management, particularly in IT and logistics
sectors. Mr. Sun graduated from Widener University, Pennsylvania,
USA with double degrees in Accounting Business Administration and
Hospitality Management. Besides, he had spent 3 years in a military
academy in his high school years. Mr. Sun is a member of The Y. Elites
Association (“YEA") and a vice president of the Business Development
Research Association in YEA. He is also the chairman of Raimondi
Alumni Association. Mr. Sun is currently the managing director of
Fotomax (F.E.) Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Sun is the second
son of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the Chairman and a Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the younger brother of Mr. Sun Tao
Hung Stanley, an Executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the
Company and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

MS. CHAN WAI KWAN RITA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (“CFO”) & COMPANY
SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company and Chief Financial Officer of the Group
with effect from 1 April 2019. Ms. Chan is also the Company
Secretary of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in 2005 and
is currently responsible for financial reporting, tax and investment
advisory, company secretarial matters as well as corporate resources
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chan had worked in
one of the "Big 4" accounting firms in Hong Kong for 6 years. She
has over 15 years of professional experiences in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) degree in Professional Accountancy from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a graduate of its
2018 Financial Controllership Programme.
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Non-executive Directors’ Information

FEITEFER

DR. SUN TAI LUN DENNIS
CHAIRMAN

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, BBS, JP, aged 71, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 6 July 1994 and was then
appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 31 March 1996.
Dr. Sun was re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 14 August 2020. Dr. Sun is currently
a member of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Dr. Sun is the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Photo Marketing
Association, Life Honorary Advisor of The Photographic Society of
Hong Kong, and Vice Patron of The Community Chest of Hong Kong.

Dr. Sun is the Honorary President of The Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 896), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999
and appointed Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Dr. Sun holds a Doctor of Pharmacy in the University of Oklahoma, USA
and a Doctorate degree in Philosophy in Business Administration from
Southern California University for Professional Studies, USA. He is the
Honorary Fellow of City University of Hong Kong and Chapter Honoree
of City University of Hong Kong Chapter of Beta Gamma Sigma. He is
the son of Mr. Sun Chieh Yeh, former Honorary Chairman and founder
of the Company. Dr. Sun is the father of Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley,
an Executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the Company and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, an
Executive Director of the Company and Chief Operating Officer of the
Group.

MR. FUNG YUE CHUN STEPHEN

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen, aged 46, was appointed as the Non-
executive Director of the Company on 8 April 2015. He is currently a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Fung joined the
Fung Group in 2001. He is the founder and the chief executive officer
of Fung Kids Fashion (Holding) Limited, overseeing the children’s
apparel, footwear and accessories retailing business. He has extensive
experience in the retail industry and holds positions as a director of
Fung Retailing Limited, a director of Toys“R”Us Asia and a director of
Suhyang Networks Co., Ltd. Starting from 2019, Mr. Fung has been
appointed as the Fung Group’s China President, representing the
interests of the Fung Group in China and driving growth in this critical
market.

Prior to joining the Fung Group, Mr. Fung gained his experiences by
working in an internet incubator and a private equity company in New
York. He was also the Vice President of Portfolio Management at Aetos
Japan, an asset management firm that focuses on real estate assets.
Mr. Fung graduated from Boston College with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics and holds an MBA degree of the International
University of Japan.

BRAWISL
EE

BAMGIELBBS > P P IRET15E 1R1994F7H6H
BEZEATATZHITES  BEER19965F34
BNHEZEARABREE -HELTERNTESSR
FEAIERITESE > H2020E88 148 B THEAT
KRBEAGEREEN -BRELTRALXQATRS
ZEENERFMNEEGHME

BRELSHEEREERGRKELBEER -BTEEE
PEXELEBRBREBAGELERER

BRETAEEEEEERIRETE  THEBR
BERARAR ORI 896) (—BREBH
ERFBARRE (TH3ZF) EHHAR) Bk
BITES BRI LI1909F EBIFEMER » ERN
2002 F EHRERKNTHLT

BEIRHEERRREEREEL S22
KB Southern California University for Professional
Studies T EE@ L2 TEEBHHABHKE
Pt R EHBIHT AZBeta Gamma SigmaD BEE
BE - REARBFEREBEIERAIMABREEL
E2F BREBLIREARTHITESRAETRERAEE
EITHARBEDNLEARERBDPITESRE
EREEEEAEREBEREEZRH -

BHERE

BRERE > REA6H > FR2015F4B8HEREA
RABFRITESR RALRAEZZEEGHE -
BARER2001EMABRER HAF ERE (F
) BRATNAIMARITHRAES EEHRER
H HEREMSEER ENSETEERES
KE RTABKSEEEERAR A Nk 3+
B3 M B Suhyang Networks Co., Ltd.ZEZ° E2019
FE BhEEZTABRERTHEES 1B
BRERNRPENER T HEZEARTHNER

EMASRERF  BREBBE—BEBARE
POKR—EEAONLEEE AR TIFESER-
1R 75 BAetos Japan (—EEINEMEEENEE
EEAT) WAEASEERBH BELEEENKL
BN BAKEEXELEM RERFHEER
AREBTHEEELT R

Annual Report 2021/22 FEZERS

31



32

Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information

BILIERITE

Bl

MR. LI KA FAI DAVID

Mr. Li Ka Fai David, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 September 2004. He
is currently the chairman of the audit committee, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Li is currently the senior advisor of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited. He is a fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, UK.

Mr. Li is an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the audit committee, a member of the nomination committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of Cosmopolitan
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 120); an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee, a member
of the nomination committee and the chairman of the remuneration
committee of China Merchants Port Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 144); an independent non-executive director, a member of the
audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited (Stock Code:
232); an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the nomination committee and a member of
the remuneration committee of Goldlion Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
533); an independent non-executive director and the chairman of the
audit committee of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group
Limited (Stock Code: 563) and an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of audit committee of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 897), which are all listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Li retired as an independent non-executive director
and ceased to be the chairman of the audit committee, a member
of the nomination committee and the chairman of the remuneration
committee of CR Construction Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1582), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect from the
conclusion of the company’s annual general meeting held on 25 June
2021.

MR. LIU JIAN HUI ALLAN (FORMERLY KNOWN AS “LIU HUI
ALLAN”)

Mr. Liu Jian Hui Allan, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 June 2007. He is
currently a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Liu
graduated from the Beijing University of International Business and
Economics and the Westminster University of United Kingdom. Mr.
Liu has over 30 years of experience in foreign direct investments in
China, especially in the consumer and retail sectors. He was formerly
the president of The China Retail Fund LDC, a direct investment fund
he founded in 1996, co-sponsored by American International Group.
Mr. Liu has also been a partner of the private equity business of PAG,
a Pan Asian asset management group currently managing close to
US$50 billion. Mr. Liu is currently serving as a partner of an US asset
management company, Versant Group and its Asia chairman.
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DR. WONG CHI YUN ALLAN

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan, GBS, MBE, JP, aged 71, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 October
1997. He is currently the chairman of the nomination committee, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Dr. Wong is the chairman, an executive
director and the group chief executive officer of VTech Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 303), a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
and he co-founded in 1976. Dr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from The University of Hong Kong,
a Master of Science degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin, Madison and an Honorary Doctorate
of Technology from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is the
deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of The
Bank of East Asia, Limited (Stock Code: 23), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 66), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (2015-2020) and Li & Fung Limited, the listing of its shares
on the Stock Exchange was withdrawn with effect from 27 May 2020
(1999-2020).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE ~ LB RERBHRS

MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD

The Group is delighted to present its eighth ESG report (the “Report”)
of the Group. As a prominent brand in Hong Kong, the Group has
remained steadfast in bringing quality services and products for over
half a century.

Simultaneously, the Group remains vigilant to the potential
environmental and social impacts that its business may exert on the
environment and the communities where it operates. Consequently,
the Group has been incorporating diverse sustainable practices
and measures, deemed feasible and beneficial by the Group’s ESG
Committee, into its daily operations progressively.

The Group’'s ESG Committee, chaired by Chief Operating Officer
("COQ"), has the responsibility for overseeing the Group's sustainability
policies, initiatives, and performance, principally in respect of the
environment, workplace, supply chains and community. It also defines
the Group's sustainability strategies and sets objectives and reports to
the Board.

The Board has the overall responsibility of overseeing the Group's
ESG risk management and internal controls with the support of the
top management. A review of the Group's approaches in addressing
the ESG risks and opportunities is conducted regularly to ensure the
effectiveness.

The Board believes that its focus on product quality and protection
of personal data is particularly beneficial to the Group's achievement
of its goal of establishing an excellent corporate image. Therefore,
the Group regularly evaluates its quality assurance metrics and data
protection practice based on predetermined targets. These goals and
evaluations are effective indicators that reflect efficiency and control.

The Group has incorporated different green office initiatives, including
the development of e-forms and materials recycling to further the
Group's commitment to the reduction of environmental and social
impact. Despite the unprecedented circumstances brought on by the
COVID-19 pandemic which has already lasted for a couple of years, the
Group remains steadfast in working towards a more sustainable future
through active collaboration with its stakeholders.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This Report specifies the ESG activities, challenges and measures
being taken during FY2021/22 (the “Reporting Period”), which runs
consistent with the Annual Report of the Group. Aligned with the
previous reporting practice, the scope of this ESG Report continues
to cover operations of the head office and the retail and distribution
businesses in Hong Kong, which represent the core operation of the
Group.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”)
set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, and is prepared with
reference to the fundamental reporting principles set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide.

1. Materiality:
A materiality assessment was performed to review ESG
materiality based on stakeholder engagement processes. The
results determined material ESG aspects to the Group.

2. Quantitative:
ESG performances are kept track and presented in a systematic
manner. Where applicable, year-to-year data are compared, and
the implication is discussed.

3. Balance:
This Report provides an unbiased picture of the ESG
performance of the Group — both achievements and rooms for
improvement are discussed.

4. Consistency:
Consistent methodologies are adopted in this Report to allow
for a fair comparison of performance over time.

The Group has established internal controls and a formal review
process to ensure that any information presented in this ESG Report
is as accurate and reliable as feasible. The ESG Committee of the
Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and disclosure
of relevant management approaches and key performance indicators
("KPIs”). This Report has been approved by the ESG Committee and
the Board.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report IBiE -t &R EARE

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Group's ESG Committee, chaired by COO, has the responsibility
for overseeing the Group’s sustainability policies, initiatives, and
performance, principally in respect of the environment, workplace,
supply chains and community. It also defines the Group's sustainability
strategies and sets objectives. The following is the reporting structure
and the composition of the ESG Committee:

Board of Directors

EFG

RiIE-HERERNEE

FEEZERE - HERERZESHBEFEEERES
BEXE TEEEMIRE TS HEERK
HESEEEAERZIHEERR HBREAER
BRI ESERZ T RHEEBRRLTIIAR
BRI HEREAEZE G REEERARNT :

ESG Committee:
COO (Chairman), CEO, CFO
RE-HEBERELEZET: —
BEEERR (F/E) 1THRAEH
ElEE
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has the overall responsibility of overseeing the Group's
ESG risk management and internal controls with the support of the
top management. A review of the Group’s approaches in addressing
the ESG risks and opportunities is conducted regularly to ensure the
effectiveness.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Effective feedback from stakeholders contributes to the impartial and
sustainable evaluation of the ESG performance. Consequently, through
a variety of channels, including survey and regular engagement
sessions, the Group engages in regular communication with
stakeholders in an open, honest, and positive manner.

The following table shows the Group's stakeholders, respective
communication channels and their expectations and concerns being
raised:

Stakeholders
&

Communication channels

BERE

Employees e Stakeholder & Materiality
== Assessment Survey

FHREREEZMTERE

e Regular training and meetings
EHAE I K & %

e Regular performance reviews
EHARBFEZ

Bk ERE

B BEEABNIR TRAEELAER
BRE - HEREAAREERNNEENEHE
F-ERBNAEREHRE HERELARK
HIBR S i URGRSHITZ AN

BirEsR

RO ENARREANN P ERFEFGIRE 1
EhEARE -HAt - AEEBESEEERE
BEBERERZEEGHE UAR HERREN
BELEFHEEHBR

TRITAEBZFHNE HEBERERKRER
HAVHRE R RE

Expectations and concerns

HAZ KRR

e Operational direction, strategy,
objective and policy

KA RS BIRREBUER

e Remuneration package
il rid

e Employee development and training
& 8 28 B K35

Non-profit organizations (NPOs) e Stakeholder & Materiality

e Employee’s participation

R RIS GEE RIS Assessment Survey BEE2H
FREREEMTGHRAS . . .
ear and comprehensive community
e Community activities and partner participation policy
programs B EENTESEEBER
HEEH R B8 .k
easonable resources allocated to
e Company's website social and environmental issues
ACIE D M ERIREZESESALER
Suppliers e Stakeholder & Materiality e Fair and open procurement
HAER Assessment Survey RERFAKE
B EREE GRS . Comni |
ompliant operation
e Supplier management meetings BREE

HEMEEE SR

e Supplier audit
R EZ
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has developed a Stakeholder and Materiality Assessment
Survey to ensure engagement activities are carried out on a systematic
and target-oriented basis. The summary of the engagement strategy is

as follows:

Select & invite

stakeholders

BIERBAERDE

Visualize &
report result

Interpret result

BRI E &R

Alignment with key
internal stakeholder

HIBABFHMELRE

[ CQuantitative assessment

E{LH{

questionnaire

RS

[ Research / analysis /
reporting

BRI HERERRS

BEEME M
FEECHEFNERBEEIGALT  URRERS
HEB ARG R HHE M METT S EEKR 2 HE
wmr

Distribute
guestionnaire

ke 5

Design

Analyze result

DTSR

[ Qualitative analysis
EMD

TV =

To ensure the Group's disclosures reflect its significant ESG impacts,
the Group undertook an online Stakeholder and Materiality
Assessment Survey during the last financial year, i.e., Financial Year
2020/21 ("FY2020/21"), to assess the materiality of the topics.
Stakeholders of different categories were included in the survey. In
view of the fact that the nature of the core business of the Group and
the reporting scope remains unchanged, the result of the materiality
assessment continues to provide valid insights into ESG issues as
viewed by different stakeholder groups, thus enabling the Group to
develop effective long-term ESG strategies.

The outcome of the materiality assessment survey is presented in the

following materiality matrix:

45

External (NPOs, Suppliers)
SMER (FEZRFIHEAS  HFER)

3.5

2.5

38
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Ranking of ESG Materiality - External vs. Internal
IRIR-HE R EAEEEE R — SRR A AR

Procurement and supply chain

Product integrity
misE

Corporate governance

Health and safety H
management and risk management
R AT EERRE EREARAREE
(]

Caring for the

Community \

FiRHtE ° °
[ )

Product environmental
stewardship ®
ERIRAEE o

Talent Management

X

Information security and

C personal data protection

BEREEREAERHRE
AZI‘E:E ®  Equal Opportunities
FERE

Employee benefits
and welfare

B SRR

© Soild waste and e . .
labl nti-competitive practice
B¢y
Energy and climate
protection
BERRRIRRE
2.2 2.4 2.6 2.8 3

Internal (Employees)

AEs (lBS)
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List of ESG topics by materiality assessment results:

Ranking
BF

1

Topics

B3

Product integrity
EmiEE

UEEMTEERFZRE HERELEEE
BT

Descriptions
3t
The Group’s management practices and commitment

to ensure product quality.

FEBARRERBRFARBAZEEL EREAE-

Corporate governance and risk
EEERREAR

The Group’s governance practices and processes to
manage risks and anti-corruption as well as increase
its transparency in governance and risk control.

FEEREEARBKRESUAKRNERREREE
HEENEREMRAZERAERERF -

Information security and personal data protection

EERREREAERRE

The Group’s management practices and commitment
to ensure information security and personal data
protection.

FEARBRREERZERBEABRERRBZE
BT R

Health and safety
RERZE

The Group's efforts in managing all aspects of health
and safety to reduce the risk of accidents or injuries
for its employees, as well as employees of contractors
and sub-contractors.

FEBARBEHEEURARBRRNAEZEBZES
NERIETRR REBERRZEEHEMT
HEEE A -

Equal opportunities
TEHE

The Group's efforts to protect the human rights
relating to equal opportunity, diversity, and anti-
discrimination of its staff; and ensure human
rights are respected by its business partners, sub-
contractors, and suppliers.

FEENRFREAEIZEFTERE TR R
RZAE DTHERFRHEBBH REEBAREEEE
EAERIHE -

Talent management

AFEE

The Group's efforts in nurturing human capital and
in the creation of greater opportunities for employee
career progression.

FEERBEEAT RABEENBENRRIGESH
BRI HAE
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List of ESG topics by materiality assessment results (Continued):

Ranking
HF

5

Topics

B3

Employee benefits and welfare

fEEREREF

NEEUHTEERFFZRE - HERELREER
BT @ :

Descriptions

it

The Group's efforts to protect the employee benefits
and welfare relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods and other benefits and welfare of its staff;
and ensure employee benefits and welfare are
respected by its business partners, sub-contractors,
and suppliers.

FrEBAREEEEZEFNRRE BERSEA -
TR REREMEDSREN 2 EEED KB
Ao URARHEBBH RARBRMUEHEERS
o R ABF PR HEEE A

Anti-competitive practice

R#BFITH

The Group's fairness in managing its business and
prohibits all behaviour that prevents, restrict, or
distort competition.

FEBMBEEHER BREMAKE RESHEiH
RPTRORTEe

Procurement and supply chain management

RERMHEEER

The Group’s approach to manage its procurement
process and the relationships with suppliers, sub-
contractors including environmental and labour
aspects.

FERREEARBREFREMEERIAEBN
RIEKRE TELENRGARIRZ 5o

Caring for the community

Rt E

The Group's approach to engage with and respond to
communities’ needs.

FEEABHEKOEHEREEMRRRZ T i o

Product environmental stewardship
EmiREEE

The Group’s approaches to manage the use of
packaging materials in its operations and the strategy
of selecting sustainable packaging materials and
reducing material consumption.

FEBBEEREERMBZBRYBARIRZA
# o IR & BRE A 78 B R YRL RO L B FE YL PR
PR Z ZRBg -

Solid waste and recyclables

EBE B R Y R B U4

The Group's approaches to manage waste and
recyclables and reduce waste generation from its
operations.

FERAEBRERYREBYIURBR DR EERE
EERYFTERENZ 77 #f o

10

Energy and climate protection
BEIR R SRUAE IR o8

The Group’s approaches to reduce energy (e.g.,
electricity and fuel) consumption and carbon emission
of its operations.

AEEABR VR BNEBNRRE) HEREEEN
B HF PR ERE Z 75 &t ©
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The most concerned material topics are “Product integrity”,
“Corporate governance and risk” and “Information security and
personal data protection”, followed by “Health and safety” and “Equal
opportunities”.

The Group believed that appropriate and effective risk management
policies and internal control systems for ESG issues are in place and
confirmed the information disclosed in the ESG Report meets the ESG
Reporting Guide requirement.

RRFAEINEARZES ERESE  TREERR
R KR MEERZ2REABRRE  HRA 2R
Rz RITE®E -

[N

FEMBEERRE HERELGREFEEESR
MOREBREERRKRABEERR  WHETDIRE
HEREARERENENFTARE - HEXRER
HERSIZRE -

A.  ENVIRONMENT A IR

1. Greenhouse Gas Emissions 1 B E BB
The Group's total greenhouse gas emissions (“GHG RBEREHE AEBRERBR
Emission”) during the Reporting Period were g (CRERBEHHU) 49%890
approximately 890 tonnes COze (“tCO2e") with an W_EtHREE2 (M _|EtHKE
intensity of approximately 1.7 tCOze per employee. 2l BENASLEEIVTEZR

{EiREE-
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) from purchased KEIINBETNEIZRERIEHER
electricity was the major source of the Group's GHG (BE2) BAEERERBIKRN
emissions, followed by direct GHG emissions (Scope FERF ERAEERBZLEW
1) from the fuel combustion of 5 group-owned EURO BMBEAPEENERRAERBHK
VI trucks. Disposal of paper waste contributed to the (BEN) - AEFBHMBEBAER
Group's other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3). R (BE3) REEBEBEEREK-
The Group has established a gradual GHG emission AEBERIZS R BEREE
reduction pathway with a long-term perspective as MR ZREE WU ES
a directional target. Thus, the Group has established FEEEZE -EHIL #EELAER
internal guidelines to promote its environmental policy ZIRRBER  AEBBHIE RIS
and put in place various energy-saving initiatives as 5| W IRER AR & A 3R AR AT
stated in Section A.3 of this Report. EIEEREFEHE ©
The total GHG emissions remained relative stable during RSB REREBEHRES
the Reporting Period. HREHIEE -
Scope of GHG Emissions  Emission Source Emission (tCOze) Intensity (Emission/Employee) Total Emission (In percentage)
BEREBHNEE BERIRR HE E_atRES) BE e/ E8) EHE UEDEE)
FY2021/22 FY2020221 FY2019/20 FY2021/22 FY202021 FY201920 FY2021/22 FY2020221 FY2019/20
Scope 1
HE1
Direct Emission Vehicles Fuel 42.12 48.44 50.81 0.08 0.09 0.10 4.8% 6.1% 3.9%
Consumption

BEHH BEHFEME
Scope 2
#E2
Indirect Emission Electricity 827.75 734.75 1,219.00 1.56 1.40 2.31 93.4% 92.0% 94.6%
[aEE37 )l
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emission  Paper Waste 16.51 15.28 18.23 0.03 0.03 0.03 1.9% 1.9% 1.4%
Hit RS BEAR
Total 88639 79847  1288.04 1.67 152 2.44 100% 100% 100%
k)

Note: Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

Table 1 — Amount of GHG Emissions during the Reporting
Period

MizE : HRCEOEAA > MBEMNER RS
FRHR -

RI-REHENBEREHRKE
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Air Emissions

Nitrogen oxides (“NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx")
and particulate matter (“PM"”) are the common air
pollutants being generated during the Group’s business
activities. Fuel combustion of group-owned trucks was
the major source of air emissions.

ERINE
FEREFEHELENTER TR
m—mwaaalty fastyn)
mEEy (MRE)) REFF
(TR FHF1) - REFAEBER
BIRELHE D ERFNEN EER
R

Type of Air Emissions Emission Source Emission (kg)
BE R EY BERR IR HmE ()

FY2020/21 FY2019/20
SOx Vehicles fuel consumption 0.28 0.30
k=R ety BEHFERE
NOx 277.76 295.88
agsity
PM 27.53 29.33
BEN T

Note: Figures for FY2020/21 and FY2019/20 were restated
due to the adoption of emission factors stipulated in
the ESG Reporting Guide instead of the emission factors
referenced from other sources.

Table 2 — Amount of Air Emissions during the Reporting Period

The Group continues to explore ways to further reduce
its direct and indirect emissions, for example:

o Encourage employees to use video or telephone
conferences to reduce unnecessary business
travels;

. Implement centralised management of vehicle
use; and

. Give preference to local suppliers to further

reduce indirect emissions from logistics beyond
the Group's operation boundary.

Thanks to the wider adoption of virtual conferences in
the past few years and a more effective use of vehicles,
air emissions from the Group reduced steadily.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of material non-compliance with air and GHG emissions
related laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311) of
Hong Kong.

Energy Consumption and Conservation

The Group attaches great importance to implementing
policies to better govern the effective use of resources
in view of the scarcity of finite natural resources. The
Group has established a gradual energy consumption
reduction pathway with a long-term perspective as a
directional target.
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In order to enhance energy efficiency, the Group
has substituted targeted physical servers with virtual
servers which reduced significant energy consumption.
Moreover, the Group encourages employees to share
the responsibilities in the Group’s ESG strategy. Staff
Handbook stipulates energy conservation principle and
approaches. All employees must follow the adopted
measures and strive for the energy efficiency. The Group
regularly reviews the related policies to ensure they are
in line with the best feasible practices.

The Group has also performed the following measures
to promote energy conservation:

. Turn off idle electrical appliances and
equipment, lighting and air conditioning when
leaving the workplace;

o Maintain air conditioning temperature at
appropriate level;

. Prefer using low-power electrical appliances or
products and avoid using unnecessary high-
power equipment;

. Replace conventional lamps with LED lights
gradually; and

o Perform various sustainable procurement
measures to advocate green product awareness.

During the Reporting Period, total energy consumption
remained relatively stable.

AREERNER AERERER
AIRSFE R D ERERS MK
KRB BETRHFE IS > REEE
BESSEAERNRE - HER
ERARBNEE - BEIFMRED
BERAKRGE 2RESNAET
FRERER AV > W45 IR S AEIR3K
Ro AL HE AR U
HEREERERTEG

7 £ [ 78 B SR ER LA ¥ B 3 R

BE:

. PAEAM B Eas Rkt > U
RERMATFR SRR
IREARZE ;

. REFREEFEEEN
KF

. BREAEEEERNE
o BREAFOENGRE

BERRME 5

. B ULEDIE B R ERIE
Bk

. RENZ E A FE R
RESKEEM-

REB SR SEREEEEBRITE
Fo

Resources Unit Consumption Intensity (Consumption/Employee)
&R B HES BE (2 ES8)
FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2019/20 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2019/20
Electricity kWh 1,923,111.00 1,985,796.00 2,101,404.00 3,628.51 3,811.51 3,987.48
85 TRE
Fuel L 15,977.60 17,471.17 18,325.29 30.15 33.53 34.77
JR#E [FH
kWh' 158,400.28 173,207.38  181,675.03 298.87 329.92 344.73
FRE
Total Energy kWh 2,081,511.28 2,159,003.38 2,283,079.03 3,927.38 4,112.39 4,332.22
Consumption
BERAHIER FTRE
Water m? 573.01 552.01 566.03 1.08 1.06 1.07
7k IHK

Note: Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

Table 3 — Resources Consumption during the Reporting Period

Conversion was based on CDP Technical Note: Conversion of fuel data to MWh

EIR T E (COPRAMTIRFA | BB BUIREIREH)

Mz AREEEA HEMEMRRYS
ZEHEA -

RI-NBRSHBNEREFES
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Mitigation of Waste

The Group adheres to the principles of waste
management hierarchy, remains steadfast in proper
handling and disposal of hazardous waste and strives to
maximize the recycling of non-hazardous waste.

Chemical waste generated by the Group is collected
and processed by licensed chemical waste collectors.
The Group has put in place step-by-step instructions
for handling chemical waste. Photofinishing solution
generated from the retail photoshops are collected
and handled periodically by collectors approved by the
Environmental Protection Department of Hong Kong.
The Group also implemented clear guidelines on the
temporary storage of hazardous waste. Hazardous
wastes are stored separately from other general wastes
to ensure safety and prevent contamination or spillage.

The Group has established a gradual waste reduction
pathway with a long-term perspective as a directional
target. Relevant measures and reduction initiatives
were implemented to handle non-hazardous waste
generation from its business operations. Wastes such as
photographic paper, paper, metal foil, fluorescent tubes,
photocopier cartridges and batteries, are collected
and processed by qualified waste recyclers. The Group
has implemented a waste management approach and
initiatives including but not limited to the following:

o Minimise the general use of office paper
through duplex printing and reusing single-sided
paper;

° Use refillable stationery whenever feasible;

. Use rechargeable batteries whenever feasible;

o Distribute, file and archive documents

electronically to reduce printing;

o Place recyclable products into the bins at the
designated recycling areas; and

. Set up collection boxes to recycle papers,
box files, plastic folders, aluminium cans,
rechargeable battery and recharger.

The Group has also implemented digitalization process
on system flows, e-forms, and e-invoice. Starting from
FY2021/22, the internal processes has been gradually
replaced by digitalized forms instead of physical forms
with a benefit of minimizing wastepaper disposal.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of material non-compliance with waste disposal-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354) of Hong Kong.

Type of Waste Emission Source Amount of Waste (tonnes)

FRERERRB > RER T A NEBEM
BEAETERBERYNERER
RER (BEBRENREBEME
354 (BEM R ERH)) ©

Intensity (Emission/Employee)

EEEYER BRI BEEYE () EE HnEB8)
FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2019/20 FY2021/22 FY2020/21 FY2019/20

Hazardous waste  Photofinishing 60.23 62.60 89.79 0.11 0.12 0.17
Solution

BEEEN FRENAR S

Non-hazardous General 3.44 3.18 3.80 0.01 0.01 0.01

waste Operation

BREBEEM —REE

Total 63.66 65.78 93.59 0.12 0.13 0.18

1z

Note: Numbers may not add up due to rounding. MisE : BRI R A BEBEMERS

LRMam o

Table 4 — Amount of Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste RAI-BEHEEENESAREEEE

Produced during the Reporting Period me

During the Reporting Period, the amount of hazardous RSB FREENEEBEEY

waste and non-hazardous generated remained relatively REEEEYEEREHIEE

stable.

Water Management 5. KEE

The Group acknowledges that sustainable and
responsible use of water resources is an important
part of social responsibility. Water stress can be caused
by excessive demand and overconsumption of water
resource. Due to its business nature, the Group does
not use or discharge a significant amount of water.
Nonetheless, the Group has established a gradual water
consumption reduction pathway with a long-term
perspective as a directional target. The Group has been
strengthening its water-saving promotion by posting
signage near water faucets to remind employees to
conserve water.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of material non-compliance with water discharge-
related laws and regulations, including but not limited
to the Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358) of
Hong Kong.

In the Reporting Period, water consumption remained
relatively stable and did not have any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose.
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Use of Packaging Materials

The Group promotes the minimum use of packaging
materials in all business activities. During the Reporting
Period, approximately 606 tonnes (FY2020/21: 700
tonnes) of packaging materials were used, including
carton box (approximately 326 tonnes; FY2020/21:
305 tonnes), bubble bag (approximately 277
tonnes; FY2020/21: 380 tonnes) and plastic wrap
(approximately 3 tonnes; FY2020/21: 15 tonnes).

At shop level, staff will advise customers to minimise
the use of plastic bags, while at logistic levels, strings
are used for delivery and pick-up instead of using plastic
bags. These efforts enabled the Group to continuously
reduce the use of packaging materials.

The total amount of packaging materials used during
the Reporting Period reduced by 13%, thanks to the
Group's effort in the implementation of reduction and
recycling measures.

BEYHEE
NEBERBEERTHMEEREL)
BaEyil o RSB FRAN
BRI 4976060 (FY2020/21 :
700MF) > B IEARFE (A9326M ;
FY2020/21 : 305M) ~ R/ (49277
WE ; FY2020/21 : 380ME) KB (49
3ME ; FY2020/21 © 15M ) o

REEEE BEIGERETAAS
W ERBRE MY RER
BEEXRREEAERAGBFABEN
R-ZEBNLEEBMEENTER
DEEMERER -

RESHE SXMBNEERE
BURA13% 0 S A BT
R R WA TR PR R B9 ES 7] o

Bubble Bag
eI
Carton Box 0
AR Use of Packaging élg))/o
Materials
BERYHNEZE
(44%)

Plastic Warp

[

(2%)

(FY2020/21 figuresBi i)

Chart 1 — Amount of Packaging Materials Used during the
Reporting Period
B - REHENEEMHEE
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The Environment and Natural Resources 7. REREZAER

The Group strives to fulfil its responsibility to minimise AEBBHEITHEE BEBE
the potential negative environmental impacts. The NemREZERERHR K&
Group is not directly involved in the raw material B IEE RS REMM RS
extraction process, but places great emphasis on BroEXAEEBmASRUEGEES
ensuring the raw materials are responsibly sourced. In HNIRBEM K o B It > REBIRM
achieving this, the Group adopts industry best practices TEREBER L EHERNEHE
and regularly monitors its supply chain management FEREEER -HlN AEERA
practices. For example, the Group's interim reports and REHNPHRRERERLFER
annual reports issued to the public were printed on XEEE&E’H&EE% A E IR
paper sourced from responsible sources and certified g (TFSCl) BB MRRENRI o
by Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”). All printing Z!X%ﬁﬁﬁ B B & EN Il 4R SR 39 58
paper the Group uses is certified with ISO 9706, 100% iBISO 9706:8FE ~100% A F&TH
elemental chlorine free ("ECF”), from 100% sustainably (TECF1) “ERBE100% A FHESE
managed forests, and manufactured by paper mill BIFRM O W HBEBISO 9001 EEE
certified with ISO 9001 Quality Management System HEAKISO 14001 EEEA
and 1SO 14001 Environmental Management systems. MERBREE - RRSEHPBEA &K
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware EEHMANBEABRERBARAE
of any significant direct impact on the environment and FHNEAERZEE

natural resources.

MIX
Paper |_supportlng

,m;.Euu

responsible forestry

i%ﬁlﬁ%ﬁ%
Ew'scmg FSC™ C176382 FsSc

wwiscog  FSC™ C176382

The Group's interim reports and annual reports issued to the public were printed on paper
certified by FSC.

A5 [ A A R 2 AR B R HA R & I SF R I 5 A AR FSCRUEE RO AR SR EN R

Climate Change 8. mIREE

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and has AEBTEREBEE L EAFR

identified typhoon and extreme weather event as the B RKiRiERAEGDEARBEE

primary risk from climate change. In response to this BROTERB -BEBZAR

risk, the Group has established measures to mitigate AEBBEHES THEE LURE K

and reduce the adverse impact caused by typhoons and BAOREKRBHERAREGHETR

extreme weather events on employees and properties, MEBRNANEE Z5HEHEE

the measures include but are not limited to: FEERRR

. Implementing preventive measures at retail . TELEBRERRMHEZE
stores which are vulnerable to flooding at the EAKNEEEBETER
time of severe rainstorm; 18

. Instructing employees to ensure all windows . S B THRMRITRRIE
are closed before typhoon and conduct regular BB S R I E 8RR
window inspection; and BER &

. Purchasing insurance to cover potential losses . BEREUBHEEAKE
caused by natural disasters. BB BEEK
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B. SOCIAL B.
The Group strives to build a safe, healthy, fair, and non-
discriminative work environment and maintain a harmonious
relationship with employees, to bring together all employees to
promote the long-term sustainable development of the Group.

The Group's social policy adheres to the following principles:

1. Respect the Employee
All employees’ fundamental equality of dignity and
rights is to be respected so that they are treated justly
and equitably. Employees who demonstrate outstanding
work initiatives are identified and cultivated to reach
their greatest potential.

2. Aspire to Perfection
Together with the delivery of the highest product quality
to customers, all employees are encouraged to provide
their best service in achieving excellence.

3. Serve the Community
Employees shall delight and satisfy every customer
by providing attentive service. The Group maintains
a peaceful and harmonious working atmosphere and
advocates a modest and humble lifestyle.

4. Contribute to the Society
All employees are encouraged to fulfil the obligations to
promote social prosperity through participating in social
welfare activities and comply with the law.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited S 8BiESRMERABRAT
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Employment Practice

The success of a corporate relies on human resources.
The Group is thus committed to providing a quality
workplace for the employees. On top of nurturing a
safe, supportive and collaborative working environment,
the Group also values the career development of
employees and labour rights protection. To fulfil this
commitment, the Group provides a fair and safe
work environment with equal opportunities to staff
and embraces diversity regardless of nationality, race,
religion, gender, age, physical abilities, pregnancy, or
family status.

The Group continually reforms and improves its
employee compensation policies and systems and fully
considers increasing employee compensation in tandem
with the Group’s performance, in an effort to ensure
that employees are rewarded fairly based on their
contribution. The Group endorses a comprehensive
performance appraisal system under which promotion
opportunities and salary adjustments are based on
individual work performance. Based on this equitable
principle, the system successfully motivates employees
and promotes the realisation of self-value.

The Group also treasures the communication with
employees. Staff opinion survey was conducted in
October 2021 to collect opinions from employees.
The Group also launched a program named Straight
Talk which enables employees to directly meet
and communicate with management from various
departments.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, there were 530
employees (FY2020/21: 525) in the Group's workforce.
The majority the Group’s employees locates in Hong
Kong with around 70% are employed full-time,
employment turnover rate was 36%?.

2

BB &
EENRDEBRRANERE
I FEER DB EERMEED
IFIRIR-AEEFEEEREE
BB OB B TRIRIR » TR ER
EENHEERKRMES TR -
SEITZEE FEERETRM
ATMEZENITFRE LH#HEES
ofb A AREIBEE R R 18
B FE - BNV REARES
SNEIRMHTERE

FEMAE N EMTESESFME
RREIE RESERNEERTD
ZEESHFMER URFREESR
BHERESATRMN FEEX
FRENRRIZGE > REEH
ITERBEAREARERFE B
RE—RATRA &6 E R E
EBE REBREENER-

AEENMEEERRETHEB
R2021F10FETETIRRBAE
MIWEETER c AEBMIAHH—
B &Straight TalkWIEB 8T
FEMEEASHMANEEEEE K
BEo

BERSHER EEAB530%
B& (FY2020/21 : 5254) - AE&EH
BARBIMEEDUNEE HN70%
AERES EBNEEMKRIER
#36%2°

Employee turnover rate is calculated based on the employee departure during the Reporting Period, divided by the total number of
employees as at the end of the Reporting Period

EBERKREXDZRESHEERESABGRUNBREARNESBEAH -
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The employee compositions and turnover are illustrated

as follows:
Mainland China
FE
4, 1%
£ @, 1%)
Hong Kong
& Location of
Workforce
{E{RPRTEH
(521, 99%)

(FY2020/21 figures&i#$)

Chart 2 — Location of Workforce at the end of the
Reporting Period
B2 — R EHARNEFEFTTE

(6, 1%)
Employee
Distribution
by Employee Type
{EfEEanl 25
(131, 25%)
380, 72%
(388, 74%)
B Full-Time Part-Time Contract

E3 SR a4

(FY2020/21 figures&#%)

Chart 4 — Employee Distribution by Employment Type
at the end of the Reporting Period

B4 —-H SRR EBEENEDNEE D

BEMAMRRRAELEERDT :
Female
gegis
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(263, 50%)

Employee
Distribution

by Gender
k3l baxii
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B
(262, 50%)

(FY2020/21 figures#ii$)

Chart 3 — Employee Distribution by Gender at the end
of the Reporting Period

B3 —REHARZMERNE DOEE DM

(7, 1%)
o \ 96, 18%
(80, 15/0) (91’ 18‘%)
Employee
Distribution
by Age Group
(107, 20%) EfBEE4ER 25
(127, 24%)
(117, 22%)
B Age 18-24 Age 25-34 Age 35-44

18 245% 25 345% 35ZE445%

Age 45-54 Age 55-64 Age 65 or above

455458 S5ZE645% 65

(FY2020/21 figuresBii)

Chart 5 — Employees Distribution by Age Group at the
end of the Reporting Period

E5— R EHARIRFLHRAR B DHES DM
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Turnover Rate

By Gender b2 Al ) TR EEE

FY2021/22 FY2020/21
Male Bt 29% 27%
Female g 43% 29%
Overall B 36% 28%

Table 5 — Employee Turnover Rate by Gender

RS- IHURBI DR EEMKLEE

Turnover Rate

By Age Group HRERRMAER B i

FY2021/22 FY2020/21
18-24 years old 18F245% 86% 64%
25-34 years old 25F345% 59% 39%
35-44 years old 35F445% 15% 10%
45-54 years old ASFESARR 10% 11%
55-64 years old 55E645% 9% 13%
65 years old or above 655% 3 £ 67% 100%
Overall B 36% 28%

Table 6 — Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group

K6 —REHARNBIDEIERRKLL

x
Turnover Rate
By Geographical Region IR & 1 B9 i
FY2021/22 FY2020/21
Hong Kong 5B 37% 28%
Mainland China PR P9 3t 0% 0%
Overall BE 37% 28%

Table 7 — Employee Turnover Rate by Geographical Region

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
observes the employment regulations, relevant policies
and guidelines of the relevant jurisdictions where it
operates, including the Employment Ordinance (Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

R EMIBRIEEDHESRKLE

RESHE AEEREETEE
FREMBEREEEEENEER

B~ ERBCR KR53 B R IRG)
(BBERIESTR) RiEEHERD
(BBERIE282F)
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Labour Standards and Welfares

The Group recognises the value of a diverse and
skilled workforce and is committed to creating and
maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture in which all can thrive. The Group provides
employees with various welfare and benefits. Employees
are entitled to a discretionary performance bonus,
mandatory provident fund, medical welfare and hospital
allowance, various types of paid leaves (marriage, study
and examination, compensation, paternity, maternity,
and funeral leaves) in addition to annual leave and sick
leave. The Group also introduced birthday leave for all
employees, employees who have served for one year
can enjoy one full-paid birthday holiday every year on
their birthdays. The Group also increased special casual
leave to 4 days per year, covering additional issues
including applying personal documents, physiotherapy,
medical check, and COVID-19 vaccination.

In order to further enhance the retention of employees
at shop level, full-time new employees at shops who
have served continuously for 6 months or 12 months
could receive a new employee bonus of HK$5,000.

Details are set out in the Staff Handbook to ensure
transparency of information on the employees’
responsibilities and rights. The Group’s essential policies
and procedures are also included in the Staff Handbook
which is in line with the internal management policy.
This policy is developed in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations related to labour
standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with child and forced
labour-related laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Employment of Children Regulations
(Cap. 57, section 73) of Hong Kong.

There were no non-compliance cases noted concerning
labour standards laws and regulations during the
Reporting Period.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited S 8BiESRMERABRAT

B TIFRLER

FEBRBAZTIERMEANITEER
B BB RN EERREF
EREARGENRAEXIL &
FREANSSE—BFIR -AEBLE
ERHEREEINFE-EEARE
BRERREA BFHMEQEE
BREMNNERZEM FRTBR
SN SRR (BR-28
REAR -BR -FER ERNE
B -FEBTRPAIBEETISIALR
B RER—FNEINSFEH
AER—H2HEARA-T&H
TREHRERENESFIRH
ERRRREEAES MELRE-
BB R COVID-19G BB LI

E_o

RE—SRREEEERREENEE
tbR EERBOEA N1 2E R BIE
& 2R R E B R 5 15,0007
B E RS-

ERESEERENZFBEHNE
IFM URGFENEHRE-8T
FRTHELERMEZNBEKRE
FrRHanNBERBER BERDR
B T REMRMBERERKRE
RHE

PRIRERB > AER T ANBEM
BEREBTET KRIEH THIERH
ERRER (BEBRBRRERE
BIESTRE7MR(RA RERGD) ©

RESHE BERRAMTEST
BT REXRRIERNIBR



Employee Health and Safety

The Group has established safety measures and
procedures recommended by the Labour Department
and Occupational Safety and Health Council to fulfil its
commitment to providing and maintaining a safe and
healthy environment for all employees and customers.

The Group requires employees to strictly comply
with the safety policy and guidelines which specify
workflows, various safety measures and guidance as
well as employees’ responsibilities for their health and
safety at the workplace. In the daily operations of
the Group, the risk of work injury mainly arises from
manual handling operations. In order to protect the
safety and health of employees and to minimise the risk
involved, the Group advocates safe manual handling
operations through the provision of satisfactory working
conditions, good working practices, proper use of
mechanical aids and protective devices, adequate safety
and health information, and sufficient safety training.

In the Reporting Period, the Group arranged courses
covering topics on “First Aid in the Workplace”, “Health
Hints on the Use of Computer”, “More Exercise Smart
Work”, and Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
and Regulation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group found no
case of violation of laws and regulations related to
occupational safety and health, nor did it receive any
complaints about work conditions. Also, there was no
work-related death (FY2020/21 and FY2019/20: none)
and there were 109 days (FY2020/21: 62.5 days) lost
due to work injuries during the Reporting Period.

The Group strictly follows the relevant legislations in
Hong Kong including the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Factories and Industrial Undertakings
(Safety Officers and Safety Supervisors) Regulations
(Chapter 59 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Response to COVID-19

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has
taken prompt measures to safeguard its employees,
customers and business continuity. Apart from
complying with the public health measures of the
HKSAR government, the Group has also implemented
the COVID-19 procedures.

To reduce the chance of cross-infection among
employees at workplace, all employees and guests
were required to put on surgical masks and conduct
temperature checks before entering the Group's
premises. All employees were required to provide
negative result of Rapid Antigen Testing ("RAT") before
going to work since the outbreak of the 5th wave of
the Pandemic. The frequency of testing was subject to
the job nature. RAT kits were provided to employees by
the Group.

Auto sprayers for hand sanitizers were installed at every
entrance of the office. Garbage bins at pantries were
changed to those with pedal flip covers to avoid cross-
contact. The Group has also strictly abided by social
distancing through installing dividers in the office, and
no unnecessary visitors to office were allowed during
the 5th wave of the Pandemic. Necessary visitors (e.g.
repair and maintenance service provider for emergency
calls) were required to perform a RAT and only those
with negative results were allowed to enter the office.

Regular employees’ activities have been reduced and
were held only when necessary. Work-from-home
and flexible working hours arrangement have been
offered to employees during the peak of the Pandemic.
Logistic team was split into A/B teams and worked on a
rotational basis to reduce chance of cross infection and
to ensure continuous business support. Conventional
face-to-face meetings were replaced by online meetings
whenever feasible. In addition, the Group has also
distributed adequate protective gear such as surgical
masks, hand sanitisers and alcohol wipes to employees
in efforts to protect its employees. To protect its
employees and customers, staff working in high-risk
locations shall conduct COVID-19 nucleic acid testing
regularly and retail stores were regularly disinfected and
sanitised with antivirus coating sprays.

All employees were required to receive COVID-19
vaccination and those without vaccination were
required to provide either exemption certificate
approved by the government or to provide negative
result of COVID-19 nucleic acid testing every three days.
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Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and
professionally trained employees to its business growth
and future success. Therefore, the Group encourages
employees to participate in personal development and
training.

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided 1,418
hours of employee training (FY2020/21: 658 hours).
Total employee training hours increased significantly.
This was mainly because of certain relaxation of social
distancing during the Reporting Period compared to
FY2020/21. Therefore, more internal and external
training courses could be hold.

The following is an overview of the wide ranges of
training schemes.

o On-Board Training Scheme — This scheme
enables new hires to understand the history,
mission, vision, core values, structure, welfares
policies, and corporate social responsibilities of
the Group.

o Training Scholarship Scheme — This scheme
encourages the employee to pursue continuing
education and take part in work-related training
courses.

o Mandatory Training Scheme - This scheme
aims at enriching employees’ experience
and broadening their knowledge of industry
intelligence. The Group will assign the
employees to participate in external seminars
and product launch activities if necessary.

. Operation and Job Skill Training Scheme -
This scheme is designed to provide employees
with the skills and job knowledge to meet the
standard of the Group.
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Average Training Hours Completed by Gender
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Supply Chain Management

The Group emphasises promoting good communication
and cooperation to jointly maintain the quality and
safety of products and services. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has 741 (Mainland China: 13,
Hong Kong: 700, Others: 28) active suppliers?.
Applicable to all of these active suppliers, the Group
implements supplier management in accordance with
internal guidelines. Based on multiple aspects such as
quality and price, environmental protection, labour
practices, suppliers are chosen to subject to screening
and evaluation procedures. To further the Group's
dedication to supply chain management, directed by
the ESG Committee, the Group issued the Supplier
Code of Conduct which provides a comprehensive
account of the requirements and expectations on
potential suppliers. The Supplier Code of Conduct
was developed with reference to recognized principles
such as the ten principles of the United Nations Global
Compact by the United Nations, Guiding Principles on
Business and Human Rights by the United Nations, and
the Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights
at Work by the International Labour Organization.
Requestor of appointment of new supplier has to fill in
the Supplier Data and Evaluation Form and to ensure
the supplier is well aware of the Group’s Supplier’s
Code of Conduct. The addition of new supplier is
subject to the approval by senior management.

To ensure suppliers’ capability in quality assurance,
safety and environmental responsibility, the Group
carries out regular quality assessments on suppliers’
overall capabilities. Procurement teams and
Departments using the services are required to fill in
questionnaire for suppliers’ performance regarding (i)
quality of pre-sales services; (ii) quality of products and
services; (iii) timeliness and accuracy of delivery; (iv)
pricing of products and services; (v) quality of post-sales
services and (vi) market reputation and sustainability.
The Group signs agreements with key suppliers to
regulate their product quality, environmental and safety
performance if necessary.

The Group was not aware of any key suppliers that
had any actions or practices which have a significant
negative impact on related ESG aspects.
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3 An active supplier is identified as its goods, materials, or services have a significant impact on the Group.
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Green Procurement

The Group has ethical and environmental expectations
for delivering goods and services. The Group continues
to engage with customers, partners, and suppliers
to further its sustainability by focusing on managing
risk and improving performance in the supply chain,
adopting standards and best practices, and providing
sustainable design, manufacturing, product, and
packaging options.

The ESG Committee has issued the green procurement
guideline based on the Environmental Protection
Department of Hong Kong. The internal guideline
encompassed the Group’s ESG strategy in green. For
instance, all procurement of A4 size paper was reduced
to 75g. The Group is evaluating full adoption of
decomposable plastic bags for future procurement.

Some of the ways the Group help customers source
items with sustainability attributes include:

Customers

Refills are available for some products in the skincare
segment. With an aim to minimize environmental
impacts, electronic waste from electronic products and
household appliances segment is delivered to recyclers
for further processing before disposal.

In photography and imaging solutions segment, the
Group provides QR codes instead of conventional
CDs to customers. The QR code directs customers
to download ID photos online within one month of
purchase.

Partners

The Group works with FUJIFILM Japan, the Group's
suppliers for photofinishing and processing equipment,
cameras and films, upholds environmental protection,
and focuses on the chemical composition of the
products.

Supply Chain

The Fotomax business only purchases paper from FSC-
certified suppliers. The Group regards FSC as the gold
standard in responsible forestry. FSC is one of the
most universally recognised certification systems that
prohibits the use of genetically modified trees, prevents
the conversion of natural forest to plantations and
requires a precautionary approach to the management
of areas with high conservation value.
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Product Responsibility
Delivering Quality Products and Services

The Group is committed to maintaining and
continuously improving the quality of its products
and services. To enhance competitiveness in the
dynamic market, the Group also attaches importance
to responsible and ethical operating practices, as well
as effective supply chain management. The Group
regularly conducts comprehensive reviews on product
and services to ensure the consistency of the quality.

During the Reporting Period, the total number of
complaints about products and services was 37
(FY2020/21: 23) and were handled in accordance with
the Group's established procedures. There was no recall
of products for safety and health reasons received
during the Reporting Period.

The Group provides the best customer experience by
promoting Total Satisfaction Guarantee. Client may
retake photos, receive refund coupons, or return
products within 10 days of purchase.

The Group was not aware of any incidents of non-
compliance with related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Cap. 362) the Import and Export Ordinance (Cap. 60)
of Hong Kong.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual properties and has
formulated related policies to protect intellectual
property rights. Employees are required to protect the
Group’s intellectual property such as trade secrets,
patents, trademarks, and copyrights, as well as
business, marketing and service plans, engineering
and manufacturing ideas, designs, databases, and
records. Any unauthorised use or distribution of the
Group’s proprietary information would be subjected to
disciplinary actions.

In the photography and imaging solutions segment,
only photocopies that comply with copyright will be
accepted.
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Customer Data Protection

All employees are required to comply with the data
protection principles as stated in the Staff Handbook.
Information provided by the customers and suppliers is
only available to employees who have a legitimate need
to access it.

The Group continues to apply new data encryption
on websites to enhance the protection of customer’s
data. The new technology applied Secure Sockets Layer
certificate on the Group's websites. As such, Transport
Layer Security (“TLS") encryption have been enabled to
better protect data during transmission. Besides, TLS
encryption is also implemented to ensure all network
traffic running over a secured channel.

In the Reporting Period, the Group discovered an
unauthorized access to the database of the Company’s
subsidiary — Fotomax (F.E.) Limited (“Fotomax”) (the
“Issue”). The affected database contained information
of Fotomax’s customers including customers’ registered
name, phone number, email address and mailing
address. Upon discovery of the Issue, the Group took
immediate action to contain the Issue through a
thorough investigation, which involved a comprehensive
check of all systems and servers of the Group. The
Group also reported the Issue to the Hong Kong Police
Force and filed the case to the Office of the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data and has been reaching
out to every possibly affected customers to alert him
or her of this data breach and the potential exposure
of his or her personal information. The Group is not
aware that any of the other databases of the Group is
affected and believes that the Issue was an individual
event. Besides, the Company engaged an independent
consultant to conduct a review on the Group's
internal control and risk management system after the
incident and took necessary measures to strengthen
its information system security. The Issue has been
disclosed in the Company’'s announcement dated 29
October 2021.
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As at the date of the Report, the Group is following
up closely with the questions and queries raised by the
Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data
regarding the Issue and is committed to protecting
its customers’ information and their privacy to ensure
against any such incident in the future.

During the Reporting Period, the operation of the
Group remained in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations concerning product responsibility.

Anti-Corruption

Integrity, honesty and fairness in the way to conduct
business are highly valued by the Group. The Group
has zero tolerance for bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering. Relevant policies, guidelines, and
code of conduct are set out for the employees to abide.
The code of conduct provides a clear definition of the
provision and acceptance of interests, such as gifts and
souvenirs, and ways to deal with conflicts of interest.

The Group’s employees received training on the code of
conduct to get familiar with the Group's anti-corruption
practice. During the Reporting Period, the Group
provided an online anti-corruption training to Directors
in March 2021. The training, organized by the Hong
Kong Institution of Directors, focused on anti-corruption
management system, covering risks reduction and
relevant laws and regulations.

All managerial grades have to reply to CFO the Risk
Management and Internal Control Questionnaire at
each year-end. This questionnaire was formulated in
accordance with Principle D.2 (former Principle C.2)
of the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It is to assist
the Group to measure, evaluate and monitor its risk
management and internal control, including corruption
risk.

The Group's Internal Audit team also prepares a
risk assessment report and internal audit reports for
different departments and sent to Directors and the
Board annually. Meetings between Internal Audit
Manager and Audit Committee Members are regularly
set up for communication.
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10.

The Group established a whistle-blowing policy that
ensures any internal or external stakeholder can raise
any issue. Employees are encouraged to contact the
internal audit team directly at any time to seek guidance
in sensitive situations or to report suspicious case. The
internal audit team will investigate possible violations
in any suspicious case. The Group also established an
online staff opinion channel for receiving complaints
and feedback from employees.

The Group abides by the relevant anti-corruption
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201) of Hong
Kong. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering that would have a significant impact
on the Group. During the Reporting Period, there were
no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees.

Community Investment

The focus areas of community service are determined
by the Group's Social Responsibility Team (“SR Team”)
which is led by a senior management member.
The Group has long supported various charity
organisations through sponsorships and product
donations. Beneficiaries including but not limited to
The Community Chest of Hong Kong, Hong Kong
Photographic Culture Association Limited, Maggie's
Cancer Caring Centre Hong Kong, Hong Kong Squash,
House of Joy and Mercy, and Dignity Kitchen. With
an aim to provide pandemic relief to the needed, the
Group also donated batches of RAT kits to a community
organization.

In the Reporting Period, a subsidiary of the Group,
Fotomax (F.E.) Limited, was awarded with “Caring
Company” Logo issued by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service in recognition of its devotion to corporate
social responsibility through caring for the community,
employees, and the environment.

The top management of the Group also takes up the
leading role in many reputable charities. Dr. Sun Tai Lun
Dennis, Chairman of the Group who is also the Vice
Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong; Mr. Sun
Tao Hung Stanley, Deputy Chairman of the Company
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, is the board
of director and executive committee member of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed to
the following donations, sponsorship and participated in
various charity events.
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Society

° Maggie’s Cancer Caring Centre Hong Kong —
Maggie’s Cancer & AIA Group Charity Golf Day
2021

o The Community Chest of Hong Kong - The
Community Chest Water World Ocean Park
Charity Day

o The Community Chest of Hong Kong — Greening
for the Chest 2021/22

o The Community Chest of Hong Kong — TVB All
Star Game

o Dignity Kitchen — Resources Donation and

on-site voluntary service

. House of Joy and Mercy — Charity sales of 2022
and on-site voluntary service

Sports

o Hong Kong Squash — Fujifilm Mini Squash
Scheme

Art and Culture

o Hong Kong International Photo Festival —
Event and Future development of Hong Kong
International Photo Festival 2021

The amount of sponsorships and donations made, and
volunteer service hours were approximately HK$1.9
million and 400 hours during the Reporting Period
respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEERRS

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Report”) in the Group’'s Annual Report for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

During the year, the Company has applied the principles set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2022.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, consisting of
three Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Executive Directors
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis
(Chairman and Member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen
(Member of Audit Committee)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Ka Fai David
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Jian Hui Allan (formerly known as “Liu Hui Allan”)
(Member of Audit Committee)

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan
(Chairman of Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
and Member of Audit Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the Directors are set out and disclosed in the section
headed "“Executive Directors’ Information”, “Non-executive Directors’
Information” and “Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information”
on pages 30 to 33 of the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March
2022.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis and Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the Group’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Sun
Tao Hung Stanley, Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita and Mr. Li Ka Fai David
shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting pursuant to the
Company'’s Bye-laws. Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley, Ms. Chan Wai Kwan
Rita and Mr. Li Ka Fai David being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Group; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Group's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.
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All Directors have carried out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Group. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Group are delegated to the
management.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company purchases annually the Directors and officers’ liability
insurance for members of the Board and officers to provide protection
against claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties by the
Directors and officers.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Group and full awareness of director’'s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company arranged
in-house training sessions on anti-corruption management and
regulatory updates and issues for the Directors, conducted by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

EREFCEREBRAZIRERENER  IT—H
HEERBRHERRAE

EFgHIRBEREE -RBERAE REEER
RBREE -EARZ RBRRAESRAEERZ
X5 -MHEN EEEERAEBEMERERE
EENMEEEEERBARE -ARPTESS
AR EERGRACERAREEREEZHES
BTEEE-

ESRSRMERTRE
FARBEREFEHNERESRBEREEER
SRBEEERE REFERSABEREZRRA
A EEENBESERERE.

ESHEEEER

ERRBRERVERED UANBITHERR
EROEFTHERMEEMNAEMNERM -

BEMEAEFNEREZEIRHEREFSER 28
REREMRZMERSD URFRESEERRBLR
EEZEFREF T2EABREBELTRIRE
MEEREESTARKBEZHEREE.

EER2UABENFREERR BRIENEA
R BE

BE2022F3A831BILFE  ARFBELHRER
EXELENEFRMARRESEERRNEE
BERREERAEREIIRIE

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited S 8BiESRMERABRAT



The record of continuous professional development relating to
Director’s duties and regulatory and business development that have
been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
summarized as follows:

Directors 5%

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley HiEsh R E

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan HERLYE

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita BREEL T

Non-executive Directors ERITES

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis BAfmiEL

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen TR E

Independent Non-executive Directors BIJERITES

Mr. Li Ka Fai David FREBEE

Mr. Liu Jian Hui Allan 2kt
(formerly known as “Liu Hui Allan”) (FiFBI2I0E) )

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan BFMEL

Note:

Types of Training

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,

seminars, conferences and workshops
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and

relevant publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Board of Directors” on page 66.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen, and all Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Li Ka Fai David (Chairman of the Committee), Mr.
Liu Jian Hui Allan (formerly known as “Liu Hui Allan”) and Dr. Wong
Chi Yun Allan (including one Independent Non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise).

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website and are available
to shareholders upon request. The primary functions of the Audit
Committee include the following:
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o To monitor integrity of the Company's financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them.

o To act as key representative body for overseeing the Company's
relation with the external auditors, and to be primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and to consider any
questions of their resignation or dismissal.

. To review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management systems.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review the interim and annual financial results and
reports and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment of
external auditors and relevant scope of works and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely, Dr.
Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Li Ka Fai David
and Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchanges’ website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the following:

o To make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy.

o To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and the senior
management.

o To review and approve compensation payable to Executive

Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
met once to review the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company and determine the annual remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and the senior management and other related
matters. The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee will consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations
on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely Dr.
Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Li Ka Fai David
and Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary function of the
Nomination Committee include the following:

o To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes.

o To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors.

o To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

o To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-

appointment of and succession planning for Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors
standing for election at the annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspective
of the Board is maintained.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 23 November
2018 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy and to ensure that
the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing
and assessing the Board composition and the nomination of Directors,
the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and regional and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is
also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at
all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so
that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy on 23
November 2018 which sets out the selection criteria and process and
the Board succession planning considerations in relation to nomination
and appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. During the year ended 31 March 2022,
there was no change in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 (former code provision D.3.1) of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this CG Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in the table below:

EFRZETMELERCR

REFEHREHE2022F3831HIEEERTHNES
BREELZECEEURERTREREGHNHE
SCERETIMTE -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEX FRBTRY

Other

Annual General

Nomination Remuneration Audit General Meetings

Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting (if any)

(i HifRR

Name of Director EEEL 5xg¢ R4%Z8E §HFWEEsg BHRKZEE BEKRE KEHH)

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley  F383A%4E 44 NAFREE NATER NATER n N/A REH

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan BERLE 44 NATER NATER  NATER 171 NAZXER

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita ~ FREEX L 44  NATBR NATER NATER 171 NAZTER

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis BAREEL 4/4 l il N/A REH n N/A REF

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen /E#E4%4E 44  NATRER  NATER 212 o1 NARER

Mr. Li Ka Fai David FRERE 4/4 1/1 n 212 n N/A B

Mr. Liu Jian Hui Allan AEERE 44 NAFRBEAR  NATRER 212 0/1 N/A R
(formerly known as (GEAEL=N)

“Liu Hui Allan")
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan =ETMEL 3/4 1n il 12 171 NATER

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 89 to 95.

The Audit Committee has the same view with the Board regarding the
selection and re-appointment of external auditors.

The Group's annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remunerations paid to the Group's external auditors in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March
2022 is HK$1,000,000 and HK$989,000 respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and is responsible for
providing advice to the Board for ensuring the Board procedures are
followed. For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company Secretary
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training duly
complied with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee, assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing its design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

During FY2021/22, the Group has complied with code provision D.2
(former code provision C.2) of the Corporate Governance Code ("CG
Code") by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the Board
oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
Main features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages risks
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify business objectives and risks that could
affect the achievement of objectives and ownership of such
risks.

. Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact(s) of risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

J Management: Consider risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor of the
residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in FY2021/22, no significant
risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Group has in place an internal control system which is compatible
with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission) 2013 framework. The framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework are
shown as follow:
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o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying, analyzing risks and forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed in order to achieve the Group's
objectives.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o Access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

o Executive Directors are the only designated persons to speak on
behalf of the Group when communicating with external parties
such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in FY2021/22, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Chartered
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operations and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

According to the established plan, reviews of risk management and
internal control systems are conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board is responsible for ensuring review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems has been
conducted annually. Several areas have been considered during the
Board's review which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the
nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review, the
Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment, and (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems. During the year,
the Board had specifically reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems related to COVID-19.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA function and
Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate in FY2021/22. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience of
relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and budget
provided were sufficient.

Cyber Security and Customer Data

During FY2021/22, the Group discovered an unauthorized access
to the database of the Company’s subsidiary — Fotomax (F.E.)
Limited (“Fotomax”) (the “lIssue”). The affected database contained
information of Fotomax's customers including customers’ registered
name, phone number, email address and mailing address. Upon
discovery of the Issue, the Group took immediate action to contain
the Issue through a thorough investigation, which involved a
comprehensive check of all systems and servers of the Group. The
Group also reported the Issue to the Hong Kong Police Force and filed
the case to the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data
and has been reaching out to every possibly affected customers to alert
him or her of this data breach and the potential exposure of his or her
personal information. The Group is not aware that any of the other
databases of the Group is affected and believes that the Issue was
an individual event. Besides, the Company engaged an independent
consultant to conduct a review on the Group’s internal control and risk
management system after the incident and took necessary measures to
strengthen its information system security.

As at the date of this report, the Group is following up closely with the
questions and queries raised by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data regarding the Issue and is committed to protecting
its customers’ information and their privacy to ensure against any such
incident in the future. The Issue has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 October 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

Special general meetings may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors fail
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with Section
74(3) of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders; or not less than 100 shareholders may
make requisition in writing to the Company:

(@) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2022. An up-to-date version of the
Company'’s Bye-laws is available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meetings, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests at any time to the
following:

Address:  8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco
Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company

Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2409 0294
Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 23 November 2018
on payment of dividends. The Company intends to distribute 30-
70% of its annual net profit as dividends to its shareholders, subject
to the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may
be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and
any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders’
approval.
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Report of the Directors
EFFHRS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company's subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing and printing
products and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances, and
commercial and professional AV products; and (ii) the provision of
technical services for photographic DP products, imaging solution,
professional AV advisory and custom design and installation service.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 March 2022.

ANNUAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 166.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 1 HK cent
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March 2022 (FY2020/21:
1 HK cent), payable on 7 September 2022 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company as at
close of business on 19 August 2022 subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, including a fair
review of the Group’s business as well as future development in the
Group's business can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 16
to 29 of the Annual Report.

Certain financial KPIs which complement and supplement our financial
disclosures are set out on page 4.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 4.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy
during the year ended 31 March 2022. As at 31 March 2022, the
Group's cash and bank balances were approximately HK$229 million
with a zero gearing ratio. Trade receivables of approximately HK$45
million were recorded as at 31 March 2022, while inventories were
approximately HK$155 million.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 530 employees (As at 31 March
2021: 525), remunerated largely based on industry practice, including
provident funds, insurance and medical benefits. The Group also
adopted a discretionary bonus programme determined annually based
upon the performance of the Group and the employees.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2022 are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment
properties are set out on page 167.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year ended 31 March 2022. Details of
the Company's share capital is set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 100, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
calculated in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$19,685,000, of which
approximately HK$11,853,000 has been proposed as a final dividend
for the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium account
and capital redemption reserve account of HK$490,378,000 and
HK$1,619,000, respectively, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group made charitable
donations of approximately HK$437,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
and the largest customer accounted for 12.7% and 3.6% of the
Group's total sales for the year, respectively. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 80.3% and 20.9% of the Group's total purchases for
the year, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2022
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita

Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Ka Fai David

Mr. Liu Jian Hui Allan (formerly known as “Liu Hui Allan”)
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 110, Mr. Sun Tao Hung
Stanley, Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita and Mr. Li Ka Fai David shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
all Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 30 to 33 of
the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
following Directors for their provision of management services to the
Group:

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita
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Each service contract for each of the Executive Directors has a
remaining unexpired term of 1 year as at 31 March 2022 and is subject
to the termination by either party upon giving three months’ notice to
the other party.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company's Bye-laws request that all Directors and officers of
the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is arranged to cover all the
Directors and officers of the Group against any potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against them.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors on a named basis
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to market condition and performance of the Group and
individual staff (including the Director). The Remuneration Policy and
remuneration packages of the Directors and management team are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and the Board which are
detailed in the paragraph headed “Remuneration Committee” under
the CG Report on pages 70 and 71.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

AT EERITAE

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

RAERNBE -BOREREE

Directly Percentage of the

beneficially Founder  Beneficiary Interest Company'’s issued

Name of Director Note owned of a trust of a trust of spouse Total share capital

SR VNS

BHi% BEITRAZ

BEHY (N BnER GESARMA GEREA fofBtEm 4t BoLE

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis (i) — (iii) 1,000,000 700,034,214 11,242,000 220,000 712,496,214 60.11%
BAmEL

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley (iv) & (v) - - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01%
LK

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (iv) & (v) - - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01%
BERLE

Mr. Fung Yue Chun (vi) - - 70,000,000 - 70,000,000 5.90%
Stephen
BRERE

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporations:

HESEBERG RAEBRBZEFE

Percentage of
the associated

Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number of  nature of issued share
Name of Director corporation Company Shares shares held interest capital
Sk ILHEEEEE
BEHY HEEERTE HEARSME KM HERHEE ®=ZUE (0% A=
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Searich Group ~ Company'’s Ordinary shares 25 Beneficiary 25%
Dennis Limited immediate (note (i)) of a trust
BAfmEL holding
company
KATIZEE TER ME0) EsER@mA
ERAR
—ditto— —ditto- Ordinary shares 75  Founder 75%
(note (ii)) of a trust
[t i AL (i) EsERIMA
100 100%
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Fine Products Company’s Ordinary shares 25,750  Founder 100%
Dennis Limited ultimate (note (ii)) of a trust
BARmEL holding
company
RATIZREE  TBER ME>) EsERIMA
AT
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Note:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in a total of
11,242,000 shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation,
which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is
owned by Tricor Equity Trustee Limited in its capacity as the trustee of
The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary trust established for the benefit
of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his family members. Dago Corporation
also holds 25% of the issued share capital of Searich Group Limited.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214
shares in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him
being the founder of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire issued
share capital of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share capital
of Searich Group Limited is held by Fine Products Limited. Details of
the interests of Fine Products Limited and Searich Group Limited in the
Company can be found in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” below.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 220,000 shares of
the Company through the interests of his spouse, Ms. Tang Sau Ying
Betty who inherited the said shares from her mother's legacy in 2014.

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to
be interested in a total of 11,242,000 shares in the Company directly
held by Dago Corporation, which is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and is owned by Tricor Equity Trustee Limited in
its capacity as the trustee of The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary
trust established for the benefit of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his family
members including Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan.
Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the issued share capital of Searich
Group Limited.

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to be
interested in a total of 700,034,214 shares in the Company held by
Fine Products Limited by virtue of them being beneficiaries of The Sun
Family Trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Fine Products
Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich Group Limited is
held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interests of Fine Products
Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be found in
the section “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in 70,000,000
shares of the Company held by HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited by virtue of
him being a beneficiary of a trust of which HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited
act as trustee. Details of the interests of HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited in
the Company can be found in the section “Substantial Shareholders’
and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors
of the Company and any of its associates had registered an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of part XV of
SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

BRAMMELIRBERESHERAERRF11,242,0008
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AL Z/ABIDago CorporationE#E#F A °Dago
Corporation&Tricor Equity Trustee Limited (fE
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E915{55EThe Dennis Family Trustz ZsEAZ15)
Fi## %A o Dago CorporationJi A Searich Group
Limited B 24T 2825% ©
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no time during
the financial year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2022, other than the interest of the Directors as disclosed
in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, the following interests and short positions
in the shares and the underlying shares of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EFWIRRR (D N EREE Z HEF

b EXTE R RN RBRRMN 2 i Fosk a1 —&
PRiRBEESN AP HFENLBRESTNHESBZE
BHARARERRERATEBALQR ZRDHE
EmMED 2 BF) WETBRITEERZEREF
A HEMEZERABHMB AT IFETLEM
ZHRFESHHEBRABBRBRRATDIER
EANBERRRRO SRR LURGH o

FERRRHEMEARRGRERRGZE
MR sE

1202238318 » B E XX TEE R R0 RABREIRR (%
ZHRERRBI—HRIEEERTRREN REBAE
NEREES RIS RAEBEREEEZER
T FHATRHERARRD RIEREEKRG
ZHERRRE

Long positions of substantial shareholders who were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more

of the voting power at any general meeting of the Company:

BRTESNERTERATSEMRRAE L5%IU L ZRERZTEREZIFE

Capacity and

Number of ordinary

Percentage of the
Company'’s issued

Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
HAERE
PRERR B kEmnE HEEBR#E M 5% BEETRAZEDL
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.08%
BAEEL BEEAA
Beneficiary of a trust 11,242,000 (i) & (ii) 0.95%
EEZEmA
Founder of a trust 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 59.06%
EsERIMA
Interest of spouse 220,000 0.02%
BCfB s
712,496,214 60.11%
Fine Products Limited Beneficial owner & interest 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 59.06%
of a controlled corporation
BauEA ARZEERER
Searich Group Limited Beneficial owner 600,034,214 (i) & (ii) 50.62%
BmBEBEA
Tricor Equity Trustee Limited Trustee 711,276,214 (i) & (ii) 60.01%
ZEEA
Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty Beneficial owner 220,000 0.02%
HEELZ L BEBEBA
Interest of spouse 712,276,214 (i) & (iii) 60.09%
Be Bt
712,496,214 60.11%
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01%
HREA KL BEEZmA
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01%
BERELE EEZEmA
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen Beneficiary of a trust 70,000,000 (v), (vii) 5.90%
BERE EEZEA & (viii)
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Long positions of other substantial shareholders:

HtFTERRZEFE

Capacity and

Number of ordinary

Percentage of the
Company'’s issued

Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
(5P N

RER,BE B kiEzmE FEERR#ME M 5% BETRAZEBDL

Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William  Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000  (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BRI E REEEER

Fung Retailing Limited Beneficial owner 70,000,000  (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BREEEEBRAT BmBEBEA

Fung Holdings (1937) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000  (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BERER(1937)BRAE] REEE S

King Lun Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000  (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

RGZERBRAT REEEER

HSBC Trustee (C.1.) Limited Trustee 70,000,000 (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

ZEEA
Note: B EE :

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

100,000,000 shares representing 8.44% of the Company’s shares
in issue are directly owned by Fine Products Limited. The remaining
600,034,214 shares are owned by Searich Group Limited, in which Fine
Products Limited holds 75% of its issued share capital. Fine Products
Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is
owned by Tricor Equity Trustee Limited in its capacity as the trustee of
The Sun Family Trust.

Such interests have been included as the interests of Dr. Sun Tai Lun
Dennis.

Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty is deemed to be interested in 712,276,214
shares of the Company through the interests of her spouse, Dr. Sun Tai
Lun Dennis.

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to be
interested in a total of 711,276,214 shares in the Company by virtue of
being beneficiaries of The Sun Family Trust and The Dennis Family Trust.

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in a total of
70,000,000 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a beneficiary
of a trust of which HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited act as trustee.

The interests of Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned by
Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William).

The interests of HSBC Trustee (C.l.) Limited are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned by
HSBC Trustee (C.1.) Limited).

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

#100,000,0008 13 ((EEQBBHTRHBZ
8.44% ) HFine Products LimitedEiZHEA 2 T
2600,034,2 148815 B Searich Group Limited
A > MFine Products Limited B A Z AT B &
1788 7575% °Fine Products Limited%—RIF %
BELZBHEXMMILZ AT W ATricor Equity
Trustee LimitedX{The Sun Family Trust2sE A &1
PR o

ZERDEEETRARELIZEEZR-

HERZIWRASBEBHRAMELZER
M#EB712,276, 214 A AT RP 2 o

FEAFEERBBERAEEREET BThe Sun
Family TrustK&The Dennis Family Trustz 3 A
WRBEHEST,276 214K A BRI 2 1#

s

o

B REEREE S A —EBEHSBC Trustee (C.1)
LimitedEEZEANGEEZZTBABRAER
A 470,000,000/ A B READ 2 #E 2 o

BEREEZREN BB —RIZEEZEME
B ERTEERBRAT VERER (1937)
ERABDRCHIZERBERAT (HEERLERE
A50%) ©
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Report of the Directors EEERE

(viii) The interests of Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William and HSBC Trustee (C.I.)
Limited as mentioned in the above notes (vi) and (vii) refer to the same

block of shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
Mr. Liu Hui Allan changed his name to Mr. Liu Jian Hui Allan with effect
from 4 April 2022.

Saved as disclosed above, during the year under review and up to the
date of this report, there is no other change in information of Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 have been audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 June 2022

(viii) 3 A S (vi) B (vi T 22t 285 R 4 55 A e HSBC Trustee
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R BATER S

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), which are set out on pages 96 to 166, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2022;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &I iz#Emik S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Provision for inventories
e Valuation of investment properties

e Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of retail stores

Key Audit Matter

Provision for inventories

Refer to Note 2.12, 4(i) and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held inventories of
HK$155,237,000. A reversal of provision for inventories of
HK$1,882,000 was credited to the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2022. As described in the accounting
policy in Note 2.12 to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group's inventories are subject to changing consumer
demands and market trends, increasing the level of judgment
involved in estimating provision for inventories.

We focused on this area because of magnitude of the inventories
and judgment is required to assess the appropriate level of
provisioning for items which may be ultimately written off or
sold below cost as a result of a reduction in consumer demand
particularly in light of the current volatile retail market situation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures to evaluate the provision
for inventories:

— Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of provision for inventories
and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and level
of other inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

— Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s inventory
provisioning policy with respect to the inventories by category
based on aging together with the historical sales records which
reflected the expected life cycle of similar products;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Provision for inventories (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

— Compared the net realisable value of the inventories held
at year end, on a sample basis, to latest selling prices by
examining the sales invoices; where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective inventories after the balance sheet date,
we challenged management as to the realisable value of the
inventories, corroborating explanations with the aging and
marketability of the respective inventories as appropriate; and

—  Tested the accuracy of aging profile of inventories used in the
inventory provision and recalculated the inventory provision as
at year end based on the Group’s provisioning policy.

Based on the procedures performed, we consider management'’s
judgment and estimates in the assessment of provision for
inventories, to be supported by the available evidence.

Valuation of investment properties
Refer to Note 2.8, 4(iii)) and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group's
investment properties to be HK$260,174,000 at 31 March 2022,
with a revaluation gain for the year ended 31 March 2022
recorded in the consolidated income statement of HK$14,281,000.
Valuations by an independent external valuer were obtained in
order to support management’s estimates. The valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
judgment, such as adjusted unit prices.

We focused on this area due to the significant amount of
revaluation gain recorded for the year and the significant
management judgment used to evaluate the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s valuations of investment properties:

— Evaluated the independent external valuer’'s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

— Discussed with the external valuer for the valuation
methodology and challenged the key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the valuations;

— Checked to the adopted market unit prices by making
reference to external market data; and

— Involved our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology used by the
external valuer and the reasonableness of the key assumptions
adopted for the valuations based on our knowledge of the
local property markets.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the methodologies
used in preparing the valuations were appropriate and the key
assumptions were supported by evidence obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of retail stores

Refer to Note 4(iv), 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group had HK$28,529,000 and HK$94,321,000 of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively as at
31 March 2022, of which approximately HK$72,892,000 was
attributable to its retail stores. The carrying amount of the retail
store assets is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Management regards each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors their financial
performance for the existence of impairment indicators, such as
below expectation trading performance or store being loss making.

Management carried out an impairment assessment for the retail
store assets which has an impairment indicator (referred to as
“underperforming retail stores”) and as a result an impairment
loss of HK$602,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year. The recoverable amount of the
assets of underperforming retail stores is determined by value-
in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections based
on the financial forecasts approved by management covering the
remaining tenure of the lease.

We focused on this area because significant estimation and
judgment were involved in deciding whether a retail store has an
impairment indicator and in determining the recoverable amounts
of the relevant retail store assets.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures to evaluate management’s
assessment process for identifying underperforming retail stores:

— Obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process in identifying the indicators
of potential impairment and estimated the recoverable
amount of retail stores, and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud,

- Challenged management’s judgments made in the
identification of impairment indicators; and

— Compared current year's performance of retail stores with
impairment indicators to the store prior year’ s performance.

We tested the impairment calculation by performing the following
procedures:

— Compared the forecasted sales performance to the approved
business plan, and compared estimated running costs to the
historical records;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets of retail stores (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

— Challenged management in relation to key assumptions in
their business plan and evaluated the key assumptions (such as
gross profit margin and running costs) applied by comparing
them to historical information and external market information
and conditions;

— Involved our in-house valuation expert to assess the
reasonableness of discount rates adopted by management;
and

—  Recomputed the impairment loss calculation.

Based on our work performed, we found the impairment of retail
store assets made by management to be supported by available
evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

REEMME REMBRRARKENTE

(&)

o HMERAMBRERNEBERIHRAN -EBNRA
B BERE URGEMBRERRETER
R BN EIH

o i EEENERIEBEINHBERENR
TR BENEFRE UEHRGEGMBEE
BRER-HMaE BEEESEHNIO-E
BEMNRIT RAABARRKEENEE-

PREMEBIENN HMAEAEREEG BB THENSE
STHE B2 EXBH RS QERME
B AT B BRI B R R E ARG

BRPERNERZEERIEHN RPRMETEE
RBI RN EMEREEER TaMFIEEEY
BEREMRIAERERMABIIENPIAREN
HthEIE > UREBERANERT  BLUHREEIL
MELE R BB TTEIRENBIB S5

NEBEZEZEEBEENETED HARENLESRE
HEARGRESVBREANESRAEE  AMEME
REBEFTFH - RMAETLBRETHRBELEER
BRIEARERTAF ARKESLEEER  HEHH
ERNBERT NRGERBERMRSPBEREE
FHENNEERREBEEN ARG  HIR
EREEREPBEZER

HEABIZBMKRENEFREEBARRE
FBELE -

BERKEGENERFR
BE B E

&% 2022F6H28H

Annual Report 2021/22 FEZERS

95



96

Consolidated Income Statement

= A2
ra R
For the year ended 31 March 2022
HZE2022F38310IEFE
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 BT T BT T

Revenue & 6 1,015,240 916,750
Cost of sales HHE R A 7 (793,401) (722,546)
Gross profit EF 221,839 194,204
Other income and gains EH AU A R e 2 6 19,226 45,729
Changes in fair value of investment  REY XA FEEE

properties 14 14,281 19,381
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 7 (136,025) (128,503)
Advertising and marketing expenses E&&kHIHHERS 7 (9.863) (12,643)
Administrative expenses TERX 7 (84,646) (77,465)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment &Ry E & Z HE# R,/

loss) on financial assets CREEE) 61 (370)
Impairment loss on property, ME- -BEREHEUR

plant and equipment and FRAEEEZRE

right-of-use assets 518 13,15 (602) (3,008)
Operating profit KEF)H 24,271 37,325
Interest expense on lease liabilites ~ fAE&EF B (2,935) (2,853)
Share of results of an associate FEE—EHE R RS = -
Profit before income tax PRERS R AIFIE 21,336 34,472
Income tax expense Fri8 B2 10 (3,779) (2,524)
Profit for the year KEENHE 17,557 31,948
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE (E518) BB

Owners of the Company EKRBEEE A 18,110 33,635

Non-controlling interests FEFE B4 A (553) (1,687)

17,557 31,948

Earnings per share attributable REERRTEBA

to owners of the Company i EREF

for the year 1

Basic B 1.53 HK cents #fll 2.84 HK cents A&l

Diluted e 1.53 HK cents #fll 2.84 HK cents 71l

The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= AN =%
,%/ = _:EELI&JIEL'IEE
For the year ended 31 March 2022
HZE2022F38310IEFE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Profit for the year REEFE 17,557 31,948
Other comprehensive income: HMZEKA :
Item that may be reclassified BIREEM T E R m Z B
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEREREL
foreign operations 1,548 3,307
Other comprehensive income TEEHMEEBA
for the year 1,548 3,307
Total comprehensive income TEEZEURALEE
for the year 19,105 35,255
Attributable to: R
Owners of the Company KATEBA 19,658 36,942
Non-controlling interests JEFEHI 1 2 (553) (1,687)
19,105 35,255

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AT AR

As at 31 March 2022
22022FE3H31H
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BEREE 13 28,529 33,664
Investment properties "EME 14 260,174 245,507
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 94,321 93,270
Deposits BE 21 12,472 12,267
Deferred tax assets IRIETRIBE E 26 190 118
Total non-current assets JERENE AR 395,686 384,826
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 18 155,237 111,140
Contract assets SHEE 19 7,241 4,854
Trade receivables B EUERTE 20 44,502 45,830
Amount due from an associate FEU — B A B IE 17 - -
Prepayments, deposits and FENME -EE R
other receivables HAuhEWERTE 21 55,203 41,131
Tax recoverable A Y Bl #3 18 590 302
Cash and bank balances HEKRIRITHER 22 229,230 282,663
Total current assets MENE E4AEE 492,003 485,920
Total assets BELEE 887,689 870,746
EQUITY W
Equity attributable to owners EATHEE AEL#ER
of the Company
Share capital &N 27 118,532 118,532
Reserves HE 28 533,288 525,483
651,820 644,015
Non-controlling interests FEFEHI M S (782) (229)
Total equity HEmiEEE 651,038 643,786

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2022 2021

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

iz BT T BT T
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Accrued liabilities EstEaE 25 5,009 2,792
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 29,026 30,921
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE R 26 31,621 29,595
Total non-current liabilities JEREI B (B4R 65,656 63,308
Current liabilities REBARE
Trade and bills payables B RMRERERE 24 60,320 53,454
Contract liabilities aHaE 23 19,645 20,101
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&t & (& K& H th & 1

BRIE 25 44,190 44,045

Lease liabilities HEAE 15 37,728 38,116
Tax payable FE(TFRIE 9,112 7,936
Total current liabilities mENB R4 170,995 163,652
Total liabilities =Rk 236,651 226,960
Total equity and liabilities EmkaEEE 887,689 870,746
Net current assets MENE EIFEE 321,008 322,268
Total assets less current liabilities BELLERATEER 716,694 707,094

The financial statements on pages 96 to 166 were approved by the  FIEFNEI6E 166 ER I FFRERE 202256528
Board of Directors on 28 June 2022 and were signed on its behalf. HESSESgHE IREATINESAREE.

Sun Tai Lun Dennis Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Chairman Deputy Chairman and CEO
BKXfw H3E5h

ZE B ZERITEARE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LR &R BRI RAELAREHIMF—FIRIE o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

nv—ﬁ

R ETE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE2022F3H831HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARFEEARL
Retained
Share Capital Exchange Asset eannings/ Non-
Share premium  redemption  fluctuation  revaluation  (accumulated controling Total
capital account’ reserve! reserve! reserve! losses)! Total interests equity
REERT/
Rx  RhEER EABEHEE ERLBHE SEEREE EnHR) i EEEINEG  ERNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BMFR  RMTR  BMTR  BMTR  ARTR  AETR ARTR AETR ERTR
Balance at 1 April 2020 20205481848 118,532 490,378 1,619 (135) 28,246 (30,350) 607,073 1,458 608,531
Profitfloss) for the year FEENE/ (B8 - - - - 33635 33,635 (1,687) 31,948
Other comprehensive income: Eh2EHA
Exchange differences on translation of REENERERER

foreign operations - - - 3307 - - 3307 - 3307
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2ENA/ (58 48 - - - 3307 - 33635 36,942 (1,687) 35,255
Balance at 31 March 2021 and 2021536318 %

1 April 2021 154B 145 118,532 490,378 1619 1955 28,246 3,285 644,015 (229) 643,786
Profitfloss) for the year FEENE/ (BB - - - - - 18,110 18,110 (553) 17,557
Other comprehensive income: Eth2EMA
Exchange differences on translation of HEBNEBERER

foreign operations - - - 1,548 - - 1,548 - 1,548
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2EUA/ (5B 8 118,532 490,378 1,619 3,503 28,246 21,395 663,673 (182) 662,891
Transactions with owners HENTEEA UREEEAD

in their capacity as owners: 1) BTN
Dividend paid for the year ended BB E3AHLEERS

31 March 2021 - - - - - (11,853) (11,853) - (11,853)
Balance at 31 March 2022 202253831845 118,532 490,378 1,619 3,503 28,246 9,542 651,820 (782) 651,038
Note 1: These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  Kizk1: WERBREENGEMBRRRZGERHSB

HK$533,288,000 (2021: HK$525,483,000) in the consolidated 7515533,288,0007T (20214 : A& 525,483,000
statement of financial position. JT) ©
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  Lit4REREREERELFEHHIZ—FHE -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

an - fﬁ;%/}ﬂ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2022

HZE2022F38310IEFE
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(5 BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities RELBRIRERD
Profit before income tax PRETS I AIFE 21,336 34,472
Adjustments for: RTHRE .
Interest income FISWA 6 (1,159) (1,359)
Finance cost RE Ak A 2,935 2,853
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BERIBEZINE
equipment 7 14,371 15,520
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREBEEZINE 7 44,642 45,337
(Gains)losses on disposals of property, HEME -BRERSKEZ
plant and equipment (k) /598 7 (58) 7
Provision for other receivables Htt e IR B # A 3.1(ii)b) 88 280
Reversal of provision for inventories FEEERD 7 (1,882) (4,188)
Write-off of trade receivables 38 8 5 e iR 18 7 350 -
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment SREE (RERE) /
loss on financial assets HEBE 3.1(ii)(b) (61) 370
Changes in fair value of investment RENERTELS
properties 14 (14,281) (19,381)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME BERRENR
equipment and right-of-use assets FRREEZ HEHE 602 3,008
Rent concessions from lessors HEAHEEER 6, 35 (909) (2,702)
65,974 74,217
Changes in working capital HEELEY
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE2Z (Em e (42,215) 62,556
Increase in contract assets BRBEEZEM (2,387) (2,819)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables EEEWRBZ L/ (8m) 1,039 (2,472)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and % BATEREMER
other receivables BRIBZ I (14,365) (8,782)
Increase in trade and bills payables BAEMRERERZIEM 6,866 8,943
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BRaRZz GBL) /#Em (456) 8,129
Increase in accrued liabilities and EitaBEREMEGREY
other payables &1 2,362 901
Cash generated from operations REXBMBzRE 16,818 140,673
Hong Kong profits tax refunded FANEBRER 267 18
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRAEHETE (878) (234)
PRC taxes paid BPERE (183) (226)
Net cash generated from operating activities A& EHKMEZHLFE 16,024 140,231
Cash flows from investing activities REEHZRERH
Interest received BIFIE 1,159 1,359
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ BAYIE  BE K& & 13 (9,293) (10,248)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BERREFESTIE
plant and equipment 239 5
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time RIHABB=ERZ
deposits with original maturity of BIEHTHERZ
over three months e Te:)1) 22 27,226 (2,376)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREFHMR/ (i) 2
investing activities B3 19,331 (11,260)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHZRERH
Interest elements of lease payments HERBBZHELS (2,935) (2,853)
Principle elements of lease payments %HETAIEZIE Lib 35 (47,633) (45,693)
Dividend paid ENRE 12 (11,853) -
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBRAZRETE (62,421) (48,546)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReERFEEEERZ
cash equivalents (R /1855 (27,066) 80,425
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year B REESEEER 255,437 174,388
Exchange gains on cash and ReERREEEEEZ
cash equivalents ERWE 859 624
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F&HERFLEEER 22 229,230 255,437

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in L4 EREREREEEHHE—RRE-
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248
Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally involved in (i) the marketing and distribution of
photographic developing, processing and printing products
and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances;
commercial and professional audio and visual (“AV") products;
(i) the provision of technical services for photographic
developing and processing (“DP") products, imaging solution,
professional audio-visual advisory and custom design and
installation services; and (iii) the properties investment in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Searich Group Limited and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Fine Products
Limited. Both of the holding companies are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. The Company has its primary listing on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements to the extent they have not already been disclosed
in the other notes. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("HKCO") Cap. 622.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the
revaluation of investment properties, which are measured
at fair value.

(@) Amended standards and revised conceptual

(b)

framework adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
and revised conceptual framework which are
mandatory for the financial year beginning 1 April
2021 and are relevant to its operations.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The amendments and conceptual framework listed
above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

1 April 2021

Amendments to COVID-19 Related Rent

HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond 30
June 2021
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Reference to the Conceptual

1 January 2022

Amendments to 1 January 2022

HKFRS 3 Framework

Amendments to Onerous Contracts - Cost of 1 January 2022
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to Annual Improvements to 1 January 2022
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to Classification of 1 January 2023
HKAS 1 Liabilities as Current or

Non-current

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting 1 January 2023
HKAS 1 and Policies
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting 1 January 2023
HKAS 8 Estimates

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets 1 January 2023
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from

a Single Transaction

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of To be determined
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint

Venture

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Historical cost convention (Continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not yet effective

and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of the above new and amended
standards, and does not expect that they would have
any significant impact to its results of operation and
financial position. The Group will apply the above
new standards and amendments when they become
effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(0

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

2 FEGHEREE (8

21 RUEEGE
FESERAs RS (@)
(b) EREf1E K ERH K E K

1ERERMBIFT T ER R BB HAR
1E5T (#8)

FEE BRI LA HET RERT
EAMFE TR LASERGH
FEENEERBE KRBTSR
ERERFE - RE/M I LIRHET
ZRRETERNBRRAZFTENR
(EHE

22 HRERANEEREEEE

0]

(i)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ZEEHHEHE (&
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
(iii) Equity method

22 HERNRESGEEE (&

(iii) tEEE

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
(iv) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

2
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEHEE (@)
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Business combinations 23 EBEEHH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred;

(i) liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

(i) equity interests issued by the Group;

FERRBERBEERMBEEEGH
AR MARESERBRE TASHEM
EE-WBE-—HNBARHEENRESR
&

() FAEEEENATE;
(i) WEBEBREEAMEENER;

(i) FEBEBHEITRE;

(iv) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a vy IAREBLHEENTAEERE
contingent consideration arrangement; and BRAFE; &

(v) fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the () RWEABEA TR FERNREN
subsidiary. NSSI=R]

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

EEBAH DB A # I EEUR
FiAENEaRERIAARBENT RERK
BHBNATAESE (DEGIIMEREE
5N o AEERBER WEEERATE
FIFERIE R E AR EER T A
EEFENDELEMEEN RN EER
BYME ISRl 1 1 2 o

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. W R R RA R AN EE L B SZ 8 o
The excess of the =

(i) consideration transferred;

(i) amount of any non-controlling interest in the

() FRESERME;
(i) WUEHERNEAFEFMEEDS

acquired entity; and LI
(i) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity (i) o ATHC AR U B B AR O (R R AR A UK
interest in the acquired entity BHBENATE

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

BT R BB B E PN AT ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.6 Foreign currency translation

(0

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company's functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains or losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement on a net basis
within “Administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Except for investment properties,
translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all of the
Group's entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment,
the shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings 5%

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33 5%
leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised within “Selling and distribution costs” and
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are credited to other comprehensive income.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement within “Changes in fair
value of investment properties”.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment” (Note 2.7).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are two measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in "Other income and gains” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated income statement. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest method.

e  Fair value through profit or loss: Derivatives and
other debt instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date a contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of balance sheet date.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative and
debt instruments that does not qualify for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in profit
or loss and presented net in the consolidated
income statement within “Other income and
gains” in the year in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.10 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised as “Other
income and gains” in the consolidated income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Impairment
losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
For the other financial assets, expected credit losses
are assessed according to change in credit quality
since initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

211

2.13

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where the Company has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted-average method. Costs
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 20 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

2.16 Trade, bills and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade, bills
and other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within twelve months after the reporting
period (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEHME (&)
(CONTINUED)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

2.17 ENEAREIEFRS IR (48)
(i) EIEFRSIR (&)

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
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2.18 Employee benefits 2.18 BRE®EH
(i) Short-term obligations () FEHIR(E

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit
credit method. Consideration is given to expected
future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the entity does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and a defined contribution
occupational retirement scheme (the "ORSO
scheme”) under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the consolidated income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the schemes.
The assets of both schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds. The Group's employer contributions to
both schemes vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the schemes, except for the
Group’s employer voluntary contributions to the
ORSO scheme, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the ORSO scheme.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEHEE (@)
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Provisions 2.19 #4E

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below.

(i) Sales of goods
The Group engages in the wholesales and retail of
photographic developing, processing and printing
products, photographic merchandises, consumer
electronic products and household appliances;
commercial and professional AV products; and
skincare products. These products are sold on their
own in separately identified contracts with customers.

The Group's contracts with customers for the sale
of products generally include one performance
obligation. Revenue from the sale of products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products. As receivable is recognised
when the goods are delivered as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Sales of goods - customer loyalty programmes
The Group operates loyalty points programmes, which
allow customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products. The points can be redeemed for
free products, subject to a minimum number of points
obtained. A contract liability for the award points
is recognised at the time of sale. Other income is
recognised when the points are redeemed or expired.

Rendering of services — provision of technical
services for photographic developing and
processing products and imaging solution
Revenue from the provision of the above services is
recognised over time when the services have been
rendered.

(iv) Rendering of services — provision of professional

W)

AV advisory and custom design and installation
services

The Group provides installation services. These
services are sold in bundle together with the sale of
AV equipment to customers. The installation services
can be obtained from other providers and do not
significantly customise or modify the products. The
revenue from the sales of AV equipment is recognised
at a point in time upon delivery of the product, and
revenue from installation service is recognised over
time when the services have been rendered.

Financing component

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.21 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account: the after income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and the weighted average
number of additional ordinary shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.22 Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZHBEHEE (@)
(CONTINUED)
2.22 Leases (Continued) 22215 (@)

122

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received,;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take effect.
When adjustments to lease payments based on an index
or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and
adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;
e any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22

2.23

2.25

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties
and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

The Group applies the practical expedient from assessing
whether a rent concession related to Coronavirus Disease
2019 ("COVID-19") is a lease modification. The Group
recognised the rent concessions related to COVID-19
amounted to approximately HK$909,000 (2021:
HK$2,702,000) in profit or loss.

The Group as lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 14). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income.
The respective leased assets are included in the statement
of financial position based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new
leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are recognised in the
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
2.26 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains right to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to provide services
to the customer. The combination of those rights and
performance obligations give rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the
remaining rights and the performance obligations. The
contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if
the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the
contract is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities
if the measure of the remaining performance obligations
exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign exchange risk, cash flow interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

(i) Market risk
(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB"”). The Group
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular review and monitoring its foreign
exchange exposure.

At 31 March 2022, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 1% (2021: 1%) against RMB
with all other variables held constant, profit for
the year would have been HK$182,000 higher/
lower (2021: HK$171,000), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of RMB-denominated cash and bank balances
deposited with the banks in Hong Kong.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies are less sensitive to movement in
exchange rates as the amounts are not significant
to the Group.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Market risk (Continued)
(b) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
interest income received on the Group’s bank
balances. The Group's interest-generating assets
are mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and United
States dollars. The Group manages its interest
rate risk by regularly monitoring the macro
economic factors that may impact on the interest

rates.

If the interest rates have been 0.5% (2021:
0.5%) higher/lower while all other variables
are held constant, the profit for the year would
increase/decrease and total equity would
increase/decrease by HK$453,000 (2021:
HK$676,000) due to an increase/decrease in

interest income.

(i) Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Details of the Group’s credit policy are set out
in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which mainly comprise trade receivables, contract
assets, cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits,
amount due from an associate, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.

(a) Risk management

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
placing deposits with financial institution that
meet the established credit rating of A. Given
these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in Hong
Kong is monitored closely by management of the
Group who will assess the reputation, the risk
of recoverability and the financial information,
if any, of the counter parties before placing
of deposits. Since the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties, there is

no requirement for collateral.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

e Trade receivables;
e  (Contract assets;

e Deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments); and

e Amount due from an associate.

While cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and
have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

The expected credit losses on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience
and the debtors’ credit history with the Group
and aging profile as at the end of reporting
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the Gross Domestic Product
and the unemployment rate of the regions/
countries in which it sells its goods and services
to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly
adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.
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HAERB R B Bt A5
ERA BZRKRIRENTERE
RERESNBEEBBRXAEM
BE-

B R RBRENTEREERR
DBERAEENBEEERE
KRB ARKERNEER
B R RS MR A AR B D AT IR
FABEERETLE BEBE
REFHABEUARBREZEZ A HE
BRVRRENNZBEEER
EIRE AT E R - R EM
BRI EEEERKRRBAE
e BERNENEESER
REXDRMEMER  WERZ
SRENRALHBAEBEES
B
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MBEAREE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MEBRBEE @)
(ii) Credit risk (Continued) (i EERE (@&
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (b) ZTHEERHE ()
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) BHRBIRERENEE B
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the loss M2022FE K2021438318 &
allowances for trade receivables and contract SEWRERENEENEIE
assets were determined as follows, the expected BEETUN T UTHEBEERS
credit losses below also incorporated forward EIFEHAREEER -
looking information.
Over
Current 1-30 days  31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days Total
TRE 1E30H 31£60H 61E90H EMUL R L)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AETx  BETn  BTr BT BETR
31 March 2022 2022%F3A31H
Weighted average METFSBEHEEX
expected loss rate - 0.2% 1.7% 1.5% 7.3%
Gross carrying amount  BREIAE{E
— trade receivables —BSRYERE
and contract assets ~ RANEE 41,516 5,501 876 400 3,759 52,052
Loss allowances BiEEE 3 10 15 6 275 309
Over
Current  1-30days  31-60 days ~ 61-90 days 90 days Total
RE 1E308 31E60H 61E90H 90HM E 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BETn BT B%Tx  BETR
31 March 2021 2021%3H31H
Weighted average METSEREER
expected loss rate 0.06% 0.21% 0.28% 12.8% 28.3%
Gross carrying amount  BREIAA(E
— trade receivables -BARWRE
and contract assets ~ RABHNEE 41,975 7,093 467 647 872 51,054
Loss allowances BiREE 25 15 1 83 246 370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The movement of the loss allowances for trade

3 MBRAKER @
3.1 BEEAKEER (@
(i EERE (@&

(b) ZHEERE )

BSREIRERGNEE (&)
BRRBRRGEREZHN

receivables as follows: L
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At the beginning of year REA 370 -
(Reversal of)/loss allowances — FRRBHEREEHN
for impairment B RWERIER BB
of trade receivables (@) 8
recognised in profit or
loss during the year (61) 370
At the end of year REXR 309 370

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost and
amount due from an associate

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.

The credit quality of deposits and other
receivables excluding prepayment and amount
due from an associate have been assessed with
reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position
of the counterparties.

The Directors are of opinion that the credit risk of
the amount due from an associate had become
high. Provision for impairment of HK$32,720,000
was recognised as at 31 March 2021 and 2022.
See Note 17 for further information about the
expected credit losses provision.

B 5 EWRARN IR EHEF
RSN EABRRERE TRl
EEHSENRERNREA
B—1THEB

REBHEREIRNEMERE
ERFER— R E A B RIE

FEBRBEREREER T E
BOTEMRNSREAMBL
EFERARSSRHERZEM -5
SHMEEERBRATEERM K
EEREENRS BHNEN
B g B B R EERD B AR EN
B BREITIEER

RERHEMBWERE (FEIEE
R IR Je FE U — R Bk 8 R B R
) MEEERESERSHTF
BUERNBEENRXSHF
BYRA B AR T AT o

EERA BR—EMEQIRMN
BEEERBRERR - 102021F K
2022438318 BHERHER
& #1532,720,0007T - B RATEER
FEGEREBHENE—TE R
MiEE17 -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost and
amount due from an associate (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
certain deposits and other receivables. These
financial assets are considered to be low credit
risk primarily because historically they had no
history of default and the debtors had a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. The Group has
assessed that the 12-months expected credit
losses for these receivables are not material, and
thus no impairment losses were provided for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, except
for receivables from tenants of HK$88,000
(2021: HK$280,000) which was individually
impaired during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(iii) Liquidity risk

The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing
policy and strives to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the year, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

3 MBRKERE (@)

31 MEBRKBEE @)
(i) EERAK @)
(b) ZHEERHE (&

B AR A IRt S R
EREW—MHEASRE
NG

BREBHEA AT RN EMERE
ESREETREREMERE
HoZEZsMEERRARGER
IRME > Ty EEHRE N EEIR
EHLE MEBABRAEN
REPRABTEANEREESRE
B -AEEC T EZERIER
EN12EAEREERIBLAR
BA BN EE2022F %2021
F3IF3HLEFEELEAIRARE
BEEBE EREE2022634
318 L FE W IRE R R E R
B U ARIE H#88,0007T (2021
£ : HE280,0007T) BRI o

(i) TEEEER

FEERFEERFRERZMEBR
TRNEREERFT RV ZRERE
Bk #ELURERBEEFR K

FEBRERESHFMRIHZ
THEBEZIBABERNT

Between Between
On demand 1 year to 2 years to
or within 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
BREXEE
AOME VERIER 2EESER am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HKS$'000
BT BT BT BT
31 March 2022 2022538310
Trade and bills payables BRRMRERER 60,320 - - 60,320
Accrued liabilities and fEst BB REMEMRE
other payables excluding GEErBRERMN
non-financial liabilities 25,529 - - 25,529
Lease liabilities HEaE 38,799 24,807 4,946 68,552
124,648 24,807 4,946 154,401
31 March 2021 2021%3A31H
Trade and bills payables BRENRERER 53,454 - - 53,454
Accrued liabilities and fEst B EREMEMRE
other payables excluding GE£RERRIN
non-financial liabilities 30977 - - 30,977
Lease liabilities REGRE 40,099 21,369 10,426 71,894
124,530 21,369 10,426 156,325
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Capital Management

3.3

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio,
which is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group's policy is to keep the current ratio above 100%.
Current assets include inventories, contract assets, trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
tax recoverable and cash and bank balances. Current
liabilities include trade and bills payables, contract
liabilities, accrued liabilities and other payables, lease
liabilities and tax payable.

3 MBRKERE (@)

3.2

BHEE
FEREFAEREZTEBRARELRE
EUFEEEANBEEEEUARERR
BENERILE U FHEF RBIER
ERREE

FEBERBKER IS MERELER
BB ILFH R - A EE I SEHE
BREREZERE AREREEERH
BITHRG UM RRAEREARRE &
F2022%3A31H%2021FE3831HLEHF
ErERE4AEEZBR BERABFIL

FEBMBRBLEER BRBHEERKRU
MEBERE EREX -FERZHRDHE
FRELLESRI100%  RBEERER
B -ANEE -EZRIIRE FRYRIE
BEREMEWEIRE  TIRERERES
RBTHEF - RBRREEESEYIRE
RE-SNER Bt aRRAMEN
IREHEREREMNIRE

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Total current assets TMENEEERE 492,003 485,920
Total current liabilities TENEELERE (170,995) (163,652)
Net current assets TMENEEFRR 321,008 322,268
Current ratio TENEEE 288% 297%

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements as at 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

3.3

REEHEERERMEE
2022638318 » BE S RIKSE - AT
TEBEEFERRELURENSRSE
EREmAE (2021F 1 §\) o
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

(i) Provision for inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have
been suffered from any impairment. The Group carries
out an inventory review at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
the inventories primarily on the estimated future selling
price and market conditions. Where the estimates of the
net realisable value are less than expected, a material
allowance may arise.

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or from a change
in the market demand for the product or service output of
the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used
in a similar way. Additional depreciation or amortisation is
made if the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives are reviewed at each reporting period based on
changes in circumstances.

(iii) Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment
properties based on valuations determined by
independent professional qualified valuers. The fair value
of the Group’s investment properties are based on market
price of similar properties and locations. In relying on
the valuation reports of the independent professional
valuer, the management has exercised its judgment and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
market conditions prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Any changes in the market conditions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group.

EXREHEE RAER

HUAERZGEMBERREREEEHF
EREPRFAER W A EELBE
TR RRABBEZWEFELAE - EERE
RoMZERRRLGBEZFAEEETETER
ERRBEHZRFEEENAGZIREEF
BERFHE

0]

(i)

(iii)

FaiE

FEBEHTEFERETHREMBE
FEBRRERRBEFE  THBFHR
WmEHEF AR R BEE T BREMA
RREERDREFFENTEIRFE
bt AT 2R B EENR AR BIRTREELE
BREHE-

WmE- -BER=EZAIERENR

EEME -BRERKRFEEEZAIEA
FHR - AEBAEESHER  fIWEA
EELHNIELURRMAFRRIRE
R HEEZERIRBALHZHHERFR
ZEH BEZRHAGRE TRIABERE
B BEZHERBREEREEZ AR
HARLRH - BEZ A FIEREMLR
BEEEMBELUBRZEAUEEZ
IEERTE - MY E BB R EZAETH
ERFREBEMGSAREA BIREH
BRIMRTES I A EAFMINERE
HRRERIEREEMEITER

BREMEATEZ
FERRBBIEXESERMGEMPAE
ENGEFEERENEATE &R
REVMENRFEDERFEYENS
GERREETE - RFHEIEILEXE(GEA
WEERSR EEREDTHEENE I
EMEERERBERSHRERFHNT
Mo EEHmREBRZERERREY X
HRF(Ee
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iv)

W)

(vi)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the loss allowance calculation,
based on the Group's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences arising from
impairment on inventories and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses and deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Significant management judgment is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

4 EBEXGHEERAE (&

(v)

V)

(Vi)

IEERMEERE
FERERSREARTERBEFTHE
ERGEMAETNR ERAPFKRETIRE
BERGATEE TERAFENEES
ARE - EEENRETEEEUNKREE
BRETREEE MEERREELE
UHNATEAEEREREEREER
ENBSE) EEHREE  ATFERH
EREANFAEDEREAFTEFEAY
RANFEREEHEIZNOEE  HATH
EHERLEBENRIEMAE -t EER
BER EEEAAHEENRESELER
UNFAMARRRERE > WERBGBEHM
REAEZERERENHRE-

ERMEERE
TRMEENBEEEENHEQRRN
BHEEENRR S2EERBEBEE
e IRAWISR UK R &SRB KRAIA]
MM FHRRIETHREF
o

RERARE
BEMBEEDEFERERDE K
BRRBINEMELEZMERGBRE
BERAHRZ EREEEMER B
AR ERRA BT REEHEEREK
ARz EREERAI TSR -EEER
R 5 R R FE SR AR B 2 BT AE RS ) Ko 7K 1
[E BRI F 5B R > BLEE AT T HERD
ZIBEMRIRE E S TRIFHE XA - E—
THBENREM B RERM 260
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
four reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the merchandise segment engages in the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing
and printing products and the sale of photographic
merchandises, skincare products, consumer electronic
products and household appliances, and commercial and
professional AV products;

(i) the service segment engages in the provision of technical
services for photographic DP products, imaging solution,
professional AV advisory and custom design and
installation services;

(iii) the investment segment comprises the Group’s businesses
in investment properties and other investment businesses;
and

(iv) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
corporate income and expense items.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been
identified as the Directors. The Directors monitors the results
of its operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of
adjusted profit/(loss) before income tax. The adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/(loss) before income tax except that interest income,
finance cost and share of results of an associate are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
cash and bank balances and other unallocated corporate assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus a
mark-up of approximately 0.00% to 41.90% (2021: 0.00% to
41.89%).

BESEEN
MEEBNMS  cEEERERKRBEE D
EHEA ME2RNEEDHENT :

() Em#ENBREHERQHES N
RENRIEm URHEREE M EEE
m HBEBTFERKARAERUKRBEAR
BHEXTEM;

(i) BR75 9 $EUE S5 4R (48 52 e o N 22 i B
R HBERSRE BELTEBKET
B RETRZERT

(i) REDEOELAERREMENEBR
HMREERE ; &

(iv) EERAEMDE SEAEBNBERS
HE-

FERZIECERREREFT - EFHUE
RELEDENRER UMEHERERDEK
REFEBORE - DERBENDRET2HRD4E
WA, (B518) (BNst L RBEMRFISIRAF)
0 (B18)) sl - LEERIRAFIE, (518
TR EBRFAISRATFIE, (B8 BREE
B AR ELASENBWA RERK
REGE—EBE AT EE

NEEEFBRBELERESE 7 IREIRIE
REMBTEFREMKDEEEEE RA
PARSEEDNRERREEEEE

DERRTEERMNRE VELERBEGERA
thRNEEEER RESZFREDNRER
EipEEEE

DIER 2 HE R EER M AEMN E40.00%E
41.90% (20214 : 0.00%E41.89% ) Z HiiN{&E
e
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IR AT ERAR M

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 &R&HEER (&)
(a) Operating segments (a) RERE
Merchandise Service Investment Corporate and Others Eliminations Consolidated
ER#E 5% ] LEREN il g4
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2001 202 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 - HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
WIT ORETT OERTR BT MR METR MRTR ERTR ARTR MATR METR #RTR
Segment revenue: PEhE:
Sales to extemal customers—~ SMREE 285
- Ata ointn time el A6 791589 95T 205 - - = - = S 812200
- Over time -FEEHeE = - 13247 104540 - - - - - - 13247 104540
Intersegment sales NEmE 851 074 400 4R - - - - B (8) - -
Other income and gains EtARRE 48319 54,984 8,677 20,692 10,649 11,962 20,000 60,108 (69,638 (103376) 18,067 4370
Changes in far value of RENEATEED
investment properties - - - - 14,281 19,381 - - - - 14,281 19,381
Total 4% 969,046 887377 155541 150,035 24,930 31343 20,000 60,108 (121929) (148362) 1,047,588 980,501
Segment profit/(loss) PERIR/ (58 B7Y 5113 (14824) (3998 2049  250% (6289  (5289) - - oBMm B%
Interest income FISHA 1,159 1359
Finance cost BERE 293 833
Profit before income tax CiEn 13 AN
Income tax expense FigHR% By 259
Profit for the year REERE 17557 31,948
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 RESEERE @
(a) Operating segments (Continued) (a) EERE@
Merchandise Service Investment Corporate and Others Consolidated
ER#E ] L PEREM fa
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn BT EbTn BMTn BETn BETn BT RETn BETR EETn
Assets and liablities BERER
Segment assets HEEE 273,09 18779 79,494 75,769 263,770 246,666 41316 46,449 657,679 587,663
Unallocated asets KNEEE 280000 283083
Total assets BELR 887,689 870746
Seqrent abiltes REEE D668 1740 4639 831 1088 105 2955 36 158 18948
Unllocated lables KAEEE 40733 7531
Tota! liabilities BT 236,651 226,960
Other segment information: ~ EIHEER :
Depreciation of propert), & BERRELAE (1)

plant and equipment (Note 7) 5,079 5178 708 8,190 - - 2,209 215 1431 15,520
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  EAEEEZHE (Biz)

(Note 7) B4 21,91 20918 23376 - - - - 44,602 45337
Capital expenditure’ (Note 13) ERET (H513) 1181 6,529 1,660 2828 - - 45 891 9293 10,248
Changes in fair value of investment  REMEATELE (H314)

properties (Note 14) - - - - (14,281) (19,381) - - (14,281) (19,381)
Reversal of provision for GREERE M)

inventories (Note 7) (1,882) (4,188) - - - - - - (1,882) (4,188)
Impairment loss on property, nE RERRENRERE

plant and equipment and BECHESE

right-of-use assets - 1305 602 1703 - - - B 602 3,008
(Reversal of impairment)impaiment £BEEZ (BEEE) /

Joss on financial assets HEBE - - (61) 370 - - - - (61) 370

(b)

! Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant

and equipment.

Geographic information
An analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which
the transaction took place is as follows:

T BAHAXBEREVE -BERSRE-

HERE
3% 5 P 408 59 2 2 S B IR 3 3 47 40
T

(b)

Revenue from external
customers — Hong Kong

REINAERZNHE-FH

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
1,015,240 916,750

An analysis of the Group's non-current assets (other than
deferred tax assets and deposits) by location of assets is as

REEMEMBINZAEBFERDEE
CRIEIRIAE ERIZEIRIN DMUWT :

follows:

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T

Non-current assets EREFEE
Hong Kong &4 252,258 246,310
PRC FE 130,766 126,131
383,024 372,441
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5
(c) Information about a major customer
Revenue of approximately HK$36,767,000 (2021: HK$31,190,000)
was derived from sales by the merchandise segment to a
single customer.

6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents (i) the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts; and (i) income from the rendering of
technical services for photographic DP products, imaging
solution, professional AV advisory and custom design and
installation services.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

LESEER (8

(c) BR—%IXEEFZEH
sz A9 1E36,767,0007T (20214 @ 3
#31,190,0007T) D E MM E D EHET
B-HPAESZHELE

Wir et ~ EL fth Uit A B Wt e

W TR AERZ SRR EOHEEMZ ¥
FFE BHRBRERITN) ; R HERE
HENERRMRE - ERBRASE -FERE
BRI R R BERB WA

Yozt ~ HMURA Rzt 2 0T

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue =
Sale of goods EmifE 872,416 791,689
Income from the rendering of services 1RHARFEZ WA 142,824 125,061
1,015,240 916,750
Other income and gains H At A R W 8
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFEWA 1,159 1,359
Gross rental income from investment BV EHASUALEE
properties (Note 14(a)) (FFzE14(a)) 9,044 7,930
Marketing subsidy TiIGHEERED 5,055 5,208
Rent concessions from lessors HHAABEER 909 2,702
(Clawback of)/income from BTN GRE) WA
government grants
— Employment Support Scheme —RALFEETE
(Note (i) (BFEE()) (164) 21,601
— Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme —SEXEE
(Note (i) (P &%(Gi)) - 3,800
— Other government grants —H B 8D 60 50
Others Hith 3,163 3,079
19,226 45,729
Note: B EE

(i) The amount represents salaries and wages subsidies granted
under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the use of paying
wages of employees from June to November 2020.

(i)  The amount represents government subsidies granted under the
Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for subsidising retail stores’
operation.

() ZEEHDTBRNITHEBMEHNBETZ
BERETRERZHERITERHM  XU52020
FeAENBPBXGREREIE-

(i) ZEEHBEBHNITHEBAFHEHNRRE
ESHETRERZMHM UENTEEHZE
3o
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EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEEESEREX
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5% BT BT

Cost of inventories sold HEFEME 710,917 654,854
Cost of services provided MRS & 47,276 34,070
Auditor's remuneration ZEET N =

Audit services EZIRES 1,000 1,000

Non-audit services FEEZRH 989 613
Depreciation of property, ME -BERZBEZINE

plant and equipment 13 14,371 15,520
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRBEEZINE 15 44,642 45,337
Advertising and marketing expenses E&ERHIHHERY 8,965 12,425
Short-term lease payments RHEEEA® 15 2,115 1,252
Variable lease payments AIEEEA® 15 7,905 6,900
(Gains)/losses on disposals of HENE -BEKRKREZ

property, plant and equipment (fezs) /K548 (58) 7
Reversal of provision for inventories 77 & 12 % #3 [5] (1,882) (4,188)
Write-off of trade receivables HiEH B 5 FEURERIE 350 -
Legal and professional fee EREREEER 1,694 1,728
Employee benefit expense EERAFHES 8 125,996 117,650
Foreign exchange differences, net ~ BERZE%8> 358 (1,923) (2,304)
Others Hith 61,578 56,293
Total cost of sales, selling and HERMA HHE R

distribution costs, advertising BER BEERMEHE

and marketing expenses and MY RITHBEZ &

administrative expenses 1,023,935 941,157
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

EEEANAY (BRESEH®)

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT T BT

Wages and salaries ITERHE 119,416 115,607
Pension costs — defined BT —RE R

contribution plans 4,822 4,659

Provision for/(write-back of) RERF & EE (BE)
long service payment 1,758 (2,616)
125,996 117,650

Note:

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group has sponsored various defined contribution plans
for its employees in the PRC. These plans are organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments based
on certain percentage of the relevant employees’ monthly
salaries. The municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees under these plans and
the Group has no further constructive obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme
which is managed by an approved trustee registered under
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance”) for its employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group
and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute
a maximum of 5% (2021: 5%) of each individual's relevant
income or a limited amount as prescribed by the MPF
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group and independently administered.

MisE

WEERWHRTBENRSEBRRRELZR-N
AR

FEBEAHTEEESHESEREMNE
BozEStEHEME RN EE Rk E
BESRRAZETESLFEHHER R RE
BB AR RBBELESERAAERARRRK
RKEERERKEFEME  FRIFHERS
FEBMEBARENERE-DOEEEE-

AEBNTAEREBENEER LA E RN
2> AR A BRERHIEAEE SRR
(e B EG) EMMNIZESTAEE K
EEREEBREEY AR ABEIRFGIFTTEA
BEERBWARSZ5% (20214F 1 5%) 5k
REBEHER AN EERAERNEE
NEFE WHILER
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2021: three) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in Note 34. Details of the remuneration of the remaining
two (2021: two) non-Directors, highest paid employee for the
year were as follows:

SimS#HEMAL
FRSLR = NMES B 1E31 (20214 © 31D
BE HHMNFIRER W3R E - FARHEER
I (20214 @ 2iD) = HMEBEERIFESR K
LB -

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Salaries and allowances e BORRL 2,552 2,654
Pension costs — defined BAREHA—RER—DREE

contribution plans 36 36

2,588 2,690

The non-Director, highest paid employee’s remuneration fell
within the following bands:

FEERESHFHNEEZNESBRABIRUT
HE :

Number of employees

BEAH
2022 2021
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 AME17TTEE1,000,0007T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000  ##&1,000,0017c £ ##1,500,0007T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000  ##1,500,0017c % #¥#2,000,0007T 1
2 2

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 March 2022, Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of qualifying corporation will be taxed
at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at
16.5%. For the year ended 31 March 2022, one (2021: one)
subsidiary of the Group is entitled to this tax benefit. The
profits of other Group entities incorporated in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profit tax regime are continued to
be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

10 FRiSHRSX

HE2022F38310ILEE ) FBFERIRE
EEBBINZ M ERRAE  #ME16.5%
(20214F : 16.5%) sHiRHE o

REBFERBAT SERATMAEE B
2,000,0007T3#%8.25% 2 MR AN TR IE » T8
75 1£2,000,0007T Z FBAE#216.5% 2 M E 44
MIRTBE B E2022F3831HILFE  AEEB
—f (20215 . —H) B AT ZZE BN
BE-REBAFMELMATESHNERAARS
ERZHEMERBE A BRAEER165%2
Bl —MEHMIRIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10
Taxation on profits assessable for the year in the PRC has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the location in which
the Group operates.

FRiSiRR % (8)
FFEETERERRFENRNERAERLE
ERHERTRRFAE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Current tax — Hong Kong EHRE-FE
Charge for the year FREHR 1,445 249

Under/(over) provision in prior years EEZEBERRS

(FBEE#E ) 58 (135)

Current tax — PRC EHRMIE—FEH
Charge for the year FAEHE 494 489
1,997 603
Deferred tax (Note 26) EIEFRIE (Mi3E26) 1,782 1,921
Income tax expense FrigfB X 3,779 2,524

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to losses of the consolidated
entities as follows:

BERAEBBRAERAFBEZRELRRAM
RTAREXBEANGAERGEMELEZE
WA ZFRUNT ¢

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Profit before income tax BRET1S R AT HI 21,336 34,472
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BEER &R EEA
applicable to profits in respective EMREHEZRIE
countries/regions 4,306 6,326
Under/(over) provision in prior years —~ FEZEHERE, (BEEREE) 58 (135)
Income not subject to tax REBHUA (2,463) (6,099)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose & a] {0#2 3z 1,303 2,480
Tax losses for which no deferred tax ~ RHERIEILERBEBEEZ
asset was recognised RIEEIE 3,908 2,813
Utilisation of previously unrecognised — ¥&#8iBF KRR 2 MIBEEE
tax losses (3,274) (2,861)
Tax concession MRIER % (59) -
Income tax expense FriRiiA= 3,779 2,524
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SkE?
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: BREABRABBEUATEEE
2022 2021
Profit attributable to owners of KABHEE AEEF)E
the Company (HK$'000) (Bt F ) 18,110 33,635
Weighted average number of ERTEBRZIMETHH
ordinary shares in issue 1,185,318,349 1,185,318,349
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREREF GEW) 1.53 2.84
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13

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years. The diluted
earnings per share equals basic earnings per share.

DIVIDENDS

The final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounting to HK$11,853,000 (2020: HK$Nil) was paid during
the year.

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of
a final dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary share (2021: 1
HK cent per ordinary share), amounting to an aggregate of
approximately HK$11,853,000 for the year ended 31 March
2022. The proposed final dividend for the year is subject
to the approval by the shareholders of the Company in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements do not reflect this dividend

payable.

11

12

sREHN (8

HRAEEREE2022F %202143H8318 1k
FEUTESHTETHIEER  HARMZ
EEEE2I2BREABIFHBERE -&
REERNERNSRERER -

RE
FERBRCEZE2021F3831HIEFEEZ R
i& B A 111,853,0007T (20204 : B Z i) ©

EEEREMEE2022838318 L EEIRT
KRR ESRZERIEWLQQE  EREE
BR1EAL) > &HAHE11,853,0007T c AN EE
MEKKRAREBFEAATRRNAASE
ERFBEAG EHESR HAEE  ILELR
B BHRRTERMZIERGRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ME - -BER=E
Furniture,
fixtures and Machinery
leasehold and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
B EER
HEME
BF K HEKIE "E B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BETT
At 1 April 2021 1#20215481H
Cost A 30,325 92,325 56,816 7,050 186,516
Accumulated depreciation and REMERAE
impairment (19,510) (82,391) (45,692) (5,259) (152,852)
Net book amount REFE 10,815 9,934 11,124 1,791 33,664
Year ended 31 March 2022 HZE2022F3A31HLEE
Opening net book amount at R202154B1HZ
1 April 2021 FREFE 10,815 9,934 11,124 1,791 33,664
Additions 1 - 8,640 - 653 9,293
Disposals HE - (181) - - (181)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) wERS (M:7) (1,326) (10,931) (1,511) (603) (14,371)
Impairment loss REBE - (7) = = (7)
Exchange realignment ERAE 131 - - - 131
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 9,620 7,455 9,613 1,841 28,529
At 31 March 2022 1*202243H31H
Cost A 30,916 90,747 56,816 6,911 185,390
Accumulated depreciation and REMMERAE
impairment (21,296) (83,292) (47,203) (5,070) (156,861)
Net book amount REFE 9,620 7,455 9,613 1,841 28,529
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

13 ME- -BER=RRE (8

Furniture,
fixtures and Machinery
leasehold and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
R HER
HEME
k2 RE  HBREE "E ez
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BBTR  BBTR  BETR  BETR
At 1 April 2020 1$2020F481H
Cost A 29,182 94,327 57,226 6,030 186,765
Accumulated depreciation and REERAE
impairment (16,974) (82,336) (44,309) (4,564) (148,183)
Net book amount REFE 12,208 11,991 12,917 1,466 38,582
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE2021F3831HILEE
Opening net book amount at 202048182
1 April 2020 ENREFE 12,208 11,991 12,917 1,466 38,582
Additions i - 9,228 - 1,020 10,248
Disposals HE - (12) - - (12)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) EmM= (f:7) (1,854) (11,221) (1,750) (695) (15,520)
Impairment loss REHE - (52) (43) - (95)
Exchange realignment ERAE 461 - - - 461
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 10,815 9,934 11,124 1,791 33,664
At 31 March 2021 12021438310
Cost S 30,325 92,325 56,816 7,050 186,516
Accumulated depreciation and REMERAE
impairment (19,510) (82,391) (45,692) (5,259) (152,852)
Net book amount REFE 10,815 9,934 11,124 1,791 33,664

Depreciation expense of HK$2,002,000 (2021: HK$2,234,000)
has been charged to “Cost of sales”, HK$6,138,000 (2021:
HK$7,917,000) has been charged to “Selling and distribution
costs”, and HK$6,231,000 (2021: HK$5,369,000) has been
charged to “Administrative expenses”.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of HK$1,244,000 (2021: HK$13,269,000) and
right-of-use assets of HK$5,502,000 (2021: HK$63,968,000)
that were subject to impairment tests in the event that trading
performance is below expectation or store is loss making. The
Group considered each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit ("CGU") and performed
impairment assessments on each of the CGU with impairment
indicators by considering the recoverable amount of such
assets at retail store level.

ITEERIZ A 12,002,0007T (20214 © HiK
2,234,0007T) ~ A& #6,138,0007T (20214 : #
#7,917,0007T) K ##6,231,0007C (20214 :
7%5,369,0007T) E BRI THHE R A ~ THHE
Ko tHE R RMTHRZ 130k

R2022F3B31H AEBEHBENYE K
ERBZEABNE,244,00078 (20214 © B
13,269,0007T) K A E E % B 15,502,000
7t (20214 : #1£63,968,0007T) * BEX R
HENBHRREHBENE R TETRER
o AEBESERNSEERHABEILAARIR
SESBEM (REELEM)  TEEZSFE
ERTEEBENIKREISE A BEERE
MERMEIL AR EEBUETRER
o
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14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
The carrying amount of the retail store assets is written down
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The
estimates of the recoverable amounts were based on value-
in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections
based on the financial forecasts approved by management
covering the remaining tenure of the lease, with major
assumptions such as percentage change in sales growth rate
and percentage change in running cost. The pre-tax discount
rate used in the discounted cash flow projections is 11.5%
which reflects specific risks relating to the current market
assessment of risk specific to such assets. As a result, an
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of HK$7,000 and HK$595,000 (2021: HK$95,000
and HK$2,913,000) respectively were recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

13 ME- -BER=RRE (8

WEEEHEENRTEARNE M AT URE
S IZEENRAEMRZEET KOS
o st MEIS BN RESEBHUEZ RE
BRTHEAM B ETER RAMIRREREEE
FrstEMEREEMEE HXERKXAMH
ENMREERNEOEEHREEREINE DL
HEH RRIRERBA R ERANRATEIRE
ANS5% HRMEZFHHEHZEEERTE
BB AR AEER - FLt > ¥E K
ERREURERAEEENRERES NS
F &7 00077 K A 1K595,0007T (20214 @ HBIK
95,0007T K & £2,913,0007T) » M b &M
G

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 EWME
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BIETT
At fair value BATEHE
Opening balance FEEEER 245,507 225,436
Net gains from fair value adjustment ANTERBZ WG FEE 14,281 19,381
Exchange realignment fE R A% 386 690
Closing balance FRERR 260,174 245,507

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss for
investment properties

() REMERIRRERZEH

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Gross rental income (Note 6) AW ALLE (HiE6) 9,044 7,930
Direct expenses (including rates, BIMEEZREMEEEY
building management fee and BEREAX (BEEM-KE
repairs and maintenance) EEREMUREBRERE)
arising on rental-earning
investment properties (3,248) (1,680)
5,796 6,250

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2021: Nil).

(b) Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group's investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan &
Associates, to determine the fair value of the investment
properties as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. The revaluation
gains or losses are included in “Changes in fair value
of investment properties” in the consolidated income
statement. The following table analyses the investment
properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

72022F3831H  AEREEETINE
REBBEZ RREBRFREST (20214 :

) o

(b) ATEESR

{H{EEM& E1T(Chung, Chan & Associates)
EMTEEZKREYEETEILGHE U
EEREYER2022FE%20214F3831H
B AFE - BEEREREEIB T ALGE RS
RIEBEMEATEEE N TR
HEHFEDSNBRATEIRZREY
EDMe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14 BEME @
(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (b) AFERBLS (&)

Fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs

EREATAIBREZHAEHELATE

(Level 3) (Level 3)
(838 (83%R)
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Recurring fair value measurements KEMAFETE
Investment properties: REME .
- Industrial building units - Hong Kong ~ —L¥{EFEA—FH 134,654 126,457
— Commerdial office units — PRC —HERAEEN—PE 125,520 119,050
260,174 245,507
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and FEENBREERENERNSEHRIE
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date MEBEELEARINFEBRSRE
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the ZENER c FRU M 14k~ SB2MR K 53
transfer. There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 Rz EER o
during the year.
The following table presents the changes in investment TRETIEE2022F K2021F38318 1k
properties with fair value measurements using significant FE FRHEAFTITRBREBABHEAT
unobservable inputs (level 3) for the years ended 31 B (B35 MIRBEEZ &80
March 2022 and 2021.
For the year ended 31 March 2022 2022938310 LLEE
PRC Hong Kong Total
HE ) k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT
Opening balance FNEEER 119,050 126,457 245,507
Net gains from fair value adjustment ~ ATFEFRZ K FHE 6,084 8,197 14,281
Exchange realignment ERBE 386 - 386
Closing balance FRER 125,520 134,654 260,174
Total gains for the year included in ERRKE GtAGRERER
the consolidated income statement, ~ MREMEATELHA)
under "Changes in fair value of
investment properties” 6,084 8,197 14,281

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited S 8BiESRMERABRAT



14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(©)

14 EME (8

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (b) AFERBLS (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3831BLEFE
PRC Hong Kong Total
HE ) g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT
Opening balance &R 111,189 114,247 225,436
Net gains from fair value adjustment ~ AFEREZ WHFE 7,171 12,210 19,381
Exchange realignment ERAE 690 - 690
Closing balance FRER 119,050 126,457 245,507
Total gains for the year included in the ERAUE Gt AGRERER
consolidated income statement, IREMERTELEIN)
under "Changes in fair value of
investment properties” 7171 12,210 19,381
Valuation process of the Group (c) TEEMGEBRTRE

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$260,174,000 (2021: HK$245,507,000) as at 31
March 2022 by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which
are included in Note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. The finance department reports
directly to the chief operating decision-maker. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the
chief operating decision-maker, finance department and
the independent valuer on a regular basis.

At each financial year end the finance department:

e Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

e Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

e Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each
reporting date between the chief operating decision-
maker, finance team and the independent valuer.

AEBZREYERBIZESER
{LBEM#E E47(Chung, Chan & Associates)
(L EMF AR EEER I H
Ff 1 8 B9 3% 25 ) 2 19 3t B A0 4B 35 75 S
KRER) 12022E3 B3 1 BEHHEA B
260,174,0007T (20214 : ##5245,507,000
7o) cETREYVECKRLCEANZTHA
FE=F HtEEFBEERN GRS
RERMIzE29

FEEMBHRMBEREENERBIL
HEMERNGEE TEERTELER
RERS TBEERRE HHUKRE
YEEMERNREEBERER

MHENESEAMBEER

e REBUMERSHNABEEXRBA
&;

. M FEEGERSTENEGE
28 ;R

o HBILEMETHRC

FEEERARE MHEERKRBILGERM
RERSHHREIRATELHELHS
#fre
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Valuation techniques
Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are
generally determined using the direct comparison
approach. By making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant markets,
comparable properties in close proximity have been
analysed, and adjustments have been made to account for

the difference in factors such as locations and property

size etc.

These significant unobservable inputs include:

14 EME (8

(d) f&{ERE
EAEATTRRBAEHEATE

FERREVENATE-—REBEREL
REEE -KSEZAMMIENTELLRE
EXG ofiatEn T E LR 2T
MUBRMERESHEZNEZRFLA

%gc

ZEEATAHRBABERE:

Fair value at Range of Relationship of
31 March 2022 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs inputs to fair value
12022%3A31H
ZRTE FEHEZR AOBRRBAGBE
IE1= (Bl ERE TOBRBAE BAEZEE RTEEZHE
Industrial units - 134,654 Direct comparison  Adjusted market ~ HK$1,418 - The higher the adjusted
Hong Kong approach price HK$5,347 per market price, the higher
square foot the fair value
TERFE- ERLEE RARTIHER STAREE 48T LREMHELER
&H EB5 347 RTEHD
Office units - 125,520 Direct comparison  Adjusted market ~ RMB10,640 - The higher the adjusted
PRC approach price RMB39,904 per market price, the higher
square meter the fair value
WAZEE(—HE ERLEZE LRETHER  STHRARE0640T LHREHHERES
Z ANR39,9047¢ RTEHD
Fair value at Relationship of
31 March 2021 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
12021438318
ZRFHE FIHRE AOBRAAER
CIE| (BT HmERE AOBRERAE BABZHEE NFEZ %
Industrial units - 126,457 Direct comparison ~ Adjusted market ~ HK$2,820 - The higher the adjusted
Hong Kong approach price HK$5,312 per market price, the higher
square foot the fair value
TEBFEM- ERRE KARTSER STAFRER Q0T LREMSERER
&% EHE5 3127 ATEES
Office units - 119,050 Direct comparison  Adjusted market ~ RMB10,257 - The higher the adjusted
PRC approach price RMB31,630 per market price, the higher
square meter the fair value
MAZEM—HE ERERE KRETHER STARARY0257T CAETHERES

ZEAR31,6307T

ATESE
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15 LEASES 15 g

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a A FIREERAEEEARBAZEEN
lessee. Bt
Leasehold Properties
land held for lease for Equipment
own use own use lease Total
BA BA
HELTM MEHRE REHEE ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE202253A831H L EE
Opening net book amount at 202148182
1 April 2021 FEYREEE 31,850 50,335 11,085 93,270
Additions 121 - 46,259 - 46,259
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WERL (M:7) (1,629) (39,651) (3,362) (44,642)
Impairment HE (595) - - (595)
Exchange realignment ERAE 29 - - 29
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 29,655 56,943 7,723 94,321
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE2021E3A831HILEEE
Opening net book amount at 202048182
1 April 2020 FYREEE 33,375 53,685 14,447 101,507
Additions 1210 - 40,129 - 40,129
Lease modification G EH) - (217) - 217)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) mERZ (f:E7) (1,626) (40,349) (3,362) (45,337)
Impairment oAl - (2,913) - (2,913)
Exchange realignment ERAE 101 - - 101
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 31,850 50,335 11,085 93,270
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (a) RIFEMBIKRRDPERHNEEE
of financial position
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Lease liabilities HEaR
Current wE 37,728 38,116
Non-current JERED 29,026 30,921
66,754 69,037
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

15 LEASES (CONTINUED)

15 A8 (&)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) MREFESWERPERDHIEEE
statement
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AEFT
Finance costs A& A A 2,935 2,853
Expense relating to short-term lease B HAM B RERMRE X
payment (included in “Selling and GtATHHERPHER)
distribution costs” and “Administrative  RI{7EEX)) (MizE7)
expenses”) (Note 7) 2,115 1,252
Expense relating to variable lease EARGAHEREN
payments not included in lease AR ENTRERANES
liabilities (included in “Selling and GIATHERDHER])
distribution costs”) (Note 7) (M5E7) 7,905 6,900
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use FREEEZINERS
assets (Note 7) (MI5E7) 44,642 45,337

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
March 2022 was HK$60,588,000 (2021: HK$56,698,000).

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for
The Group leases various properties and equipment.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 2
to 7 years but may have extension options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

(d) Variable lease payments

Some properties leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from a store.
For individual stores, certain lease payments are on
the basis of variable payment terms with percentages
ranging from 3% to 13% of sales (2021: 7.5% to 9%).
Variable payment terms are used for a variety of reasons,
including minimising the fixed costs base for established
stores. Variable lease payments that depend on sales are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the Group
with such variable lease contracts would increase total
lease payments by approximately HK$773,000 (2021:
HK$690,000).

(e) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included in a
number of properties across the Group. These terms
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
of managing contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by the Group
and not by the respective lessor.

(©)

(d)

(©)

HE2022F3831HLEEE - BAERSR
H 48 28 24 7 1860,588,0007T (20214 : &
#56,698,0007T) °

FEENAEESHURMNAAR

AEMBESBNERLE - AES0E
¥EE I ENERSBR BTEAENT
P 4t 0B B4 4 o FAL 66KT ARSEEL)
RGBT B8 SRR R
o

CIE=1i = NEAN

BOMERSOSHEHEENHEH
M A S T E R ERERAE BT
FAE (S RTHAR 3R AT & B AN F 8
EFERIZ3%E13% (20214 : 7.5%FE9%)
SHE A IRERNDERZSERRAME
B BEReRECEERNERERE
B - R P EEmEN 2R EMRN
BEZENRNEREEAENIEET

WAEETEZSUEHEESONFE
EEEREEMI0%  MEMRAELEE
HANA B EE773,0007T (20214 @ B
690,0007T) ©

JEHAR 48 L IRIEHE
FEENZEYEC SR RKILEE
o L ERRANBESOESEREN
EERAC -FANKS YR RAE IS
ERAERAERTHE MARHESEN
HBAITRE
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16 SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 are

16 MIEAT

M2022F3A31AZEEMB AR FBENT ¢

as follows:
Ownership interest held by
UTALHEHNEREED
Place of incorporation/ non-
establishment and Issued ordinary controlling  Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital the Company interests  place of operation
SRR PRI R El32]
ki ERERMEE BETERREE YN s FEXBRERME
Direct Indirect
B ik
Callas Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in
liability company Hong Kong
RESREERAT B BREART BEkES REBUSNERE
China-Hongkong Graphic Arts  Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
Products Limited liability company HK$10,000 printing products in Hong
Kong
RAERIZNERAR &8 BREART BBk A10,0007 REBEERSHORER
C.Y. Sun Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share 100% - - Investment holding in
limited liability company ~ US$10,000 Hong Kong
HERUHES E&K10,000%7T REAUERERR
BREARH
E-Max Service Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Provision of installation service
liability company HK$10,000 for household appliances in
Hong Kong
BEIRRBBERAT B BREART BERAEY REARUERAESRRE
10,0007 &%
Emmy Technology Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 70% 30%  Provision of professional AV
Development Limited liability company HK$10,000 advisory and custom design
and installation services in
Hong Kong
UERKERBRAT B BREART BERAEY REARUEXY SBEMR
10,0007% B R RTERY
Fotomax (F.E.) Ltd. Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Provision of photographic
liability company HK$1,000,000 developing and processing
services and retail of
photographic merchandise
in Hong Kong
REE ER) BRAT B BREART BERAEY REBRMEY RADRE R
1,000,0007% BYSEMTE
Fotomax Trading Ltd. PRC, limited liability Ordinary share - 100% - Provision of central
company RMB10,000,000 administrative support to
the Group in the PRC
HE BRERAR EERARE RPEATERRHRHRR
10,000,000 7T TSR
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16 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

IR AT ERAR M

16 MIEBAT (48)

Ownership interest held by

UTFALFREEEEED

Place of incorporation/ non-
establishment and Issued ordinary controlling  Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital the Company interests  place of operation
BRI A E R El32]
B EEERIEE BETERRERE YN R IBEBREEHY
Direct Indirect
E# %
FotoWorks (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 65% 35%  Provision of imaging solution in
Limited liability company HK$6,800,000 Hong Kong
&8 BREART LERAEY REBRUTZBRARE
6,800,0007T
Fuji Life Science Products Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Retail of skincare products in
Limited liability company Hong Kong
ETAGRBERERAT B BREEAT BEkES I REEUSEBEERTE
Fujimage Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Provision of central
liability company HK$1,000,000 administrative support to
the Group in Hong Kong
BEIEREROLBRAR B BREART LiEkAEY REBRAERRM
1,000,0007¢ RRTH RS
Fuji Photo Products Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
Company Limited liability company HK$10,000,000 photographic developing
and processing products in
Hong Kong and Macau
EIREEMBRAT B BREART LiEkRAEY REBRAMEREREHESY
10,000,0007c ROHENE R
Great Earnings Investments Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
Limited liability company
HEREERAT B BREART LEkES REBUENERE
Hainan Fuji Color Equipments  PRC, limited liability Ordinary share - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
Co., Ltd. company HK$5,000,000
BEEIFNERERRAR B BRERAH ZEkAEY RPBERENERE
5,000,0007T
Majestic Income Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
liability company
BRERAR B BREART LEkAE T REBUENERE
Orderly Mind Enterprises Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
Limited liability company
BREEERAT B BREARHT LEkE T REBUENERE
Orient City Properties Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong

Limited

liability company

B BREERT

ERERBE T

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited S 8BiESRMERABRAT
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16 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

16 MEBAF (4)
Ownership interest held by
NUTALFERREE#EER

Place of incorporation/ non-
establishment and Issued ordinary controlling  Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital the Company interests  place of operation
BRI A E R El32]
B EEERIEE BETERRERE YN R IBEBREEHY
Direct Indirect
E# %
Palace Glory Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
liability company
WEBRAE &8 BREART LiEkES T RPBERENERE
Pride High Company Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
Limited liability company
HABRAR &8 BREART BiEkES T RPBERENERE
Pro Audio Development Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 70% 30%  Wholesales of AV products in
Limited liability company HK$10,000 Hong Kong
EEYEERERAF B BREART BB AE10,0007T REBHBETEER
Sky Rich (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
liability company
XE @EH) BRAF B BREARHT BiEkES T RPBERENERE
Sky Year Resources Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
liability company
REERERAT B BREART BEkES T RPBERENERE
Speed-up Enterprises Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
liability company
BREEERAT B BREART BiEkES I REBUSNERE
Wai Ming Electrical Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 60% 40%  Retail and wholesales of
Development Limited liability company HK$10,000 consumer electronic
products and household
appliances in Hong Kong
RHEXERERAF &8 BREART BB AE10,0007T REBUFHEEFERR
RAERTERME
YCY International Limited Hong Kong, limited Ordinary share - 100% - Retail and wholesales of
liability company HK$10,000 consumer electronic
products and household
appliances in Hong Kong
EXERERAT B BREART BB AE10,0007T REBUFHEEFERR
RAERTERME
shRAEIE R (£78) PRC, limited liability Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
BRAF company US$150,000 printing products in the PRC
HE BRERAAR B 150,000% 7T B B R AR EN R E
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16

17

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
for the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

In the opinion of the Directors that there is no non-controlling
interests that are material to the Group.

IR AT ERAR M

16

ME2E (48)
ERFIDEEDRAHTERLTFEXRA
EARERLTERFEETERHZER
BIfBAR - EFRRIIHEMMB AR 2
BFEEREAR TR

EERR UEHFEEMSBERZIFESR
MR o

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 17 EW—FEBEATFE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JELEHRG M AEE - -
Amount due from an associate EW—R B ARIE 32,720 32,720
Less: Provision for impairment (Note) B OREES () (32,720) (32,720)

Note:

The Directors are of the opinion that the credit risk of the amount due
from an associate is considered to be high because the associate has
net deficit as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: same), which, it has
become uncertain that continuing financial support can be provided by
the associate’s holding company to enable the associate to settle this
balance. Provision for impairment of HK$32,720,000 was recognised as
at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and repayable on demand.

The carrying amount of the amount due from an associate
approximates to its fair value.

EEFTA BB HEBMEAINENEERARR
B RRAZMEATN202263831 B2 53 B4

(2021538318 : #HRA) > THREEZHE AR KZE
RASEGREFENY B ENBHEATF B
MEER 012022 2021438310 ER DR ERE
#1£32,720,0007T ©

Y —HBEARREAERRRES > WA
BERERE -

EWR—EBE AR RIBEZRABERAE R TE
GEEER
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17 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

18

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
interest in an associate.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, details of the Group’s interest
in an associate are as follows:

17 B —RBE AR RE (&)

BEARERN-—HBEQRNZEZARZ
HAREE

122022F %20214F3831H » AEE K — Rk
ERBZBmFRNT

Place of Percentage
incorporation of equity
and Issued ordinary attributable Principal Measurement
Name operations share capital to the Group activities method
ALK KEMREL
Eay e BREITEERRES BEBERL TEEH SERE
kikki.K Retail (H.K.)  Hong Kong Ordinary share 49% Retail of stationery, Equity
Limited HK$300,000 life-style gifts and
home fashion products
&B iRk #1300,0007T HEXE - EEEm e
REHARERTE

Summarised financial information of the Group’s associate is
as follows:

FEEBMEARD ZMBEMBEMNT ¢

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEFT

Total assets BESE 2,353 4,458

Total liabilities BEAEE 33,426 34,555

Revenue & 4,011 4,074

(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (5518) /FB (975) 5,626
INVENTORIES 18 78

The Group’s inventories principally consist of photographic
developing, processing and printing products, skincare
products, consumer electronic products and household
appliances, and commercial and professional AV products for
resale.

The cost of inventories amounted to HK$710,917,000 (2021:
HK$654,854,000) and a reversal of provision for inventories of
HK$1,882,000 (2021: HK$4,188,000) were included in "“Cost
of sales”.

FEEZEFETERMBEE R  HEIKRED
RER EBEM HEBFEMKRKXBE
MR mRkEEEEER

FE R A BE710,917,0007T (20214 © B
654,854,0007T) K 17 & 5 # #[0] A #1,882,000
7T (20214F : ##84,188,0007T) Jh 5T A TEHE AL
&Ko
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19

20

CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned
from professional AV installation services as the receipt of
consideration is conditional on successful completion of
installation service. Upon completion of installation service, the
amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade
receivables.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the expected timing of
recovery or settlement for contract assets is within one year.

Significant changes in contract assets

Contract assets have been increased as the Group has provided
more installation services. No losses allowance for contract
assets was recognised.

19

BHNEE
ERNESHIREARTIEEMIITHEE
RFBME BENEEARTEIEZSTZER
5 PR BRE U 2 R A 1T R 4R FEET o STl R 2R AR TS
B HEEARCHNEENTRRENNEEES
FE U IR TE ©

MR20228F %2021E3831H AN EENTER
Wl & EHEEA—FER -

BHEEZEXEH
HRAERERHRS R RENEER
PRIGIN - WML S X B EFED MRS

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 B EWARIE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables B EWERTE 44,811 46,200
Less: impairment losses on trade B BSREWIRIEZ A
receivables (Note 3.1(ii)(b)) #5148 (FFEE3.1Gi)b)) (309) (370)
Trade receivables — net B EWARIE— 558 44,502 45,830

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, these
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the aging from billing.

See Note 3.1(ii)(b) for credit risk exposure and expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
of trade receivables the Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, due to the short-term
nature of the current receivables, their carrying amounts
are considered to be the same as their fair values and are
denominated in HK$.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are either on
a cash basis or on credit. For credit sales, the credit period is
generally 15 to 30 days, except for certain well-established
customers and project sales customers where the terms are
extended to 120 days. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit pre-approved by senior management. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

FEERBEEMBTREENEIRREZG
EHERRREEBIRIRER  ZE R
HEZRUWIRERABREFERERRGE
BE-ANERMEESE ZFEWRET
REAEEE RS HRIRERE D4 -

BB EKREFAENEERRRTES
EEEEEE  RHE3.1G)0) °

FEERARRDTERLEFTAEAKTRE
RRZESRKREZIREE

20228 %2021E38318 > BN R EURER
EHRR®RE HEEERRASERANREAT
B A BEEHE

AEFREFZRGHERURESHBREAR
ET o MERRHEMS  EEH—MAB15E30
B ERMARENZTERBEHEERRK
HAERZ120H BNEFAHERSEER
BoUHSKEEERAME - AERRNE
SR EREZ BUERIE MR 5 EEHIE0
FURBRE2RBEEERK SHREERETEHER
EHRAE R o
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, balances are relating to a
large number of diversified customers.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the

20 B EUERIEA (47)
72022 K%2021838310 SRR ST
BERBRM-

RERAHMSE NRBEREHEEZRIR

year, based on the invoice date and before loss allowances, is BERERZIREDRWT :
as follows:
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Up to 30 days R#30H 34,237 39,447
31 to 60 days 31%E60H 5,497 4,521
61 to 90 days 61%E90H 892 576
91 to 120 days 91E120H 811 726
Over 120 days 1208 £ 3,374 930
44,811 46,200
21 NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS, CURRENT PREPAYMENTS, 21 JEmENEE  RENFA(TRRIE ISR HEHM
DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES FEUSARIE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current portion mENER S
Deposits and other receivables e R EMEERE 44,193 25,753
Prepayments A TIE 11,010 15,378
55,203 41,131
Non-current portion JETRENER 53
Deposits & 12,472 12,267

Due to the short-term nature of the other current receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair value. Note 3.1(ii)(b) sets out information about the
impairment of financial assets and the Group’s exposure to
credit risk.

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

R E MR B R ARIEHAPR B AT » HAREER
AERNERFE-ME3G)D)EINARE

REEREREEREERBRNER -

22 REKRRITHER

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Non-pledged time deposits with original  REIHBABBE=ER =
maturity of over three months BIEIRTEHEMN - 27,226
Cash and cash equivalents in the FEHRERERAZHEER
consolidated statement of cash flows: R&ZFEEH :
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHER 120,692 119,694
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ REIHBALR=ERZ
maturity of less than three months RIEIRTEHEMN 108,538 135,743
229,230 255,437
229,230 282,663
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22

23

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED) 22 RERMITES @)

At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$32,996,000
(2021: HK$33,132,000) which were deposited with the banks
in the PRC. The remittance of such balances out of the PRC
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and over one year
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

RER ZEBUARBHEZRERIER
ITHERA 832,996,000 (20214 : B
33,132,0007T) F A R EE A 2 $R1T - BRZE
45 B4 = P B 1R 5128 5 < P B BT A 6 R S EE
BEHIRA R AR -

FRIBITZREWBRITE R EFRFAZHI
FERE - REAERHNFREFER 22T
MoERERERE-—AE-—EULEFE U
DRI R Z EHF B RITHEBENREE
RF BN REFRENCHRZIRIT - AERIR
ERREEEEAZREBELRAEATERS-

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23 EH&E
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Receipt in advances from customers FERERRIE 19,377 19,781
Customer loyalty programmes EE B2 268 320
19,645 20,101

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities.

ERENaRNE RIS
TRIITAREHFHEAEHESHNEERHEAN
ERRREEEE-

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Revenue recognised that was included FIABAIB BEE ZF)
in the contract liability balance at the Bz
beginning of the year
Receipt in advances from customers FAREFRIE 19,428 10,965
Customer loyalty programmes BRBHETE 280 753

All services contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed (2021: Same).

FIEREENHAE—SERFR -BREBMPE
REENBISHEFAAT PEEZS KBTS
MR Z BRI EE (20214 : BR) °
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24 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25

26

An aging analysis of the trade and bills payables at the end of
the year, based on the date of goods purchased and services
rendered, is as follows:

24 BRERARERRE

RIFBEEMRIRHERBZBHHE  BFRE
TEREREBERFERZREDOT

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEFT

Within 3 months 3EAMUA 58,750 52,090
Over 3 months 3EAMU L 1,570 1,364
60,320 53,454

The Group's trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on 30-day terms. The carrying
amounts of the Group's trade and bills payables approximate
to their fair values.

FEEZESRVIREREERARS  BEBE
AR30BBRASE - AEEE B RCIRER

REZIREERAEAFEEE

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 FEEtEERHthEDERIE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Other payables HAEERIE 8,547 7,999
Accrued expenses FEETRAS 40,652 38,838
Total #a%E 49,199 46,837
Less: Non-current accrued liabilities B IEREESaE (5,009) (2,792)
Current portion mENE S 44,190 44,045

The carrying amounts of accrued liabilities and other payables
approximate to their fair values.

DEFERRED TAX
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is
as follows:

26

st EREMBMREZREEREEAT

BERE-
BIEIRIE

EERIAEEREERBEENIFMT

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T AETT

Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE 190 118
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBER (31,621) (29,595)
Deferred tax liabilities — net BERIBAE—FEE (31,431) (29,477)
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26 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

The gross movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

26 IRIEFRIE (48)

i E AR S R ARRB A EBERY
BT EPEERIES MRS ENEBHN

within the same tax jurisdiction, during the year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities IRERIAEE
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
Revaluation of of related
investment depreciation
properties expense Total
BiBtEmITE
X ZirE
EMBRENE SR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETR
At 1 April 2020 1202054818 25,262 2,151 27,413
Charged to the consolidated income FARGRERERNE (HE10)
statement during the year (Note 10) 1,793 72 1,865
Exchange realignment ERAE 317 - 317
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 1#20213R318 &%
2021%481H 27,372 2,223 29,595
Charged to the consolidated income FARGERERNMG (HE10)
statement during the year (Note 10) 1,832 22 1,854
Exchange realignment ERAE 172 - 172
At 31 March 2022 142022438318 29,376 2,245 31,621
Deferred tax assets IRERIAEE
Unrealised profit
from inventories
REBREFEEF)HE
HK$'000
AT
At 1 April 2020 1£20205F481H (174)
Charged to the consolidated income statement FARGEWR RN (FIzE10)
during the year (Note 10) 56
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 122021438310 %2021F481H (118)
Credited to the consolidated income statement FARGEWRRETA (izE10)
during the year (Note 10) (72)
At 31 March 2022 12202253H31H (190)
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26 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carrying-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At
31 March 2022, the Group did not recognise deferred
tax assets of HK$68,659,000 (2021: HK$72,881,000) in
respect of tax losses amounting to HK$410,078,000 (2021:
HK$436,172,000) that are available for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses and deductible temporary differences as they
have arisen in subsidiaries with uncertain future operating
profit streams.

The unrecognised estimated tax losses are analysed by years
from expiring as follows:

26 IRIEFRIE (48)

BIERIEEE (48
RERMBEENMAES 2 RIEBERD
UETIREFEB AR 2 EERF HE IR AR
RIEF Z AR M2022638310  AEE T
ERLIRIEE I8 18410,078,0007T (20214 ¢
H436,172,0007T) FESRIEIERIEE E B
68,659,0007T (20214 : #&72,881,0007T) *
bR IBE R IR E A BB A B R R Z FERE A
o MR ZEBIERTIIRERMEEEDN R
BARERFLEF B M B AT LI Qi
R EBRIRIERIBEEE -

RERMERD T 2 RED MG RBEBEAOT

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

With no expiry date = @ m B H 65,728 69,761
Within 5 years HER 2,931 3,120
68,659 72,881

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, deferred tax on withholding tax is imposed on
declared dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008.

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$854,000
(2021: HK$780,000) as at 31 March 2022 have not been
provided for in the consolidated statement of financial position
in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the Group’s certain PRC subsidiaries as the Group
controls the dividend policy of these PRC subsidiaries and it is
probable that these temporary differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.

RIBEMPECEFRSRNRAIRER &
AP ENE AT BH2008E181H B
RIF R Bk AR B A AN TBINIRIEIERR I8 ©

72202283831 B##¥854,0007T (20214 :
7 1#780,0007T) ZBIEFRSM BRI EAL A&
BEFTHEMBRABDZRAFHEG G
MERENGEMBRRARAFHER  REE
RAEEBZFZEPEMNBEABNREEER
BZEERMEZEAERTENAIERR
SBR[ o
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27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 Bg#s
Shares i
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 (2021: 2,000,000,000) & 3&A%2,000,000,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (20214 : 2,000,000,0000%)
EREEEE A 200,000 200,000
Number of
ordinary share Share capital
of HK$0.10 each HK$'000
SREEEE f& s
1BEEREE BT T
Issued and fully paid BERTRERE
At 31 March 2021 and #2021463H31H
31 March 2022 ’202253H31H 1,185,318,349 118,532
28 RESERVES 28 fHftE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements Ziiﬁl{ﬁ{ﬁl/(&ﬂ?ﬂ&ﬂf& BEFEZE
therein for the current and prior year are presented in REGERBRRZEGS “"“@J?EW?‘J/T"
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
consolidated financial statements.
29 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 20 REHERH
As lessor fEARHEA
The Group leases its investment properties (Note 14) under AEERBELCEHNETHHRHEREYE (M
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms 14) > RIEETEABAIZE10ERE (2021
ranging from 1 to 10 years (2021: 1 to 10 years). The terms FIIE105) -HAOKRT—RREBFAEL
of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security TEREERIREERTREHARZHES
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions.
At 31 March 2022, the Group had total future minimum lease R2022F38318  AEBBMEBETILZAR
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its AR S EMA R RRWE Z REHRE
tenants falling due as follows: MEETIEE RN
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Within one year 1ER 6,740 6,816
In the second to fifth year, inclusive 2EF (BEERWME) 3,452 9,645
Over fifth year SEM = 2,641
10,192 19,102
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30

31

32

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

30 BAREKIE
FEROENEHREENERREZUWT :

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Property, plant and equipment ME-BE &R 568 540

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has the following significant
related party transactions carried out in the normal course of
the Group’s business during the year:

31 FAEALRS
BRI E M BRREMIBOMEESIN ER
KEBRAEMZ EEEFEBREPETT T
FIBEAMEALRS .

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Marketing subsidy income from REREATN
a related company HIFHERBIKRA 2,577 1,162
Licensing fees paid to a related company I FRBEATMNISHFER 1,379 2,242

The Group's key management personnel are the Directors of
the Company. Further details of Directors’ remuneration are
included in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the year are as follows:

FEBZIEEEASRERBES - EFH
EZE-—FFHBENGREMBRERMEE34-

32 UEHBINZEMTIA
BETHTARERZREENT

Financial assets at amortised cost LUSSHR S AR Z ERIEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BT
Trade receivables B EWARE 44,502 45,830
Deposits and other receivables BE R EMEWRE
(excluding prepayments) (FEfSFRIEFRN) 56,665 38,020
Cash and bank balances R KRIRITHERR 229,230 282,663
330,397 366,513
Financial liabilities at amortised cost LUBSER AR Z ERIE &
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade and bills payables BRRMRERER 60,320 53,454
Accrued liabilities and other payables fEst B EREMEMIRIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (GEzREBERIN 25,529 30,977
Lease liabilities HE&®R 66,754 69,037
152,603 153,468
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

33 BABNZMBRRRRFFEEE

2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 BT T AT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBATRKRE 609,926 594,113
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables  TE{SRUIE R E i FEULARTE 288 302
Amount due from a subsidiary e —EH B AR IE 20,000 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEER 616 690
Total current assets MBS EELE 20,904 30,992
Total assets BEEME 630,830 625,105
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to owners FATER AEMEER
of the Company
Share capital g 118,532 118,532
Reserves [EE (@) 511,812 506,180
Total equity AT 630,344 624,712
LIABILITIES &
Current liabilities mENEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&t & & & E fthfE (T IR TE 486 393
Total current liabilities mEIREELE 486 393
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEEsE 630,830 625,105

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2022 and was

signed on its behalf.

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

VNG|

e

AT ZHHERRREN202256H28HER
EEGIE IIREATIESAREE -

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO
SN
BIZERATHAEH
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

33 BABZMBRRRRFFEES (B)

Note (a): Movement of reserves of the Company MizE(a): AABZHEEES
Retained
Share Capital earnings/
premium redemption Contributed  (accumulated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
RERF,/
BipaEBR BAERREE BB (RstEH) Fek]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2020 120204810 490,378 1,619 130 (13,576) 478,551
Profit and total comprehensive  AEEF|ER2E AL
income for the year - - - 27,629 27,629
At 31 March 2021 and ®2021%3R318 K
1 April 2021 20214818 490,378 1,619 130 14,053 506,180
Dividend paid for the year EREZE20214E38318
ended 31 March 2021 HEERE
(note 12) (PitzE12) - - - (11,853) (11,853)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEFBERK
income for the year 2ERALE - - - 17,485 17,485
At 31 March 2022 1$2022%3H831H 490,378 1,619 130 19,685 511,812

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess

of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired

over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued

in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda (as amended), a company may make distributions

to its members out of the contributed surplus in certain

circumstances.

FATZEBBRBAFMKERE QDR
BZAFEBAEXATDFHUILIEL R
BOZRMZEAEZHD REBRE
1981 FEREE (1E5]) » —RABBIRNE
FERTEBRRBAERREL DK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & B F5ER&KMIEE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 EZEMflmkiEm (FBARRE (B

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE 622%5) $3831E AT HBEEHRE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. ¥ $6) ($622GE) REH L HRAIR
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION EHIHE)

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=E
The remuneration of each Director is set out below: BEEWEEHINUWT
For the year ended 31 March 2022: B ZE2022F3831HLEFE !
Employer's
contribution

toa Estimated
retirement  money value

Discretionary benefit of other Total

Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus scheme henefits

BEZEH®K HFEH
R ik & DA BRGHAMT EHERER an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETR  BETn BT BETx BETn

(Note MfzE()) (Note Fizk(i) (Note FfizE(i) (Note MizE(ii)
Sun Tai Lun Dennis YN 150 - - - - 150
Sun Tao Hung Stanley Hhigsh 110 1,920 410 18 - 2,458
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan HER 110 960 64 18 - 1,152
Chan Wai Kwan Rita Bz2 110 1,200 96 18 - 1,424
Li Ka Fai David i 280 - - - - 280
Liu Jian Hui Allan (formerly et AT AR )

known as “Liu Hui Allan”) 140 - - - - 140
Wong Chi Yun Allan BT 260 - - - - 260
Fung Yue Chun Stephen g 140 - - - - 140
Total iz 1,300 4,080 570 54 - 6,004
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)

@

(b)

(©)

34 EFENHmRER (FRABRGRM (5
622%F) 383K AR MBEEFHHHE
) MG (38622GE) RER LHRAM
ERHKE) (@)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM=E @
For the year ended 31 March 2021: EFE2021F3831HLEEFE !
Employer's
contribution
toa Estimated
retirement  money value
Discretionary benefit of other Total
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus scheme benefits
EEZEHK HEftHEm
EEdues ik fig MRETL BRHAMT GHEEEE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT
(Note FitEE() (Note MEEE(i) (Note FitzE(i) (Note MYz (i)
Sun Tai Lun Dennis YN 150 460 60 8 - 678
Sun Tao Hung Stanley Thsgsh 110 1,880 176 18 - 2,184
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan HER 110 928 88 18 - 1,144
Chan Wai Kwan Rita REE 110 1,160 110 18 - 1,398
Li Ka Fai David FRE 280 - - - - 280
Liu Jian Hui Allan (formerly 218 (RiTRT2IRE))
known as “Liu Hui Allan”) 140 - - - - 140
Wong Chi Yun Allan BFM 260 - - - - 260
Fung Yue Chun Stephen i 140 - - - - 140
Total e 1,300 4,428 434 62 - 6,224
Note: PEE -
(i) Emoluments paid to or receivable by these Directors in () EEMHEHETILARAEZTZRBEEX
respect of their services as Directors to the Company. TRERZBE -
(i) Emoluments paid to or receivable by these Directors in (i) EEMEATERRHEEERBEES
respect of their management services to the Group. TR Z Bl o
Directors’ retirement benefits and termination (b) EFEERAREFIREZLEREN
benefits
None of the Directors received or will receive any F R ES B WA W EUE AR K
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the year BRI BRI EREF (20216F | #|) o
(2021: Nil).
Consideration provided to or receivable by third (c) MIRMEZIRIERE=FIRMHEKEEREI

parties for making available Directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
Directors’ services (2021: Nil).

B9
HE2022F3831BILEE AEEER
RRHERRHEETESZTRE
(20214 : 4®) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 BENEFITS AND

35

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of Directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
Directors

As at 31 March 2022, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such Directors (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

IR AT ERAR M

34 EFENHmRER (FRABRGRM (5
622%F) 383K AR MBEEFHHHE
) MG (38622GE) RER LHRAM
ERHKE) (@)

(d)

(e

ERUES ESRZEREMERRS
BHANER EERRAMRBZHER

2022438318 ENESE - HTEE
FERESEERENER EER KM
RS LHE (20214 © &) o

EENZS THHEONER R

AT EURNABEA—HETILER
EEEKAR MAADESHERBE
BAEARZANERIERT AR
BENEARS KRS (20214F :

at the end of the year or at any time during the year ) o
(2021: Nil).
CASH FLOW INFORMATION 3B REREEHR
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing R ESEENAERIR
activities
Lease liabilities
HEaE
HK$'000
BT
At 1 April 2020 122020548 1H 77,520
Cashflows RERE (45,693)
Addition 10 40,129
Lease modification HEE:T (217)
Rent concessions from lessors HEABREER (2,702)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 12202143H310 %20215481A 69,037
Cashflows RERE (47,633)
Addition 10 46,259
Rent concessions from lessors HEAREER (909)
At 31 March 2022 $22022%3A31H 66,754
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Details of Investment Properties

REYZEFE

As at 31 March 2022

202283831 H

Location Category of lease Existing use
s THAEER REAR
Unit D on the 1st Floor and &8 Medium term leasehold Warehouse
Car Park Space Nos. 16 NLEE HRERTEAY =)=
and 17 on the Ground Floor ATTH

and Car Park Space No. 10 HHEEB215%

on the Lower Ground Floor FRIETERB1EDEM

Eldex Industrial Building #TFEEM6/K175 &

21 Ma Tau Wai Road N EEFE109%

Hunghom

Kowloon

Hong Kong

8th Level, Donghai Commercial Centre PEARHEME Medium term leasehold Commercial
588 Yan An East Road i FEATRA [EES
Huang Pu District =RE

Shanghai JE % 5 P8 5885%

People’s Republic of China RBEHERLOSIE

Units 2305 and 2307 B Medium term leasehold Commercial
on 23rd Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre ~ # 5% FRERTEAY ES
Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road B HIE220-2485%

New Territories é?’%’l%ﬁlﬂluB@

Hong Kong 2305k2307%

Unit No. 6 on 6th Floor together with &8 Medium term leasehold Commercial
Vehicle Parking Spaces Nos. 37, 51 and 60 e HRERTEAY ES
on Ground Floor, Block C = IEE 7

Ko Fai Industrial Building EIETEAEMEER

No. 7 Ko Fai Road CRESh ™ B {20 SR AS37 »

Kowloon 51%%6035%

Hong Kong

Units 2509, 2511-16 55 Medium term leasehold Commercial
on 25th Floor 57 AT [
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre BT HIE220-2485%

Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road %7%‘1%1%25@

New Territories 2509/%2511-16%

Hong Kong

Vehicle Parking Space B Medium term leasehold Commercial
No. 72 on 1st Floor MR ERRA [GE=
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre Bt HIE220-2485%

Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road EBTEROMEERHEHNE

New Territories 725%

Hong Kong

Whole of 27th Level and pEAREHE Medium term leasehold Commercial
Car Parking Space Nos. 37, 38 and 39 E%é HRERTEAY £
Guang Fa Bank Building B

No. 83 Lower Long Lin Road &

Dongshan District EM T 835

Guangzhou BERTAE

Guangdong Province 27 R B RIFE(I3T7

People’s Republic of China 38%%395%

Units 1401-1408 on 14th Level FEAREHE Medium term leasehold Commercial
Jin Cheng Zhong Xin IR HRERTEAY ES
4th District, Fang Qun Garden FiEE

Fang Zhuang District SEEZENE

Beijing e =l

People’s Republic of China 141£1401-1408ZF

Unit No. 4 on Levels 17/18 together with i NRHAE Long term leasehold Commercial
Car Parking Space No. 10 on 1/F £ REFELQ ¥
Golden Bridge Mansion E Z

2077 Yan An Road West ERFR2077H

Changning District BEARE

Shanghai 17/18184E R

People’s Republic of China TGS EAI105%

Unit C-13, C-14, C-15 hE AREHE Long term leasehold Commercial
An'Xin Building BEY RETEL [5ES
Heping Main Road BOm

(Yanjiang 4th Road), Haikou MFEAE CBI1458)

Hainan Province ZERE

People’s Republic of China

C-13+C-14~C-15ZE
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Corporate Information
REER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
Chan Wai Kwan Rita

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)
Fung Yue Chun Stephen

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Li Ka Fai David

Liu Jian Hui Allan (formerly known as “Liu Hui Allan™)
Wong Chi Yun Allan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Wai Kwan Rita

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre
220-248 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong

EFRT

BTES

T3k (B2 AR TEASH)
HER

FRITES

At (/)

i

BIFRTES

SR

SR (31762
BT

ARHE

HER

EEIRT

REIRIT (B8 BRAT
E TRRAT (EH) BRAT
F8 LS ERRTERAT
3 4]

BRAAHE BB

HEMmEE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

ERIEMERE
BEBEHE

B HiE220-24853
EETERLE
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China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited
FERESMEBRBRAF
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
BEAZEELHE220-2485R = E TR 08E
Fax 8 H: (852) 2409 0294
Email B Ep: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

website 48 ikh: www.chinahkphoto.com.hk



www.chinahkphoto.com.hk
B

CHINA-HONGHONG PHOTO PRODUCTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEREBIMNEBRER QT
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RBEFEIMELZBRAF)

FSC

wwwisc.org

BEER
HESR | X RREHME
Paper | Supporting responsible forestry
FSC" C176382
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